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1 MEETING OPENING
11  ATTENDANCE
Apologies

Cr Sophie Tan
Cr Loi Truong

Councillors Present

Cr Jim Memeti (Chairperson)
Cr Peter Brown, Cr Youhorn Chea, Cr Tim Dark, Cr Matthew Kirwan, Cr Angela Long, Cr Zaynoun
Melhem, Cr Sean O'Reilly, Cr Maria Sampey.

Officers Present

John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer, Mick Jaensch, Director Corporate Services, Tilla
Buden, Acting Director Community Services, Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and
Amenity, Paul Kearsley, Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects.

1.2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS OF THE LAND

Council acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and future Traditional Custodians and
Elders of this nation and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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1.3 OFFERING OF PRAYER

All present remained standing as Rev Berlin Guerrero from the Christian - Dandenong Regional
Uniting Church (Trinity), a member of the Greater Dandenong Interfaith Network, read the opening
prayer:

" God of love, in Jesus you wept for David’s City Jerusalem; a place of violence, centralised
wealth and power, and poverty in its margins, but in your heart, you knew deep inside that it is
a place of hope, human determination and divine redemption. We pray for the City of Greater
Dandenong, that these places of human gathering become communities of opportunities and
hope for all who seek food, shelter, work, and rest; for those who call out for acceptance,
recognition, for dignity and justice. We pray that the diverse communities who have found homes
here may join together to seek the good of all. Minister to this city through the hands of your
people, the hearts of your servants, and the wisdom of your leaders, as they feed the hungry,
house the homeless by eliminating poverty, heal the sick by providing the best accessible health
care, and comfort the lonely by building a hospitable, inclusive and welcoming community. We
pray that each member of this city finds wholistic growth as persons created in divine image;
that everyone responds positively and then collectively to the challenges posed to us by a
changing world and yet with uncertainty amidst our diversity and differences. Keep alive in us
that hope of the new world, of heaven on earth, of the city that finds its light from your presence,
and its joy in doing your will. Through Jesus Christ, let it be. Amen."

1.4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Ordinary Meeting of Council held 28 January 2020.
Recommendation

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held 28 January 2020 be confirmed.
MINUTE 1328

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Zaynoun Melhem

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held 28 January 2020 be confirmed.
CARRIED
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MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020

1.5 ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL

The following assemblies of Council occurred in the period 21 January to 5 February 2020:

Date Meeting Type Councillors Councillors Topics Discussed &
Attending Absent Disclosures of Conflict of
Interest
28/01/20 Pre-Council Peter Brown, - Success of Australia Day
Meeting Youhorn Chea, festival at Dandenong Park.

Tim Dark (part),
Matthew Kirwan,
Angela Long,
Zaynoun
Melhem (part),
Jim Memeti,
Sean O'Reilly,
Maria Sampey
(part), Sophie
Tan (part), Loi
Truong

- Team 11 Update
(Confidential).

- Success of Dandenong
Market 'Night Market'
evenings.

- International Sister Cities
Conference Invitation.

- Agenda items for 28
January 2020 Council
Meeting.
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1.5 ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL (Cont.)

Date Meeting Type Councillors Councillors Topics Discussed &
Attending Absent Disclosures of Conflict of
Interest
3/02/20 Councillor Peter Brown, Apologies - - Library Opening Hours.
Briefing Youhorn Chea, Zaynoun - Recognition of Former
Session Tim Dark (part), Melhem Councillors.

Matthew Kirwan,
Angela Long,
Jim Memeti,
Sean O'Reilly,
Maria Sampey,
Sophie Tan, Loi
Truong

- Naming of New Ross
Reserve Pavilion.

- Future of Material Aid
Coordination.

- Consideration of Urban
Forest Strategy.

- Springvale Precinct Update.
- Upcoming IT phishing email
exercise.

- Councillor expenses
re-imbursement protocols.

- Anti-social behaviour at an
address in Popes Road,
Keysborough.

- Agenda items for the
Council Meeting of 10
February 2020.
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1.5 ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL (Cont.)

Date Meeting Type Councillors Councillors Topics Discussed &
Attending Absent Disclosures of Conflict of
Interest
TBA TBA TBA TBA - TBA

Recommendation
That the assemblies of Council listed above be noted.
MINUTE 1329

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Youhorn Chea

That the assemblies of Council listed above be noted.

CARRIED
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1.6 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
Nil.
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2 OFFICERS' REPORTS - PART ONE
2.1 DOCUMENTS FOR TABLING
2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters

File Id: qA228025

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services

Attachments: Petitions and Joint Letters
Report Summary

Council receives a number of petitions and joint letters on a regular basis that deal with a variety of
issues which have an impact upon the City.

Issues raised by petitions and joint letters will be investigated and reported back to Council if required.

A table containing all details relevant to current petitions and joint letters is provided in Attachment
1. It includes:

1. the full text of any petitions or joint letters received;

2. petitions or joint letters still being considered for Council response as pending a final
response along with the date they were received; and

3. the final complete response to any outstanding petition or joint letter previously tabled
along with the full text of the original petition or joint letter and the date it was responded
to.

Note: On occasions, submissions are received that are addressed to Councillors which
do not qualify as petitions or joint letters under Council’s current Meeting Procedure
Local Law. These are also tabled.
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2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

Petitions and Joint Letters Tabled

Council received one new petition, no joint letters, no submissions and one petition update prior to
the Council Meeting of 10 February 2020.

e A new petition was received from seven residents of Kaimas Way, Dandenong, requesting
Council to construct several speed humps along the street to slow down speeding cars and
preventing any serious accidents. Currently, there are no speed humps or footpaths along Kaimas
Way. This petition has been forwarded to the relevant Council Business Unit/s for action.

N.B: Where relevant, a summary of the progress of ongoing change.org petitions and any
other relevant petitions/joint letters/submissions will be provided in the attachment to this
report.

Recommendation

That the listed items detailed in Attachment 1 and the current status of each, be received and
noted.

MINUTE 1330

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Zaynoun Melhem

That the listed items detailed in Attachment 1 and the current status of each, be received and
noted.

CARRIED
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2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

DOCUMENTS FOR TABLING

PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

ATTACHMENT 1

PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

PAGES 6 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 1000.
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2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 1000.
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2.2 STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning
Application No. PLN19/0295)

File 1d: 134290
Responsible Officer: Director City Planning, Design and Amenity
Attachments: Submitted Plans

Location of Objectors
Clause 22.09 Assessment
Clause 52.06 Assessment
Clause 55 Assessment

Application Summary

Applicant: Universal Planning

Proposal: Development of the land for three (3) double storey dwellings
Zone: General Residential Zone 1

Overlay: No overlays apply to the subject site

Ward: Paperbark

This application has been brought to a Council meeting as it has received five (5) objections.
The application proposes the development of the land for three (3) double storey dwellings.

A permit is required pursuant to Clause 32.08-6 of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme for the
construction of two or more dwellings on a lot.

Objectors Summary

The application was advertised to the surrounding area through the erection of a notice on-site notices
and the mailing of notices to adjoining and surrounding owners and occupiers. Five (5) objections
were received to the application. Issues raised generally relate to matters of:

e loss of privacy/overlooking;

) visual bulk;

o traffic/parking issues;

e  double storey nature of development;
e  property values;
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.
PLN19/0295) (Cont.)

e  overshadowing;

° loss of views;

° lack of detail on plans;
° noise; and

e  construction impacts.

Recommendation Summary

As assessed, the proposal is consistent with and appropriately responds to the provisions of the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme. The proposal appropriately responds to strategic policy for
residential development in the area with this report recommending that the application be supported,
and a Notice of Decision (which provides appeal rights to objectors) to grant a permit be issued
containing the conditions as set out in the recommendation.
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.
PLN19/0295) (Cont.)

Subject Site and Surrounds
Subject Site

The subject site is located on the north-western side of Callaghan Street, Noble Park. It has a
south-eastern frontage to Callaghan Street of 21.54m, a north-eastern side boundary of 38.13m, a
north-western rear boundary of 16.36m and a south-western side boundary of 38.47m, giving it an
area of 730m?>.

The site is oriented north-west to south-east, is irregular in shape, has a slight slope and is affected
by an easement along its rear boundary.

The site is currently occupied by an existing double storey weatherboard dwelling and associated
outbuildings.

The site is currently accessed via a crossover on the eastern side of the south eastern frontage.
There is no significant vegetation on the subject site.

Surrounding Area

The subject site is located within a residential area of Noble Park which is bounded by Heatherton
Road to the north, Chandler Road to the east, the Dandenong Railway line to the south and Mile
Creek to the west.

The subiject site itself is surrounded by residential uses to the north-west and north-east, Mile Creek
and large native trees to the south-west and Callaghan Street (and Noble Park Secondary College
beyond it) to the south-east.

Existing dwellings in the area include weatherboard and brick dwellings, single and double storey
dwellings, and a variety of front fence types, or no front fences at all.

The area is experiencing significant levels of infill development, particularly along Leman Crescent
and French Street.

This is due to its proximity to the Noble Park Major Activity Centre and the Noble Park Railway Station
which are located only 570m to the north-west of the subject site.
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Background
Previous Applications

A search of Council records revealed that Council has previously considered the following planning
application for the site:

e  Planning Permit Application No. PLN17/0530 for ‘The ‘Development of the land for four (4) double
storey dwellings’ was refused on 18/05/2018. This application was refused as it did not comply
with Clauses 15.01 (Urban Design), 21.05-1 (Built Form), 22.09 (Residential Development and
Neighbourhood Character Policy), 52.06 (Car Parking) and 55 (Two or More Dwellings on a Lot
and Residential Buildings). The refusal was upheld by the Tribunal on 14/01/2019. The current
application has addressed the previous grounds of refusal and demonstrates a high level of
compliance with these clauses.
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Proposal

The application proposes the development of the land for three (3) double storey dwellings as follows:

Details
Type of proposal Multi dwellings
Number of dwellings | Three (3)

Levels

Double storey

Height

8.43 metres

Orientated to

Callaghan Street — Dwelling 1

Shared driveway — Dwellings 2 and 3

External materials

Brick at ground floor level and rendered cladding at first floor level

Set backs

Dwelling 1 — 6.35m front (south-eastern) setback, built to south-western
boundary and 5.84m side (north-eastern) setback

Dwelling 2 — built to south-western boundary and 5.84m side (north-eastern)
setback

Dwelling 3 — built to south-western boundary, 1.5m rear (north-western)
setback and 5.84m side (north-eastern) setback

Open space type

Dwelling 1 — 118.7m? front yard and 31.6m? backyard
Dwelling 2 — 40m? backyard

Dwelling 3 — 50m? backyard

parking Spaces
required

Number of Car |4
parking Spaces
provided

Number of Car|4

Type of car parking

Dwelling 1 — Double Garage

Dwellings 2 and 3 — Single Garage each
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Access Access located to the north-east of the development
Connects to Callaghan Street

Minimum width is 3 metres

Front Fence A 0.9 metre high front fence is proposed

Garden Area:

Provided 267.3 square metres or 36.62%

Required 255.5 square metres or 35%

A copy of the submitted plans is included as Attachment 1.
Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

All matters relevant to the Victorian Human Rights Charter have been considered in the preparation
of this report and are consistent with the standards set by the Charter.

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications

No financial resources are impacted by this report.

Planning Scheme and Policy Frameworks

Pursuant to the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, a planning permit is required:

e Under Clause 32.08-6 (General Residential Zone) to construct two or more dwellings on a lot.
The relevant controls and policies are as follows:

Zoning Controls

The subject site is located in a General Residential Zone Schedule 1, as is the surrounding area to
the north-west, north-east and south-east (i.e. Callaghan Street). Mile Creek to the south-west is in
an Urban Floodway Zone, whilst Noble Park Secondary College is in a Public Use Zone Schedule
2.

The purpose of the General Residential Zone outlined at Clause 32.08 is:

° To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework.
° To encourage development that respects the neighbourhood character of the area.
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° To encourage a diversity of housing types and housing growth particularly in locations offering
good access to services and transport.

) To allow educational, recreational, religious, community and a limited range of other
non-residential uses to serve local community needs in appropriate locations.

Pursuant to Clause 32.08-6, a permit is required to construct two or more dwellings on a lotin a
General Residential Zone.

Overlay Controls

No overlays affect the subject site.

Planning Policy Framework

The objectives of Planning in Victoria are outlined in Section 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 as:

(a) To provide for the fair, orderly, economic and sustainable use, and development of land.

(b) To provide for the protection of natural and man-made resources and the maintenance of ecological
processes and genetic diversity.

(c) To secure a pleasant, efficient and safe working, living and recreational environment for all
Victorians and visitors to Victoria.

(d) To conserve and enhance those buildings, areas or other places which are of scientific, aesthetic,
architectural or historical interest, or otherwise of special cultural value.

(e) To protect public utilities and other facilities for the benefit of the community.

(f) To facilitate development in accordance with the objectives set out in paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d)
and (e).

(fa) to facilitate the provision of affordable housing in Victoria.
(g) To balance the present and future interests of all Victorians.

In order to achieve those objectives, there are a number of more specific objectives contained within
the Planning Policy Framework that need to be considered under this application.

Settlement (Clause 11)

Settlement is outlined at Clause 11, with Clause 11.02-1S relating to Supply of Urban Land. The
objective of this Clause is:

) To ensure a sufficient supply of land is available for residential, commercial, retail, industrial,
recreational, institutional and other community uses.
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Built Environment and Heritage (Clause 15)

Planning should promote excellence in the built environment and create places that:

Are enjoyable, engaging and comfortable to be in.

Accommodate people of abilities, ages and cultures.

Contribute positively to local character and sense of place.

Reflect the particular characteristics and cultural identity of the community.
Enhance the function, amenity and safety of the public realm.

Housing (Clause 16)

Clause 16 — Housing — contains the following relevant objectives:

Planning should provide for housing diversity, and ensure the efficient provision of supporting
infrastructure.

Planning should ensure the long term sustainability of new housing, including access to services,
walkability to activity centres, public transport, schools and open space.

Planning for housing should include the provision of land for more affordable housing.

Clause 16.01-3S — Housing Diversity — contains the following strategies:

Ensure housing stock matches changing demand by widening housing choice.
Facilitate diverse housing that offers choice and meets changing household needs through:

o A mix of housing types.
o  Adaptable internal dwelling design.
o  Universal design.

Encourage the development of well-design medium-density housing that:

o  Respects the neighbourhood character.

o Improves housing choice.

o  Makes better use of existing infrastructure.
o  Improves energy efficiency of housing.

Support opportunities for a range of income groups to choose housing in well serviced locations.

Ensure planning for growth areas provides for a mix of housing types through a variety of lot
sizes, including higher housing densities in and around activity centres.
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Clause 18 — Transport

Clause 18.01-1S - Land use and transport planning — contains the following relevant strategies:
e  Plan urban development to make jobs and community services more accessible by:

o  Ensuring equitable access is provided to developments in accordance with forecast demand,
taking advantage of all available modes of transport and to minimise adverse impacts on
existing transport networks and the amenity of surrounding areas.

Local Planning Policy Framework

The Local Planning Policy Framework (LPPF) includes the Municipal Strategic Statement (MSS) and
Local Policies.

The MSS is contained within Clause 21 of the Scheme. The MSS at Clause 21.02 focuses on the
Municipal Profile, within which the following is noted:

° There is considerable diversity within Greater Dandenong’s housing stock. Most housing stock
is aged between 30 to 50 years old, though there are some areas with dwellings in excess of
100 years old. Areas of newer housing are located in the north-east and central-southern areas,
with in-fill development occurring across the municipality (Clause 21.02-3).

e  Higher density housing is generally located in proximity to railway stations and major shopping
centres, in particular in central Dandenong (Clause 21.02-3).

° Whilst there is a clear pre-dominance of single detached dwellings, there are a range of other
types of dwellings including dual occupancies, villa-units, town houses and apartments. The
highest concentration of older villa units and apartments and more recent multi-unit
redevelopments have occurred around central Dandenong, Springvale and Noble Park activity
centres (Clause 21.02-4).

° With diverse cultural groups that call Greater Dandenong home, there are certain distinct precincts
that are emerging that have their own character. Their built form is characterised by buildings
with flat unarticulated facades, prominent balconies, limited frontage/side setbacks, limited or
no landscaping (Clause 21.02-4).

A Vision for Greater Dandenong is outlined at Clause 21.03. The vision is that Greater Dandenong
will be a municipality where housing diversity and choice is promoted in its various attractive
neighbourhoods.
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The objectives and strategies of the MSS are under four (4) main themes including: land use; built
form; open space and natural environment; and, infrastructure and transportation (considered
individually under Clauses 21.04 to 21.07). Of particular relevance to this application are Clauses
21.04 — Land Use and 21.05 — Built Form:

Clause 21.04-1 Housing and community

° Greater Dandenong’s population is expected to rise by 22 percent, from 147,000 to 179,000 in
the decade to 2024, placing pressure on transport networks, infrastructure, services and public
open space.

e  Approximately 9,950 new households will need to be accommodated across the municipality by
2024 (Greater Dandenong Housing Strategy 2014-2024).

e  Supporting urban consolidation and providing housing in existing areas close to activity centres
means that people do not need to travel as far to work, shop or to take part in sports/leisure
activities thus reducing the environmental impacts of transport.

° Increases in housing density must be balanced by adequate provision of open space, good
urban design and improvements to the public realm.

e  Encourage the provision of housing that is adaptable to support the needs of the changing needs
of present and future residents.

e  Encourage innovative redevelopment and renewal of deteriorating housing stock and older styled
higher-density apartments and multi-unit developments.

e  Encourage new residential development that incorporates adequate space for the planting and
the long term viability and safe retention of canopy trees.

e  Respect the valued, existing neighbourhood character within incremental and minimal change
areas.

e  Requiring medium-density developments to be site and locality responsive and to respect existing
and proposed neighbourhood character.

Clause 21.05-1 — Urban design, character, streetscapes and landscapes — contains the following
relevant objectives and strategies:

° To facilitate high quality building design and architecture.

o  Ensure building design is consistent with the identified future character of an area and fully
integrates with surrounding environment.

o  Encourage high standards of building design and architecture, which allows for flexibility
and adaptation in use.

o  Encourage innovative architecture and building design.

o  Encourage development to incorporate sustainable design elements that enhance occupant
comfort and environmental performance.
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To facilitate high quality development, which has regard for the surrounding environment and
built form.

o  Promote views of high quality landscapes and pleasing vistas from both the public and
private realm.

o Promote all aspects of character — physical, environmental, social and cultural.
o  Encourage planting and landscape themes, which complement and improve the environment.
o  Encourage developments to provide for canopy trees.

o  Recognising valued existing neighbourhood character and promoting identified future
character as defined in the Residential Development and Neighbourhood Character Policy
at Clause 22.09.

To protect and improve streetscapes

o  Ensure that new developments improve streetscapes through generous landscape setbacks
and canopy tree planting.

o  Ensure landscaping within private property that complements and improves the streetscapes
and landscaping of public areas.

To ensure landscaping that enhances the built environment

o  Encourage new developments to establish a landscape setting, which reflects the local and
wider landscape character.

o  Encourage landscaping that integrates canopy trees and an appropriate mix of shrubs and
ground covers and complements and integrates with existing or proposed landscaping in
public areas.

Clause 22.09 — Residential Development & Neighbourhood Character Policy — contains the following
objectives at Clause 22.09-2:

To guide the location and design of different types of residential development within Greater
Dandenong, having regard to State and local planning policies, while respecting the valued
characteristics and identified future character of residential neighbourhoods.

To ensure that new residential development is consistent with the identified future character and
preferred built form envisaged for the three Future Change Areas.

To provide certainty about which areas are identified for, or protected from, increased residential
development consistent with the purpose of the applicable zone.

To facilitate high quality, well designed residential development and on-site landscaping.

To promote a range of housing types to accommodate the future needs of the municipality’s
changing population.
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e To ensure that residential development uses innovative, responsive and functional siting and
design solutions that:

o  Achieve high quality internal amenity and private open space outcomes for future residents;

o  Make a positive contribution to the streetscape through quality design, contextual
responsiveness and visual interest;

o Promote public realm safety by maximising passive surveillance.

o  Demonstrate responsiveness to the site, adjoining interfaces, streetscape and landscape
context;

) Respect the amenity of adjoining residents and the reasonable development potential of
adjoining properties;
o  Achieve environmentally sustainable design outcomes;

o Use quality, durable building materials that are integrated into the overall building form and
facade; and

o  Minimise the visual dominance of vehicle accessways and storage facilities, such as garages,
car ports and basement entrances.

Clause 22.09-3.1 (Design Principles) provides design principles, which apply to all Future
Change Areas.

Clause 22.09-3.3 (Incremental Change Areas) provides design principles, some of which
also relate to the variances to the requirements of standards to Clause 55 under the
schedule to the General Residential Zone. The guidelines are as follows:

e  Preferred housing type — The preferred housing type for the Incremental Change Area is medium
density.

e  Building Height — The preferred maximum building height for land within the GRZ1 and GRZ2
is up to 2 storeys, including ground level.

e [andscaping — Residential development should use landscaping to create a landscaped character,
particularly canopy trees in front and rear gardens; and to protect the outlook of adjoining
properties.

e  Setbacks, front boundary and width — Parking, paving and car access within the front boundary
setback should be limited in order to maximise the opportunity for soft landscaping and prevent
the over dominance of carport and garages in the street.

e  Private Open Space — Residential development should provide secluded private open space at
the side or rear of each dwelling to avoid the need for excessive screening or high front fencing.

e  Bulk — Residential development should:

o  Ensure that the built form respects the scale of existing prevailing built form character and
responds to site circumstances and streetscape;

o  Provide separation between dwellings at upper level;
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o  Retain spines of open space at the rear of properties to maximise landscaping opportunities
and protect private secluded open space;

o  Position more intense and higher elements of built form towards the front and centre of a
site, transitioning to single storey elements to the rear of the lot.

The rearmost dwelling on a lot should be single storey to ensure the identified future character
of the area and the amenity of adjoining properties is respected by maximising landscaping
opportunities and protecting adjoining private secluded open space.

Two storey dwellings to the rear of a lot may be considered where:

o The visual impact of the building bulk does not adversely affect the identified future character

of the area;

o  Overlooking and/or overshadowing does not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring
properties;

o The building bulk does not adversely affect the planting and future growth of canopy trees
to maturity;

o Sufficient side and rear boundary landscaping can be provided to screen adjoining properties;
) Upper storey components are well recessed from adjoining sensitive interfaces.

Residential development should be well articulated through the use of contrast, texture, variation
in forms, materials and colours.

An assessment against Clause 22.09 is included as Attachment 3 to this report.

Particular Provisions

Car Parking (Clause 52.06)

The purposes of this provision, Clause 52.06, are:

To ensure that car parking is provided in accordance with the Municipal Planning Strategy and
the Planning Policy Framework.

To ensure the provision of an appropriate number of car parking spaces having regard to the
demand likely to be generated, the activities on the land and the nature of the locality.

To support sustainable transport alternatives to the motor car.

To promote the efficient use of car parking spaces through the consolidation of car parking
facilities.

To ensure that car parking does not adversely affect the amenity of the locality.

To ensure that the design and location of car parking is of a high standard, creates a safe
environment for users and enables easy and efficient use.

Clause 52.06-2 notes that a new use must not commence or the floor area of an existing use must
not be increased until the required car spaces have been provided on the land.
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The required spaces are identified in the table to Clause 52.06-5. Clause 52.06-3 further notes that
a permit may be granted to reduce or waive the number of car spaces required by the table.

The table at Clause 52.06-5 notes that a dwelling with 1 or 2 bedrooms requires 1 car space and a
dwelling with 3 or more bedrooms requires 2 spaces to each dwelling. 1 visitor car space is required
for visitors to every 5 dwellings for developments of 5 or more dwellings.

Car parking is to be designed and constructed in accordance with the requirements of Clause 52.06-9
and 52.06-11 of the Scheme.

An assessment against Clause 52.06 is included as Attachment 4 to this report.

Two or more dwellings on a lot and residential buildings (Clause 55)

Pursuant to Clause 55 of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, the provisions of this Clause
apply to an application:

e  To construct two or more dwellings on a lot.
The purposes of this clause are:

° To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework.

° To achieve residential development that respects the existing neighbourhood character or which
contributes to a preferred neighbourhood character.

e Toencourage residential development that provides reasonable standards of amenity for existing
and new residents.

° To encourage residential development that is responsive to the site and the neighbourhood.
A development:

e  Must meet all of the objectives of this clause.
) Should meet all of the standards of this clause.

If a zone or a schedule to a zone specifies a requirement of a standard different from a requirement
set out in this clause, the requirement in the zone or a schedule to the zone applies.

An assessment against Clause 55 is included as Attachment 5 to this report.
General Provisions

Clause 65 — Decision Guidelines needs to be considered, as is the case with all applications. For this
application the requirements of Clause 65.01 for the approval of an application or plan is of relevance.
This Clause outlines the requirements that the responsible authority must consider when determining
the application.
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Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives, Strategies and Plans

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. In accordance with the commitment in Council’s Annual Plan, all applications are
considered on their merits.

Diversity (Access & Equity)

It is not considered that the proposal raises any diversity issues affecting the planning assessment
of this application.

Community Safety

It is considered that there would be no adverse community safety implications in permitting the
proposal.

Safe Design Guidelines

Consideration of the relevant requirements of these Guidelines has been undertaken within the
Assessment of this application.

Referrals
External

The application was not required to be formally referred to any external referral authorities. However,
as the subject site adjoins Mile Creek, the applicant sought comment from Melbourne Water who
provided an external referral dated 09/09/2019 as follows:

External Referrals

Melbourne Water No objections, subject to conditions and notes on permit

(see Condition 17 and Note 1)

Internal

The application was internally referred to the following Council departments for their consideration.
The comments provided will be considered in the assessment of the application.

Internal Referrals

Arborist No objections

Asset Planning No objections, subject to notes on permit

(see Notes 2 and 3)

24180



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.
PLN19/0295) (Cont.)

Civil Development No objections, subject to conditions and notes on permit

(see Conditions 9, 10 and 12 and Notes 4, 5, 6 and 7)

ESD/Sustainability No objections, subject to conditions on permit

(see Conditions 7 and 8)

Transport Planning No objections, subject to a condition on permit

(see Condition 1.1)

Advertising

The application has been advertised pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987, by:

e  Sending notices to the owners and occupiers of adjoining and surrounding land.
e Placing a sign on site facing Callaghan Street.

The notification has been carried out correctly.

Council has received five (5) objections to the application.
The location of the objectors is shown in Attachment 2.
Consultation

A consultative meeting was held on 04/12/2019 with the applicant, objectors and Council officers in
attendance. The issues were discussed at length and there was no resolution and the objections
stand as received.

Summary of Grounds of Submissions/Objections
The objections are summarised below (bold), followed by the Town Planner’s Response (in italics).
Loss of privacy/overlooking

The objectors are concerned that they would suffer a loss of privacy due to overlooking from the
upper level windows of dwellings in the proposed development onto their properties.

Standard B22 of Clause 55 requires upper level habitable room windows of dwellings to be provided
with measures to prevent overlooking within 9m.

For the north-east elevation facing 14 Callaghan Street, all upper level windows would be provided
with obscure glazing up to 1.8m above finished floor level.
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The north-west elevation, facing 4/13 Blaby Street, upper level windows would have a minimum sill
height of 1.8m above finished floor level.

As such, there would be no overlooking impacts on adjoining properties from the proposed
development.

Visual bulk

The objectors to the north-west are concerned about the double storey form of Dwelling 3 encroaching
onto their secluded private open space and being viewed as a visually bulky element from there.

Bedroom 1 and the associated ensuite of Dwelling 3 would be setback a minimum of 4.47m from the
north-western boundary, increasing to 6.38m for Bedroom 2 of Dwelling 3. These setbacks and the
articulation provided are considered appropriate to minimise visual bulk when viewed from the
north-west.

Traffic/parking issues

The objectors are concerned that Callaghan Street is a court and already experiences significant
traffic and parking issues from the existing dwellings and from Noble Park Secondary College to the
south-east.

It is noted that Dwelling 1 is a 3 bedroom dwelling with 2 car parking spaces in a double garage and
Dwellings 2 and 3 are 2 bedroom dwellings with a single garage each. Therefore, sufficient car parking
is provided for residents on site in accordance with the requirement of Clause 52.06 of the Greater
Dandenong Planning Scheme. On-site visitor car parking is not required as less than 5 dwellings are
proposed.

Council’s Transport Planning Unit has reviewed the proposed development and they have no concerns
with the proposed development including the provision of car parking on the subject site or the effect
of traffic from the proposed development on the surrounding area.

Double storey nature of the development

The objectors are concerned that the double storey nature of the proposed development is contrary
to the existing single storey character of the area.

It is noted that there is currently an existing double storey dwelling on the subject site and an existing
double storey dwelling at 4 Callaghan Street. Clause 22.09 of the Greater Dandenong Planning
Scheme acknowledges that the future character of incremental change areas will evolve over time
to accommodate well designed and site responsive single and double storey dwellings. The subject
site has a direct interface with the Mile Creek reserve and the provision of double storey dwellings
along this interface would allow for greater passive surveillance opportunities. The location of the
subject site next to the reserve would limit the impact of a two storey built form in this location and
the large setbacks of the upper floors from neighbouring properties would also minimise any built
form impacts.
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Property values

The objectors are concerned that the proposed development would result in a loss of value for their
properties.

The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal has determined on numerous occasions that loss of
property values is not a planning consideration on which to refuse a planning permit application.

Overshadowing

The objectors are concerned that they will lose access to sunlight due to overshadowing from the
proposed development.

The site to the north-east at 14 Callaghan Street would have no overshadowing from the proposed
development. The site to the north-west at 4/13 Blaby Street would have some overshadowing from
the proposed development at 9am but would have no overshadowing at 10am, 12pm and 3pm.
Overall, 75% of the secluded private open space areas of the adjoining properties would receive at
least 5 hours of sunlight between 9am and 3pm on September 22, and therefore comply with the
requirements of the Planning Scheme.

Loss of views
The objectors are concerned about loss of views towards the existing trees along Mile Creek.

The Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal has determined on numerous occasions that views
are a privilege, not a right, and that loss of views is not a planning ground on which to refuse a planning
permit application.

Lack of detail on plans
The objectors are concerned that Dwelling 3 has not been shown on the plans.

A review of the elevations provided shows that Dwelling 3 has been shown from the north-eastern,
north-western and south-western perspectives.

Noise

The objectors are concerned that there will be a significant increase in noise as a result of the proposed
development.

It is not anticipated that the proposed development would result in a noise increase which is out of
character for a residential area.

Construction impacts

The objectors are concerned that the subject site will not be able to accommodate all of the trade
vehicles which would be associated with the construction of these dwellings.
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A Construction Management Plan can be provided as a condition of permit, if granted, to ensure that
construction vehicles associated with the proposed development do not cause inconvenience to
existing residents.

Assessment

The subject site is located within an established residential area and is well suited for the development
of medium density housing given that the site is located within easy walking distance of many
community facilities and public transport. The proposal also seeks to reduce pressure on the urban
fringe by providing three (3) dwellings where previously one (1) existed through the redevelopment
of the site, thereby ensuring that the housing required for the growing population is facilitated.

As required by the relevant provisions of the Planning Scheme, the proposed development has been
assessed against the following:

e Clause 55 (full assessment attached as attachment 5) as well as Schedule 1 to the General
Residential Zone;

e Clause 52.06 (full assessment attached as attachment 4); and
e Clause 22.09 (full assessment attached as attachment 3).

The proposal complies with all requirements of these clauses except in the instances detailed below,
where variations or conditions are required.

Use

As outlined in Clause 32.08-2 (General Residential Zone), a dwelling is listed as a Section 1 use,
and a planning permit is not required for the use of the proposal. However, a planning permit is
required for the buildings and works, which is discussed below.

Development
Planning Policy Framework / Local Planning Policy Framework

In considering the Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, Council
can establish that an acceptable proposal will be guided by:

) Clause 55 Two or more dwellings on a lot; and
e  Clause 22.09 Residential Development and Neighbourhood Character.

Each of these Clauses ensure that Council facilitates the orderly development of urban areas, which
is a specific objective of Clause 11.02 Settlement.

The objectives of Clause 15.01-1S Urban Design, Clause 15.01-2S Building Design and Clause
21.05-1 Built Form outline the key considerations in which a development must respond to urban
design, character, streetscapes and landscape issues.

It is considered that the proposed design response respects the preferred neighbourhood character
of the incremental change area by providing a medium density housing typology.
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The proposal is of a high quality urban design, with physical recession, articulation, varied use of
materials, textures and other visual interest.

The overall layout allows space for acceptable landscaping treatments such as a significant canopy
tree and shrubbery plantings within well-proportioned setback areas to allow growth to maturity.

The proposal is also located within an area subject to incremental change with other multi-unit
developments of a similar scale and massing being found within the surrounding residential area.
The proposal’s compliance with Clause 22.09 and Clause 55 (subject to conditions) ensures that the
development would achieve the objectives set out in Clause 15.01 and Clause 21.05-1.

As such, Council officers recommend that the application be approved subject to planning permit
conditions as necessary.

Clause 22.09 Assessment

An assessment against the design principles of Clause 22.09 is included at Attachment 3 of this
report. This proposal provides a design response which is consistent with the preferred character
envisaged by Clause 22.09, and is considered to comply with the requirements of this clause, including
with respect to the following:

Clause 22.09-3.3 Design principles for Incremental Change Areas — General Residential Zone - Bulk
and Built Form:

This clause outlines a preference for single storey dwellings at the rear of the sites in the incremental
change area. However, it goes on to state that two storey dwellings to the rear of a lot may be
considered where:

e  The visual impact of the building bulk does not adversely affect the identified future character
of the area;

e  Overlooking and/or overshadowing does not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring
properties;
e  The building bulk does not adversely affect the planting and future growth of canopy trees;

e  Sufficient side and rear boundary landscaping can be provided to screen adjoining properties;
and

° Upper storey components are well recessed from adjoining sensitive interfaces.

While Dwelling 3 would be a double storey dwelling, the proposal is considered acceptable in this
instance. Good side and rear setbacks are proposed for Dwelling 3 which would be well recessed
from adjoining sensitive interfaces to allow for substantial landscaping to lessen the appearance of
visual bulk to adjoining properties. Furthermore, the subject site is a unique site in that it adjoins a
reserve and the two storey dwelling to the rear would assist with passive surveillance of the reserve.

There would be no overlooking from any upper level habitable room windows of Dwelling 3, and it
would not overshadow adjoining properties to any significant extent. The dwelling would also be well
articulated and utilises differing materials to soften its impact.
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It is considered that all dwellings should be setback a minimum of 1m from the Mile Creek interface
at ground floor level and at least 1.5m at first floor level to reduce the impact of the proposed
development on the reserve, and improve this interface by removing blank walls directly abutting the
reserve. This can be required as a condition of permit, if granted.

Clause 55 Assessment

The proposal is considered to comply with the requirements of this Clause, except in the following
instances:

Clause 55.04-2 Standard B18 — Wallls on boundaries objective

Objective: “To ensure that the location, length and height of a wall on a boundary respects the existing
or preferred neighbourhood character and limits the impact on the amenity of existing dwellings”.

Dwelling 1 and 2’s combined wall on the south-western boundary would have a length of 10.96m,
whilst Dwelling 3’s wall on the south-western boundary would have a length of 7.61m. The total length
of walls on this boundary is 18.57m.

The standard allows 10m plus 25% of the remaining length of the boundary of an adjoining lot which
in this case is 25% of 28.47 which is 7.12m. The combined distance is 17.12m.

The length of wall proposed on boundary is 1.45m greater than that allowed under the standard.

As discussed above, it is considered that all dwellings should be setback at least 1m at ground floor
level and 1.5m at first floor level from the shared boundary with Mile Creek to improve this interface.
This, among other issues, would ensure compliance with the standard, and can be required as a
condition of permit, if granted (See Condition 1.3).

Clause 55.05-4 Standard B28 — Private Open Space objective

Objective: “To provide adequate private open space for the reasonable recreation and service needs
of residents”.

Dwelling 2 currently is shown with a private open space area of 40m?. This should be increased to a
minimum of 50m? as a condition of permit if granted to comply with the variation to Standard B28
contained in Schedule 1 to the General Residential Zone.

Increasing the ground floor setback of Dwelling 2 from the shared boundary with the Mile Creek
reserve to a minimum of 1m as a condition of permit, if granted, would help to achieve this (See
Condition 1.5).

Clause 55.06-4 Standard B34 — Site services objectives

Relevant objective: “Bin and recycling enclosures, mailboxes and other site facilities should be
adequate in size, durable, waterproof and blend in with the development”.

Condition 1.2 requires the location of gas meters for each dwelling to be shown on the plans to ensure
compliance with this clause.
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Car Parking

The proposal is considered to comply with the requirements of Clause 52.06 with respect to the
number of car parking spaces required (Clause 52.06-5) and design standard of car parking (Clause
52.06-9).

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Sensitivity

The subject site is within an area of Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Sensitivity.

A Cultural Heritage Management Plan is not required as the proposed development is exempt under
Regulation 10 of the Aboriginal Heritage Regulations 2018.

The construction of 3 or more dwellings on a lot is an exempt activity as the lot is not within 200m of
the coastal waters of Victoria, any sea within the limits of Victoria or the Murray River and the lot is
less than 0.11 hectares (or 1,100m?) in size being only 0.0730 hectares or 730m?2.

Environmentally Sustainable Development

A Built Environment Sustainability Scorecard (BESS) assessment has been submitted with the
application. A BESS score of 51% would be achieved by the proposed development which exceeds
the best practice requirement of 50%.

Measures being included to achieve this BESS score include the provision of 2,000L rainwater tank
for each dwelling; water efficient and drought-resistant landscaping (including native plants); the
provision of mulch in landscaped areas; water efficient shower heads, kitchen taps, bathroom taps,
dishwashers and toilets; and the provision of a raingarden. Conditions 7 and 8 of any permit granted
would require the development to be constructed and maintained in accordance with the approved
Sustainable Design Assessment.

Conclusion

The proposal is consistent with the provisions of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, including
the zoning requirements, local policy direction, application of Clauses 22.09, 52.06 and 55, and the
decision guidelines of Clause 65.
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Recommendation

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park for the Development of the land
for three (3) double storey dwellings in accordance with the plans submitted with the application
subject to the following conditions:

1. Before the development starts, amended plans to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The
amended plans must be drawn to scale with dimensions provided. The amended
plans must be generally in accordance with the plans submitted and assessed with
the application but modified to show:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3

1.4.

1.5

1.6.

1.7

1.8.

1.9.

Letterboxes and all other structures (including visually obstructive fencing
and landscaping) should be constructed to a maximum height of 900mm
or relocated clear of a splayed area (2m x 2.5m) along the frontage road at
access points in accordance with Clause 52.06-9 of the Greater Dandenong
Planning Scheme.

The location of gas meters for each dwelling.

All three (3) dwellings to be setback from the shared boundary with the Mile
Creek reserve at least 1m at ground floor level and 1.5m at first floor level.

Pedestrian access from the garage of Dwelling 2 to its private open space
on the ground floor plan.

Dwelling 2’s private open space area to be increased to a minimum of 50m?.

The removal of Dwelling 3’s upper level bathroom window.

Footing details of proposed Unit 3 of the development is to be provided to
demonstrate that the structure would not impact on the existing drainage
pipe within the rear easement.

Any changes required to satisfy Melbourne Water’s conditions.

A landscape plan in accordance with Condition 2.

When approved, these plans will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.
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2. Before the approved development starts, and before any trees or vegetation are
removed, a landscape plan to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be
submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The landscape plan must
be prepared by a person or firm with suitable qualifications to the satisfaction of
the Responsible Authority, drawn to scale with dimensions provided. The landscape
plan must show:

2.1. plans to accord with Condition 1 of this permit;

2.2. the site at a scale of 1:100/200, including site boundaries, existing and
proposed buildings, neighbouring buildings, car parking, access and exit
points, indicative topography and spot levels at the site corners, existing
and proposed vegetation, nature strip trees, easements and landscape
setbacks;

2.3. details of the proposed layout, type and height of fencing;

24. legend of all plant types, surfaces, materials and landscape items to be
used;
2.5. a plant schedule giving a description of botanical name, common name,

mature height and spread, pot size, purchase height (if a tree) and individual
plant quantities;

2.6. at least one (1) advanced canopy tree with a minimum planting height of
1.5 metres within the rear secluded open space areas of each dwelling and
within the front yard of Dwelling 1;

2.7. Reduced paving or deck areas within the secluded open space area of the
proposed dwellings on a permeable base with more intensive landscaping.

When approved, the landscape plan will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

The provisions, recommendations and requirements of the landscape plan must be
implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Landscaping in accordance with the endorsed landscaping plan and schedule must
be completed before the dwellings are occupied.
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10.

Prior to the endorsement of the plans under Condition 1, a Construction Management
Plan must be provided to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority and must
address, amongst other things, measures to minimise inconvenience to residents
along Callaghan Street from construction vehicles associated with the proposed
development during the construction phase of development.

The provisions, recommendations and requirements of the endorsed Arborist Report
must be implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority. No alterations to the approved Arborist Report assessment can occur
without prior written consent from the responsible authority.

Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the layout of the
land and the size, design and location of the buildings and works permitted must
always accord with the endorsed plans and must not be altered or modified.

Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the approved
dwellings must not be occupied until all buildings and works and the conditions of
this permit have been complied with.

The development is to be constructed in accordance with the design initiatives
included in the approved Sustainable Design Assessment (prepared by
Passivenergy), job no.: 190463, dated 29 July 2019) to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority.

The provisions, recommendations and requirements of the endorsed SDA must be
implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
No alterations to the approved sustainable desigh assessment can occur without
prior written consent from the responsible authority.

Provision must be made for the drainage for proposed development including
landscaped and paved areas, all to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

The connection of the internal drainage infrastructure to the LPD must be to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. Collected stormwater must be retained
onsite and discharged into the drainage system at pre development peak discharge
rates as stated in the LPD approval letter. Approval of drainage plan including any
retention system within the property boundary is required. Prior to the drainage
plans being approved, a plan checking fee of 0.75% and supervision fee of 2.5% of
the estimated costs of works is to be paid to Council.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, all piping and ducting above the ground
floor storey of the building, except downpipes, must be concealed to the satisfaction
of the Responsible Authority.

Access to the site and any associated roadwork must be constructed, all to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. Note all existing vehicle crossing will
need to be removed and reinstate with kerb in accordance with Council Standards.
Also, the developer will need to obtain a Vehicle Crossing Permit from Council.

Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, floor levels
shown on the endorsed plan/s must not be altered or modified.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, the development must be provided
with external lighting capable of illuminating access to each garage, car parking
space and pedestrian walkway. Lighting must be located, directed and shielded to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority so as to prevent any adverse effect
outside the land.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, the obscure glazing to the windows
shown on the endorsed plans must be provided through frosted glass or similarly
treated glass. Adhesive film or similar removable material must not be used.

All glazing must at all times be maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, all boundary walls in the development
must be constructed, cleaned and finished to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

Melbourne Water Conditions

171. Finished floor levels of the proposed dwellings must be set no lower than
30.91 metres to AHD which is 600mm above the applicable flood level for
the property of 30.31 metres to AHD.

17.2. Finished floor levels of the proposed garages must be set no lower than
30.31 metres to AHD.
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17.3. A setback of 3m must be maintained along the south-eastern boundary line.
(Callaghan Street) This setback must be set on natural ground surface levels
with no earth filling or raised solid landscaping proposed within.

17.4. No earth filling must be placed outside of the building footprint with the
exception of minimal fill required for ramping to garages provided this is
outside of the required front setback. The gradient of the ramps to the
garages must be set as per relevant building code in order to minimise fill
on the property.

17.5. Private Open Spaces must be set at natural surface levels.

17.6. Fencing (if any) fronting Callaghan Street must be of a 50% open style of
construction.

18. This permit will expire if:-

18.1. The development or any stage of it does not start within two (2) years of
the date of this permit, or

18.2. The development or any stage of it is not completed within four (4) years
of the date of this permit.

Before the permit expires or within six (6) months afterwards the owner or occupier
of the land may in writing request the Responsible Authority to extend the expiry
date.

The owner or occupier of the land may in writing request the Responsible Authority
to extend the expiry date to complete the development or a stage of the development

if:

(a) the request for the extension is made within twelve (12) months after the
permit expires; and

(b) the development or stage started lawfully before the permit expired.
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Permit Notes

- Preliminary land and flood level information available at Melbourne Water indicates
that the above property is subject to flooding from Mile Creek Drain (Dr 1010). The
applicable 1% AEP flood level for the property is 30.31 metres to Australian Height
Datum (AHD).

- A flood dispensation is to be obtained prior to issue of Building Permit.

- The property has probability of flooding from Melbourne Water’s drainage system.

- The property is identified to be subject to flooding in major rain events. An application
for Report and Consent for Flooding is required. Asset Management Team is to be
contacted to confirm the minimum finished floor level (FFL) of the proposed
development.

- Any works undertaken within the road reservation and easements will require the
developer to obtain a Civil Works Permit from Council.

- Prior to works commencing the developer will need to obtain an Asset Protection
Permit from Council.

- A Building Approval is required prior to the commencement of the approved
development. This planning permit does not constitute any building approval.

- Approval of any retention system within the property boundary is required by the
relevant building surveyor.

- Before commencement of the development occurs, the applicant should contact
the City of Greater Dandenong’s Civil Development and Design Unit regarding legal
point of discharge, new crossings, building over easements, etc.

- As this is an established site, the proposed internal drainage should be connected
to the existing legal point of discharge. The applicant may apply for local drainage
information, if available; otherwise on site verification should be undertaken by the
applicant.
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A Vehicle Crossing Permit must be obtained from Council for all vehicular crossings
prior to construction of the crossings. You may be required to apply for a Asset
Protection Permit from Council’s engineering services. Queries regarding engineering
requirements can be directed to Council’s general phone number on 8571 1000.

- No buildings or works shall be constructed over any easement without the written
consent of the relevant authorities.

This permit has been granted on the basis that consent to build over any easement
will be obtained from the relevant authority. If consent is not able to be obtained,
the development plan will be required to be amended.

- An application must be made with Council’s Parks Department for any street tree
removal. Street trees must only be removed by or under the supervision of the
Council. Prior to removal of any tree the replacement cost must be paid to Council.

MINUTE 1331

Moved by: Cr Peter Brown
Seconded by: Cr Tim Dark

That Council resolves to Refuse to grant a planning permit in respect of the land known as
and described as 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park, for the development of the land for three
(3) storey dwellings on the following grounds:

1. Clause 22.09-3.1 - Site design is not satisfied because the proposed
development would impact adversely on neighbours in Blaby Street because
of minimal setback which arguably is less than the 3 metres which should
arguably be applied, as the proposal would fail to "preserve the amenity of
adjoining dwellings through responsive site design.." Additionally, the site
design does not "ensure that building height, massing articulation responds
sensitively to existing residential interfaces etc."

2, Clause 22.09-3.3 - Preferred housing type is for Incremental Change but in
Callaghan Street, the change has already incrementally occurred as old
dwellings have been replaced by new stand-alone single-story dwellings which
characterise the street and the proposed development is antithetical to the
concept of practical incremental change in the immediate area;

3. 22.09-3.3 - Bulk and built form would fail to “ensure that the built form respects
the scale of existing prevailing built form character and (fails to) respond to
site circumstances and streetscape”;
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4. 22.09-03 - Bulk and built form must ensure “overlooking and/or overshadowing
does not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring properties”. The
residential dwelling in Blaby Street would suffer from both overlooking and
a degree of overshadowing. The extent of overlooking is emphasised by an
Officer recommendation that the window to the proposed bathroom on the
first floor of the proposed dwelling be deleted. This may reduce overlooking
but create a bathroom without natural light and ventilation, which is clearly
undesirable in a newly proposed building;

5. Clause 55.02-1 Standard B1: the application FAILS to ensure “the design
response must be appropriate to the neighbourhood and the site” and also
FAILS to ensure that “the proposed design must respect the existing or
preferred neighbourhood character and respond to the features of the site”.
The existing dwelling is a dilapidated weatherboard two storey at the end of
Callaghan street with properties in the street being predominantly new single
storey dwellings with one two storey property 80 metres away at the other
end of the street. The neighbourhood character has recently been established
and this proposal fails to recognise and appreciate that character; and

6. Clause 55.04-2 Standard B18: Walls on boundaries: this condition clearly fails
if the Officer report is correct where it is stated (p.94 report) that “the length
of wall proposed on boundary is 1.45 m greater than that allowed under the
standard”.

CARRIED
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STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION — NO. 16 CALLAGHAN STREET, NOBLE
PARK 3174 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN19/0295)

ATTACHMENT 1

SUBMITTED PLANS

PAGES 24 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.
PLN19/0295) (Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION — NO. 16 CALLAGHAN STREET, NOBLE
PARK 3174 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN19/0295)

ATTACHMENT 2

LOCATION OF OBJECTORS

PAGES 2 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 16 CALLAGHAN STREET, NOBLE
PARK 3174 (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN19/0295)

ATTACHMENT 3

CLAUSE 22.09 ASSESSMENT

PAGES 9 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.

PLN19/0295) (Cont.)
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.
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City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020

2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 16 Callaghan Street, Noble Park 3174 (Planning Application No.

PLN19/0295) (Cont.)

Diagram B3 North-facing windows
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A north facing window is a window with an axis perpendicular to its surface orientated north 20 degrees

west to north 30 degrees east.

pplies where existing HRW is between 207

" oast from north
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

3 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC

Comment
John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer

There are a number of questions this evening. One only has requested to convey their question
directly to the Council. | will refer to that first. Asher Coleman has a question of the Council if he
would like to come forward to the microphone please.

Question (Verbal)

Asher Coleman. Narre Warren

Thank you and also congratulations for declaring the climate emergency last meeting. My question
is that, | read in the last Sustainability's Reference Committees November meeting minutes in tonight's
agenda that extra resourcing would be needed for an emergency response to climate change if
Dandenong declared a climate emergency. Since they declared last meeting, what extra resourcing
planning is planned in the 2020/21 financial year?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Management is aware of the extra demands in response to climate change and there is currently an
assessment being undertaken on what that might mean for the realignment of existing resources that
is, not just in the department but across the organisation as well as the needs in terms of both human
and infrastructure resourcing going forward. We have commenced that exercise now and it will be
an exercise that will take us a little bit into the future as we go forward. As you yourself would
understand, responding to a climate change emergency could fundamentally change the way we do
a lot of things so it is not going to be a quick response but we have commenced that exercise.

Question
Janice Vass. Springvale South

At a compulsory conference on 20 January 2020, Japara v Greater Dandenong Council, the Victorian
Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) member made comments about the inadequate preparation
by the solicitor from Maddocks Lawyers representing the Greater Dandenong Council. | am aware
Maddocks have been used in similar matters regarding Japara by other Councils including Knox City
Council. My questions are:

Who from Greater Dandenong Council (GDC) is responsible for appointment of law firms and for
instructing in these VCAT matters?

Who is responsible from GDC for monitoring whether the preparation and performance of the appointed
legal representation is competent?

Who does this person or persons from GDC report to after each stage of proceedings; a designated
Councillor or Councillors, the Chief Executive Officer or the Mayor?
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3 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC (Cont.)

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Senior officers within the Planning Department are responsible for appointing legal representation
for VCAT matters, assessing submissions and receiving or reviewing the outcomes of those VCAT
matters. In addition, Council ensures that a planning officer attends VCAT matters where external
legal representation is utilised, to both observe and assist with the representation. In this particular
matter, the Council officer in attendance did not hear any such alleged comments from the VCAT
member and rather noted the representation was carried out in a diligent and professional manner.
It is also important to note that a compulsory conference which is what that meeting was as referred
to in the question, was a negotiation between parties to see if a suitable outcome could be reached.
It was not a full hearing where there was an expectation that a detailed submission be prepared and
presented to VCAT.

Question
Phiny Ung, Dandenong

| think it must be about two years since the plans for the upgrade of Hemming Street, Dandenong
shopping strip were announced. Driving past there today, it was still looking bleak but still full of
potential to be transformed into somewhere where people would like to visit, shop and meet people
which would be more appealing and interesting. When is it going to happen?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

With regards to that particular project, the project has actually been out to tender and we are currently
negotiating with the preferred contractor with regards to fitting in a number of projects that we would
like to see take place in that area within the Budget. Unfortunately, it was a little bit over budget but
we are hopeful that the works can commence in the next two months.

Question
Sylvia Mastrogiovanni, Dandenong

What date will public consultation with Dandenong residents on the Dandenong Community Hub
feasibility study start?

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

Thank you for the question concerning the proposed Dandenong Community Hub project. The
development of the needs analysis study has now commenced. An analysis of all available material
related to the development of the Dandenong Hub is currently being conducted along with relevant
stakeholder engagement. Once this process has been completed, we are expecting to conduct public
consultation on what we have learned and testing our findings with the wider community. The
consultation process is currently scheduled to commence around mid-March through to April this
year and the contact details have been noted so we can ensure that Sylvia Mastrogiovanni is contacted
too.

24257
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3 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC (Cont.)

Question
Lisa Tran, Springvale

Is the rumour true that none of the community spaces in the new Springvale building will be available
for hire to the public or that there will be restrictions on what spaces can be booked? It will be very
disappointing if Springvale residents cannot get access to their own new building.

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

The meeting community rooms in the new Springvale Community Hub will definitely be available for
members of the community to hire. The purpose of the rooms is to provide welcoming, inspiring and
accessible spaces for the community to gather. We anticipate that bookings will be open soon and

| recommend that Ms Tran keep an eye on details on our website and the community newsletter for
further information.

Question
Emily Sloan. Noble Park

Council has shown leadership on climate change by declaring climate emergency with full support
from the people of Greater Dandenong. When will Council back this up with a commitment to
investigate regulation and control over trees on private land in terms of both development proposals
and also existing dwellings? Tree canopy saves money by cooling the air and improves aesthetics
which translates to house prices.

Response
Jody Bosman. Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Officers are already investigating the role which might be played by the private sector in developing
or developments by the private sector and achieving Council stated commitment to increasing its
municipal canopy coverage. A report in this regard will be brought before Councillors for discussion
in the foreseeable future.

Question
Margaret Harrison, Dandenong North

What is going to happen to the site on the corner of Gladstone Road and Princes Highway now that
Kaufland has pulled out? | would like to suggest that it would be a great site for an aged care facility,
seeing we have an aging population in the Greater Dandenong area.

Response
John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer

In response, | could advise, that Council has yet to receive formal advice from Kaufland about its
intentions vis-a-vis a development in this municipality and/or in relation to that particular site. First
and foremost we would want to talk to the current landowner being Kaufland, about its intentions for
the site. We secondly, thank Margaret Harrison for the suggestion. Council is always interested in
pursuing opportunities for advancing service delivery for its own community. That is a very large and
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3 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC (Cont.)

private site. It would be a very expensive site but it is never beyond Council to consider what options
may exist for even a combination of service delivery and commercial activity going into the future.
We will first and foremost seek to understand from Kaufland about its intentions and secondly, we
will take suggestions of the type made into consideration.

Question
Colin Riddiford, Dandenong North

What, if anything can Council do to lift the image of the city? | have lived in the city for nearly 60
years and | am not happy with the way the city is being reported on?

Response
John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer

Thank you Mr Riddiford. We know how committed you are to this municipality. | would be surprised
if anyone in this Chamber or this municipality was happy about any negative publicity associated with
the City of Greater Dandenong. We spend a lot of time and effort, | think as you know, to improve
and enhance the image and reputation of this city. Council has invested significantly over a long
period of time to lift the appeal, amenity, image and reputation and we too are disappointed. | assume
you may be referring to new reports published today and Council's specific actions in relation to
matters of that type are first and foremost to understand and comprehend the messages that are
being conveyed through that information; to understand or separate reality from perception or reality
from matters that are not real and then work towards addressing them. The work that Council has
historically done for instance, around the Dandenong Railway Station and Noble Park Railway Station
in the past, has been a tripartite arrangement between Local Government, State Government and in
certain instances, Federal Government and Council. In fact, there was even a conversation earlier
this evening about the importance of jumping on this particular issue today and seeking to address
the matters raised. You can rest assured that we will use the resources of Council to further advance
the best interests of the city and the people of the city.

John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer tabled a listing of responses to questions taken on
notice/requiring further action at the previous Council meeting. A copy of the responses is
provided as an attachment.
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4 OFFICERS' REPORTS - PART TWO

41 CONTRACTS

4.1.1 Contract No. 1920-15 - Construction of a Car Park and Associated Works at Tatterson
Park, Keysborough

File 1d: gA 405806
Responsible Officer: Director Business, Engineering and Major
Projects
Report Summary

This report outlines the tender process undertaken to select a suitably qualified and experienced
contractor for the construction of Car Park Stage 3B in accordance with the Tatterson Park Masterplan.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council awards Contract 1920-15 for the construction of separable
portion Car Park Stage 3B to Entracon Civil Pty Ltd, for a fixed lump sum price of One Million, Nine
Hundred and Nineteen Thousand and Seventy Four Dollars and Twenty Nine Cents ($1,919,074.21)
including GST of $174,461.29 and including a Provisional sum of ($163,473.75 including GST) for
specific items detailed in the project Bill of Quantities (BOQ) Stage R3B lump sum price breakdown.

Provisional items may be removed from the scope at the discretion of Superintendent. Payments
shall be made for the actual quantity authorised by the Superintendent and measured during
construction.

This is a Lump Sum Contract and not subject to rise and fall adjustment.
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4.1.1 Contract No. 1920-15 - Construction of a Car Park and Associated Works at Tatterson Park,
Keysborough (Cont.)

Introduction

This Contract is for the construction of a new car park described as Stage 3B at Tatterson Park in
Keysborough.

A comprehensive master planning exercise has been undertaken identifying a series of infrastructure
improvement works that will convert Tatterson Park into a regional multipurpose park that provides
for a range of active and passive recreation.

The detailed design of the proposed road and related infrastructure improvement work has been
developed in accordance with the approved Master Plan and has been split into five stages with the
construction of stages 1 & 2 having been successfully completed. Stage 3 works for the construction
of two car parks has been split into Stages 3A & 3B due to the extent of work required and to minimize
disruption to Springers Leisure Centre.

This tender package sought pricing for stage 3B, construction of a car park associated drainage &
electrical works.

Originally Stage 3A was programmed to be completed first, however following the decision to locate
the Keysborough South Community Hub within Tatterson Park it became necessary to complete the
Stage 3B car park first.

Tender Process

This tender was advertised in The Age Newspaper and on Council’'s website on Saturday 24 August
2019, with a closing time and date of 2.00pm Tuesday 17 September 2019

Companies wishing to tender for this project were invited to attend a site briefing session held on

Friday 30 August 2019 conducted by the Project Manager and the engaged Civil Engineering and
Design Consultant — Argot Consultants. Twelve (12) prospective contractors attended the briefing
session.

At the close of the tender advertising period, submissions were received from eleven (11) companies
as indicated below:

(1) 2Construct Pty Ltd

(2) Ace Infrastructure Pty Ltd

(3) Bitu-mill (Civil) Pty Ltd

(4) Contek Constructions Pty Ltd
(5) Drouin Concrete Pipes & Products Pty Ltd
(6) Entracon Civil Pty Ltd

(7) Gearon Civil Pty Ltd

(8) Parkinson Group (VIC) Pty Ltd
(9) Port Shipping Containers

(10) South East Line Marking

(11) Winslow Constructors Pty Ltd
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4.1.1 Contract No. 1920-15 - Construction of a Car Park and Associated Works at Tatterson Park,
Keysborough (Cont.)

Tenderers were requested to submit a Lump Sum price including a lump sum price breakdown for
all items listed in the Bill of Quantities (BOQ) and a Schedule of Rates variations.
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4.1.1 Contract No. 1920-15 - Construction of a Car Park and Associated Works at Tatterson Park,
Keysborough (Cont.)

The following tender submissions were declared ‘Non Submissions’ as they didn’t not complete any
of Councils tender schedules:

(1) Drouin Concrete Pipes & Products Pty Ltd
(2) Port Shipping Containers
(3) South East Line Marking

Lump Sum — A lump sum contract or a stipulated sum contract will require that the
supplier agree to provide specified services for a stipulated or fixed price.

Tender Evaluation

The evaluation panel comprised of the Coordinator Open Space Projects, Project Engineer, and
Contracts Officer, with Occupational Health and Safety and Environmental Management consultants
providing specialist advice.

During the early stages of the tender evaluation process the evaluation panel was informed of the
announcement that the selected location of the proposed Keysborough South Community Hub is
within Tatterson Park, Keysborough. As the proposed location of the Hub is in the vicinity of the Stage
3B car park it is now preferred that the construction of Stage 3B car park be completed before the
Stage 3A car park. Therefore all tenderers were contacted and advised of this issue and were
requested for provide Council with their repriced tender submission based on the Stage 3B car park
being completed first and that the award of the Stage 3A works be based on the successful completion
and performance of Stage 3B works subject to further funding.

All tender submissions were evaluated using Council’s Weighted Attributed Value Selection Method.
The advertised evaluation criteria and the allocated weightings for evaluation are as follows:

Evaluation Criteria Weighting

1 Price 40%

2 Relevant Experience & Past Performance 25%

3 Project Plan & Methodology 25%

4 Local Industry 5%

5 Social Procurement 5%

6 OHS Management System Pass/Fail
7 Environmental Management System Pass/Fail

Each criterion is ranked on a point score between 0 (fail) and 5 (excellent). These rankings are then
multiplied by the weighting to give a weighted attribute ranking for each criterion and totalled to give
an overall evaluation score for all criteria.
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Score | Scoring Parameter Description
5 Excellent
4 Very Good
3 Good, Better than Average
2 Acceptable
1 Marginally Acceptable (Success Not Assured)
0 Not Acceptable

The following tender submissions were declared ‘Non-Conforming’ and therefore were not considered
further.

(1) Bitu-mill (Civil) Pty Ltd
(2) Winslow Constructors Pty Ltd

The remaining tender submissions were each assessed against the advertised evaluation criteria.
The weighted attribute point scores resulting from the assessment are shown in rank order on the
following table.

Following an evaluation of the tenders, the evaluation panel allocated the comparative point score
based on the advertised evaluation criteria. See table below:

Tenderer Pr_| ce NontPnoe OH&S ENV U

Points Points Score
Entracon Civil 1.15 2.36 PASS PASS 3.51
2Construct 0.98 2.25 PASS PASS 3.23
ACE Infrastructure 1.10 2.05 Not Not 3.15

Assessed | Assessed

Contek Constructions 1.02 2.00 PASS PASS 3.02
Gearon Civil 0.56 2.03 Not Not 259

Assessed | Assessed

Parkinson Group (VIC) 0.46 1.63 PASS PASS 2.09

Note 1: The higher the price score — lower the tendered price.
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Note 2: The higher the non-price score — represents better capability and capacity to undertake
the service.

The evaluation panel agreed to invite tenderers Entracon Civil Pty Ltd and 2Construct to a pre selection
interview based on their price and experience completing similar projects including Stages 1 & 2 of
the Tatterson Park Master Plan. The primary purpose of this meeting was to clarify several assumptions
they had made and to confirm their pricing.

Both 2Construct Pty Ltd and Entracon Civil Pty Ltd answered all questions to the satisfaction of the
interview panel and were able to demonstrate a good understanding of the project, describe their
construction methodology in detail and give the panel some additional information about the business
and chosen sub-contractors.

At the conclusion of the tender evaluation process described above, the evaluation panel agreed that
the tender submission from Entracon Civil Pty Ltd would provide the Best Value outcome for Council.

Reference checks were not conducted for Entracon Civil as they are well known to Council, having
recently completed Stages 1 & 2 of the Tatterson Park Master Plan works and they are also a Council
panel contractor for the Annual Supply of Concrete and Drainage Works.

Note 1: The higher the price score — lower the tendered price.

Note 2: The higher the non-price score — represents better capability and capacity to undertake
the service.

Financial Implications

The resource requirements associated with this report are $1,744,612.92 excluding GST compared
to the available budget allocation of $1,836,093.00 excluding GST for this purpose.

Note: A lump sum contract or a stipulated sum contract will require that the supplier agree to
provide specified services for a stipulated or fixed price.

Social Procurement

Social procurement was considered when assessing the tender submissions and Entracon Civil Pty
Ltd provided the following responses: Entracon is a equal opportunity employer and employs staff
on a competency basis regardless of race, religion, disability or age. They provided a copy of their
Equal Opportunity policy.

Local Industry

Local industry was considered when assessing the tender submissions. Entracon Civil Pty Ltd have
their office and depot located within the Greater Dandenong municipal boundary, they estimated that
they will source 90% Labour, 50% Materials, 90% Plant and 100% of their Supervision from sources
within the City of Greater Dandenong boundary.
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Consultation

During the tender evaluation process and in preparation of this report, relevant Council Officers from
Engineering Services, Council's Occupational Health & Safety and Environmental Planning were all
consulted.

Conclusion

At the conclusion of the tender evaluation process the evaluation panel agreed that the tender
submission from Entracon Civil Pty Ltd represented the Best Value outcome for Council and should
be accepted due to:

1) Their conforming and lowest priced tender submission.

2) Their very good and relevant working experience with Council, having recently successfully
completed Stages 1 & 2 (road and related infrastructure) of the Tatterson Park Master Plan.

3) Their level of experience, staff resources and sub-contractor selection.
4) Their JAS-ANZ registered and certified management systems.

5) Receiving a Pass for their Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S) and Environmental
Management Systems,

6) They are registered and pre-qualified with Rapid Global, Council’s Contractor, Risk
management & Compliance system,

6) They are a Vic Roads pre qualified contractor for R1 (Road Construction)
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Recommendation

That Council:

1. accepts the tender submission from Entracon Civil Pty Ltd for the Construction of
Stage 3B car park & associated works at Tatterson Park, Keysborough for a fixed
lump sum price of One Million, Nine Hundred and Nineteen Thousand, Seventy Four
Dollars and Twenty Nine Cents (1,919,074.21) including GST of $174,461.29 and
including a Provisional sum of 163,473.75 including GST; and Nine Hundred and
Nineteen Thousand, Seventy Four Dollars and Twenty Nine Cents (1,919,074.21)
including GST of $174,461.29 and including a Provisional sum of 163,473.75 including

GST; and
2. signs and seals the contract documents when prepared.
MINUTE 1332

Moved by: Cr Angela Long
Seconded by: Cr Matthew Kirwan

That Council:

1. accepts the tender submission from Entracon Civil Pty Ltd for the Construction of
Stage 3B car park & associated works at Tatterson Park, Keysborough for a fixed
lump sum price of One Million, Nine Hundred and Nineteen Thousand, Seventy Four
Dollars and Twenty Nine Cents (1,919,074.21) including GST of $174,461.29 and
including a Provisional sum of 163,473.75 including GST; and Nine Hundred and
Nineteen Thousand, Seventy Four Dollars and Twenty Nine Cents (1,919,074.21)
including GST of $174,461.29 and including a Provisional sum of 163,473.75 including
GST; and

2. signs and seals the contract documents when prepared.

CARRIED
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4.2 POLICY AND STRATEGY
4.2.1 Q2 Quarterly Performance Report

File 1d:
Responsible Officer:

Attachments:

Director Corporate Services

Quarterly Performance Report 1 October — 31
December 2019
Financial Report 1 July — 31 December 2019

Report Summary

This report details Council’s progress for the period 1 October to 31 December 2019 against
performance targets outlined in the Council Plan 2017-21 and the Amended Budget 2019-20.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council notes the achievements against the Council Plan indicators
and the Amended Budget for the period ending 31 December 2019.
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Background

Council adopted the Council Plan 2017-21 (Revised 2019) and Annual Plan 2019-20 on Tuesday 11
June 2019, and the Amended Budget on Monday 9 September 2019.

The Council Plan 2017-21 outlines the vision and objectives of the current Council over the four years
of its term in office. This document guides service delivery, innovation and good governance, and

provides the foundation for the corporate planning framework for all business activities. The Council
Plan also guides the budget, service delivery priorities and the continuous improvement of our services.

The Council Plan 2017-21 and Annual Budget 2019-20 are made available to residents through the
Customer Service Centres, libraries and on Council’s website at www.greaterdandenong.com

Progress against performance targets for the period 1 October to 31 December 2019 is outlined in
two components of this report:

Part 1 — The Quarterly Performance Report details the achievements for the Council Plan Indicators
from the Council Plan 2017-21.

Part 2 — The Financial Report is designed to inform Councillors of the results of operations for the
period 1 July to 31 December 2019 including financial performance against the Amended Budget
adopted by Council on Monday 9 September 2019.

Part 1 and Attachment 1: Quarterly Performance Report for the period 1 October to 31 December
2019

Performance highlights against the Council Plan strategic objectives include:

A vibrant, connected and safe community

e Little Day Out was held on 6 October attracting 9,000 people.

° New Year’s Eve in the Square attracted approximately 16,000 people and included a Bushfire
Appeal with proceeds going to the CFA.

e  Council received a grant through VicHealth’s ‘This Girl Can’ of $13,800 to run 16 physical activities
for women and girls. These events will be scheduled for March 2020.

e  Another successful Walk Against Family Violence was held in November.

e  South East Volunteers was re-awarded the Greater Dandenong Volunteer Resource Service
contract in December.

A creative city that respects and embraces diversity

e 60 people attended a Council hosted all abilities sporting event at NPAC in line with International
Day of Persons with Disabilities.

e  Atotal of 22 events were held during the quarter.

e  The HOME exhibition was launched on 5 October with over 100 people attending throughout
the day. In total the exhibition attracted over 900 visitors which was an increase on the 2018
attendance.
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Walker Street Gallery attendance for the period was 11,147.
334 people attended the Short Cuts Film Festival which is the highest attendance since it started.

Views to Council’s heritage civic collection on ehive increased from 3,331 in Q1 to 7,391 this
quarter.

A healthy, liveable and sustainable city

The Single Use Plastics Policy was adopted by Council on 9 December.

The Waste Education Program saw community engagement activities delivered to 916 residents,
YTD 1,106 residents have been engaged.

The 2019 Sustainability Awards Night was held on 18 November and planning has commenced
for the Sustainability Festival to be held in April.

Council’s Capital Works Program is progressing well with over 65 per cent of the works in
procurement, construction or complete.
A total of 10 audits were conducted on materials recycling processing sites and a further 12

additional audits were conducted in conjunction with Victoria Police and the EPA targeting scrap
metal recyclers.

A city planned for the future

The overall Springvale Community Precinct project is tracking satisfactorily with the building
portion completion due in April.
The completed Springvale Activity Centre Structure Plan Planning Scheme Amendment has

received ministerial authorisation and was publicly exhibited, submissions closing in early
December.

The site within Tatterson Park for the Keysborough South Community Hub was endorsed by
Council on 11 November.

Stage 3B of the Afghan Bazaar Cultural Precinct streetscape was completed in December. This
included new pavements, realigned curbs, new street trees and furniture.

The final design package for the Masonic Hall Art Gallery has been received and the tender is
planned to be advertised in late January.

A diverse and growing economy

18 business network activities were conducted bringing the total YTD to 39.

The Career Education Association of Victoria (CEAV) career guidance project achieved significant
increases in the work readiness of disadvantaged jobseekers in Dandenong and Doveton,
exceeding targets for engaging jobseekers in education, volunteering or employment.

Two cultural and food tours were held.
Five workshops were held as part of the small business workshop series.

This quarter focused heavily on global trends for business and industry with a number of activities
being delivered.

An open and effective Council
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e  Advocacy activities undertaken in this quarter included support for the ‘Raise the Rate’ campaign,
a federal initiative to raise minimum payments for the unemployed in light of high living costs,
and the 16 Days of Activism’ campaign against family violence.

e  Social media growth was 3.5 per cent.
e  Council agreed to participate in the Community Satisfaction Survey again in 2020.

e  Mounting for the second Urban Screen, to be installed as part of the Springvale Community
Precinct, has been prepared and the screen has been ordered.

e  Consultation activities were completed for the 2020-21 Annual Budget. 32 people, 31 of which
were residents, responded with ideas.

e  The new Meeting Procedure Local Law was endorsed by Council on 14 October.
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Part 2 and Attachment 2: Financial Report for the period 1 July to 31 December 2019

The attached financial report is designed to inform Councillors of the results of operations for the
period 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 including financial performance against the Mid-Year Budget
adopted by Council on 9 December 2019.

The financial report incorporates a set of Financial Statements and a Directorate Analysis of financial
performance by Business Unit. The following are contained in the Attachment:

° Income Statement

° Balance Sheet

e  (Cash Flow Statement

° Capital Expenditure Statement
e  Capital Expenditure report

° Investment Report

° Directorate Analysis

Whilst the Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,
they contain several items which are “non-cash” in nature such as depreciation on assets and the
written down (book) value of assets sold. They also exclude capital expenditure, new borrowings and
loan repayments and as such, these Statements do not provide an accurate indication of the
surplus/deficit cash position within a financial year.

The table on the following page provides a management accounting summary of the financial
performance for the period 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 which removes non-cash items and
adds back cash items that are excluded from the financial statements.
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for the period 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

Description

Income Statement

Management Accounting Summary

YEAR TODATE

ACTUAL
5000

MID ¥YEAR VARIANCE

BUDGET Faw{unfav)

5000 F000

MID YEAR
BUDGET
5000

FULL YEAR

ORIGMAL VARIANCE

BUDGET
5000

Faw [unfav)
F000

Income: 108 828 108,251 1,875 222238 224 T26 (2,458)
Expenditure 88817 91,893 5078 1965512 187,808 {7, 708)
Net surplus - ongoing operations 22009 16258 6,751 26718 36,920 (10,204}
Management Accounting reconciliation

Add back (less) non cash ifem 2

Depreciation 15,045 15,045 - 30,818 29,818 1,000
Contribuions non-monetary as sets 2891) {2,885 4 {15,000} {15,000} -
Prior year capital expenditre unable to be

capilised 1.0032 - 1,003 - - -
‘Writlen down value of assek solddispos ed 158 120 = 300 300 -
Sub total 13371 12,300 1,0M 16,116 15,116 1,000
Net operating surplus 35,380 27,558 7822 42832 g2 036 (9,204}
Addfezs non operating cash ifem =

Capital expenditure 24033 32,097 8,084 53,823 69,289 {24,534)
Net rans frs o (from) resenes {12770} {13,004 234} {22,154) {15, 749) 8,405
Loan repayments 8.r2r7 8,727 - 8834 8,496 {138}
Loan proceeds - - - {10,000} {10,000} -
Sub total 17950 25820 7,830 70,303 52,038 (18,267}
Cash surplus [deficit) 17,390 1,738 15,652 (27 4T1) - (27, 4T1)
Accumulated surplus brought forward - - - 27471 - 747
Surplus [deficit) position 17,390 1,738 15,652 - - -

Results for the period 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

The overall management accounting result (after removing non-cash items) for the period 1 July 2019
to 31 December 2019 shows a favourable variance between the budget and actual of $15.65 million.
The variance is mainly due to lower than anticipated capital expenditure to date and a favourable
surplus from ongoing operations (both lower than anticipated operating expenditure and higher than

anticipated income).

Capital expenditure is $8.06 million lower than the year to date budget (with a further $19.27 million
committed at 31 December 2019). Most of the delayed expenditure relates to property and infrastructure

projects.
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INCOME

Income for the period ended 31 December 2019 is favourable against budget. This is primarily due
to the following:

Other income ($684,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to better than anticipated interest
return on investments, Civic Facilities rental income, insurance recoveries and asset protection
reinstatement income (Corporate Services $485,000 and Engineering Services $206,000).

Grants — operating ($628,000 favourable) — Favourable variance mainly due to additional funding
received for Family Day Care ($520,000), which will be offset by higher service delivery costs.

Contributions — monetary ($339,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to unbudgeted income
received from developers in lieu of future maintenance responsibilities at Logis and Somerfield Offset
Reserves (Engineering Services $314,000). This income will be transferred to reserves to fund the
future maintenance responsibilities.

Rates and waste charges ($113,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to supplementary
rates and maintenance levy (transferred to reserves) (Corporate Accounting $113,000).

These favourable variances are partly offset by an unfavourable variance in:

User fees ($135,000 unfavourable) — Mainly due to lower than expected income from food registration
renewals and on-street parking ticket machines/meters, building permits and asset protection permit
fees (City Planning, Design and Amenity $117,000 and Engineering Services $65,000).

EXPENDITURE

The actual expenditure at 31 December 2019 against the year to date budget is favourable by $5.08
million. The major variances contributing to this result are in materials and services and employee
costs.

Materials and services ($3.32 million favourable) - The major items contributing to this variance
are:

e  Contract services ($1.51 million) - timing of works and invoicing (Engineering Services $1.78
million).

e  Consultants, professional services ($683,000) - timing of commencement of projects (Community
Services $482,000 and Corporate Services $220,000).

e  Utilities ($615,000) - mainly due to delay in commencement of street lighting replacement program
and the timing of invoices for street lighting and traffic signals (Engineering Services $531,000).

e  Administration costs ($284,000) - timing of expenditure (Community Services $162,000 and
Corporate Service $86,000).

e  Materials, maintenance and services (242,000) - timing of works, most of which are reactive
(Engineering Services $147,000).
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Employee costs ($2.45 million favourable) - This favourable variance is mainly because of staff
recruitment occurring later than planned (Community Services $1.57 million, City Planning, Design
and Amenity $511,000, Engineering Services $235,000 and Corporate Services $96,000).

Other expenses ($346,000 favourable) - The majority of this favourable variance is due to delay in
processing grant funding (Community Services $131,000) and delay in receipt of invoices (Corporate
Services $96,000, Non-Directorate $68,000 and Engineering Services $59,000).

These favourable variances are partly offset by:

Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) ($1.00 million unfavourable)
- This unfavourable variance is due to works in progress (prior year capital expenditure) that is not
able to be capitalised to the asset register because it is not capital in nature, does not meet the
capitalisation threshold or relates to non-Council owned assets (Corporate Accounting $1.00 million).
This is a non-cash entry that does not impact on Council's cash position.

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure at 31 December 2019 was $24.03 million. A further $19.27 million was
committed at the end of December. The capital works program comprises of asset renewal, expansion,
upgrade and the investment in new assets.

Proposal

That Council notes the progress against performance targets outlined in the Council Plan 2017-21
for the period 1 October to 31 December 2019 and the Financial Report for the period 1 July to 31
December 2019.

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-21 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’
People

e  Pride — Best place best people

Cultural Diversity — Model multicultural community
Outdoor Activity and Sports — Recreation for everyone
Lifecycle and Social Support — The generations supported

Place

e  Sense of Place — One city many neighbourhoods
e  Safety in Streets and Places — Feeling and being safe
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e  Appearance of Places — Places and buildings
° Travel and Transport — Easy to get around

Opportunity

e  Education, Learning and Information — Knowledge

e  Jobs and Business Opportunities — Prosperous and affordable
° Tourism and visitors — Diverse and interesting experiences

e  Leadership by the Council — The leading Council

Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

People

e  Avibrant, connected and safe community
e A creative city that respects and embraces diversity

Place

e A healthy, liveable and sustainable city
e Acity planned for the future

Opportunity

e  Adiverse and growing economy
e An open and effective Council

Related Council Policies

This report is in accordance with Council’s policy of providing regular information and feedback to
Council and the community about Council’s financial position.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

All matters relevant to the Victorian Human Rights Charter have been considered in the preparation
of this report and are consistent with the standards set by the Charter.

Financial Implications

The financial position of the Council will be monitored against the approved Mid-Year Budget to
ensure that Council achieves its financial goals.

Policy Implications
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This report is in accordance with Council’s policy of providing regular information and feedback to
Council and the community about Council’s financial position.

Consultation

The Chief Executive Officer, Directors and staff responsible for reporting were consulted. Council’s
Finance Department has prepared the financial statements and all other attachments with feedback
from all Business Unit Managers.

Conclusion

Greater Dandenong City Council provides a performance report against organisational objectives on
a quarterly basis. The reporting procedures and systems in place provide Councillors and the
community with the opportunity to monitor progress against Council Plan Indicators and the Annual
Budget. This ensures that all resources are managed effectively and accountably. Council will be
kept informed of the financial position on a quarterly basis, as is the current practice.

Recommendation

That Council notes the progress against the performance targets outlined in the Council Plan
2017-21 for the period 1 October to 31 December 2019 and the financial report for the period
1 July to 31 December 2019.

MINUTE 1333

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Youhorn Chea

That Council notes the progress against the performance targets outlined in the Council Plan
2017-21 for the period 1 October to 31 December 2019 and the financial report for the period
1 July to 31 December 2019.

CARRIED
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POLICY AND STRATEGY

Q2 QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT

ATTACHMENT 1

COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT
1 OCTOBER - 31 DECEMBER 2019

PAGES 51 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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Council Plan
Performance Report
Q2 2019-20

DANDENON(3

City of Opportunity

‘ GREATER
4
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Q2 Council Plan Performance Report
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“ (GREATER
g~ DANDENONG

City of Opportunity Financial Report for the period 1 July 2019 — 31 December 2019

CGD - Operating Result

For the period 1 July 2019 - 31 December 2019

ANNUAL ANNUAL

YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income B1
Rates and charges 74,349 74,236 113 145,942 145,942
Statutory fees and fines 4,536 4,583 47) 9,163 9,333
User fees 4,150 4,285 (135) 8,546 8,435
Grants - operating 13,541 12,913 628 24,598 29,453
Grants - capital 1,981 1,914 67 3,843 2,794
Contributions - monetary 1,981 1,642 339 4,113 2,829
Contributions - non-monetary 2,861 2,865 4) 15,000 15,000
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment 218 188 30 317 317
Other income 5,009 4,325 684 10,706 10,623
Total income 108,626 106,951 1,675 222,228 224,726
Expenses B2
Employee costs 36,956 39,402 2,446 83,346 80,417
Materials and services 29,619 32,936 3,317 71,755 67,851
Prior year capital expenditure unable to
be capitalised (non-cash) 1,003 - (1,003) = o
Bad and doubtful debts 11 7 4) 1,299 1,299
Depreciation and amortisation 15,045 15,045 - 30,816 29,816
Borrowing costs 1,590 1,590 - 3,058 3,414
Fair value adjustments expense - - - - -
Asset write offs 26 - (26) - -
Other expenses 2,367 2,713 346 5,238 5,009
Total expenses 86,617 91,693 5,076 195,512 187,806
Net surplus (deficit) 22,009 15,258 6,751 26,716 36,920
Overview

The surplus at 31 December 2019 is favourable to budget by $6.75 million. This is largely due to lower

expenditure to date across the organisation in:

e Materials and services (Engineering Services $2.43 million).

e Employee costs (Community Services $1.57 million, City Planning, Design and Amenity $511,000
and Engineering Services $235,000).

Favourable other income ($684,000), operating grants ($628,000) and contributions — monetary
($339,000) also contribute to the favourable result.

Partly offsetting these favourable variances is the non-cash item — prior year capital expenditure unable
to be capitalised of $1.00 million which is difficult to predict and not budgeted.
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2019

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20
ACTUAL ACTUAL MID YEAR

31 Dec 2019 30 Jun 2019 BUDGET

$°000 $°000 $°000
ASSETS
Current assets C1
Cash and cash equivalents 163,344 162,637 112,330
Financial assets ' 2,000 - 2,000
Trade and other receivables 2 83,007 22,791 23,161
Other assets 781 4,444 2,702
Total current assets 249,132 189,872 140,193
Non-current assets Cc2
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2,147,278 2,136,615 2,214,322
Investment property 12,827 12,827 12,827
Other financial assets 230 230 230
Trade and other receivables 325 325 325
Total non-current assets 2,160,660 2,149,997 2,227,704
Total assets 2,409,792 2,339,869 2,367,897
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities C3
Trade and other payables 7,752 26,299 24,837
Prepaid rates 71,511 - -
Trust funds and deposits > 36,433 35,069 37,069
Provisions 17,559 17,296 16,725
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,908 8,634 3,126
Total current liabilities 135,163 87,298 81,757
Non-current liabilities C4
Provisions 1,617 1,537 1,516
Trust funds and deposits 869 900 900
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 49,891 49,891 56,765
Total non-current liabilities 52,377 52,328 59,181
Total liabilities 187,540 139,626 140,938
NET ASSETS C5 2,222,252 2,200,243 2,226,959
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 910,701 875,922 924,792
Asset revaluation reserve 1,241,807 1,241,807 1,241,807
Reserves 69,744 82,514 60,360
TOTAL EQUITY 2,222,252 2,200,243 2,226,959

1. Financial assets represent investments with a maturity term of greater than three months and classified as financial assets in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards.

2. Trust funds and deposits include fire services property levies collected by Council on behalf of the State Government. These monies are
remitted to the State Revenue Office 28 days after each quarterly rate instalment date. The majority of the trust funds and deposits
balance relates to Development Contribution Plan levies totalling $28.50 million at 31 December 2019.

3. Rate revenue (excluding supplementary rates) is accrued evenly over the year, although cash is received in quarterly instalments, nine
direct debit payments or a lump sum, depending on how the ratepayer chooses to pay. Rate revenue in the Income Statement is a
monthly accrual of the rates determined for the year in July.
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Cash Flow Statement

2019-20 2019-20

2019-20 ANNUAL ANNUAL
ACTUAL MID YEAR ORIGINAL

31 Dec 2019 BUDGET BUDGET

Inflows/ Inflows/ Inflows/
(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)
$'000 $°000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 84,511 145,942 145,643
Statutory fees and fines 3,359 7,494 7,731
User fees 4,106 9,401 9,129
Grants - operating 16,884 26,487 31,195
Grants - capital 2,489 3,843 2,794
Contributions 2,247 4,113 2,829
Interest 1,093 2,220 2,001
Trust funds and deposits taken 19,882 35,000 34,500
Other receipts 4,030 9,397 9,541
Net GST refund 4,297 13,427 10,705
Employee costs (37,963) (83,346) (79,714)
Materials and services (43,264) (88,625) (78,307)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (17,419) (33,000) (32,500)
Other payments (2,511) (5,762) (5,510)
Net cash provided by operating activities 41,741 46,591 60,037
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (31,051) (93,823) (69,289)
Proceeds (payments) for other financial assets (2,000) (2,000) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 376 617 617
Net cash used in investing activities (32,675) (95,206) (68,672)
Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (1,633) (3,058) (3,414)
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans - 10,000 10,000
Repayment of interest-bearing loans (6,726) (8,634) (8,496)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (8,359) (1,692) (1,910)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 707 (50,307) (10,545)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 162,637 162,637 129,894
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 163,344 112,330 119,349
Represented by:

Operating cash 38,033 (3,921) 2,374
Restricted cash 125,311 116,251 116,975
Total 163,344 112,330 119,349

e Details regarding Council’'s cash movements are contained in Note D - Cash Flow Statement.

e The dissemination of Council’s restricted and operating cash is provided in the graph “Restricted and Unrestricted
Cash” in Appendix 2 Investment Analysis in this report.

e Cash inflows and outflows are inclusive of GST where applicable.
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Capital Expenditure Statement

The detailed program under each of the capital groups is contained in Appendix 1 — Capital
Expenditure.

ANNUAL

YTD MID YEAR
VARIANCE COMMIT BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000
PROPERTY 13,839 17,845 4,006 9,446 45,522 33,950
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 824 1,351 528 1,762 5,657 5,195
INFRASTRUCTURE 9,370 12,901 3,531 8,057 42,745 30,144
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 24,033 32,097 8,065 19,265 93,823 69,289
@ YTD @ YTD @ ANNUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET MID YEAR
BUDGET
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A. Accounting Policy Notes

The financial report is prepared on the principles of accrual accounting. Accrual accounting recognises
income when earned and expenditure when incurred, regardless of whether cash settlement has taken
place. The basis of recognition of major income and expenditure in these statements are defined below.

1.

Rate revenue: Rate revenue (excluding supplementary rates) is accrued evenly over the year,
although cash is received in quarterly instalments or a lump sum, depending on how the ratepayer
chooses to pay. Rate revenue in the Income Statement is a monthly accrual of the rates determined
for the year in July.

Grants revenue: Council receives two types of grants, namely a General Purpose Grant (from the
Victoria Grants Commission) which is not tied to any programs and Special Purpose Grants for
various programs. All grants are recognised as income when cash is received. Grants comprise of
operating and capital (recurrent and non-recurrent in nature).

Fees and charges: Most fees and charges are recognised when cash is received. Where Council
raises a debtor’s invoice, income is recognised at the point of the invoice and not when cash is
received.

Contributions - cash: Cash contributions are essentially from developers towards open space
works. These monies are treated as income when received. Council is obligated to spend these
monies for the purpose for which they are given by the developers. Council also receives external
contributions for other capital projects. Cash contributions received are held in reserves and treated
as “restricted cash” until they are spent (see note 9 below).

Employee costs: Salaries expenditure is based on fortnightly salaries paid and accruals for salary
on-costs such as leave entitlements, superannuation and workcover.

Capital expenditure: The two broad areas of capital are the capital improvement program (CIP)
(which includes infrastructure and major projects) and ‘other’ which includes fleet, computers, plant
and furniture. Expenditure is recognised as capital if it is significant in value and results in assets
which have a useful life in excess of at least one year.

Budget information: The Original Budget information contained in the report is the budget approved
by Council on 11 June 2019. The year to date budget in this report reflects the Mid Year Budget as
adopted by Council on 9 December 2019. The Mid Year Budget represents the adopted budget
incorporating net carry forward capital and operating amounts from 2018-19 and any adjustments
identified since the 2019-20 Original Budget was approved in June 2019. The Mid Year Budget
represents the latest financial position for Council.

Cash Flow Statement: Reflects the actual cash movements during the year.

Restricted cash: These are monies set aside for specific purposes and are not readily available for
day to day operations or general capital works. They include funds set aside towards meeting long
service leave commitments (required by government regulations), statutory reserves (eg. open space
contributions) and other funds that are committed towards specific purposes.
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B1. Operating Income

The chart below shows the categories of operating income against their respective budgets (excludes
non-monetary contributions or gifted assets which represent non-cash accounting entries).

Income from operating activities
for 1 July 2019 - 31 December 2019

80,000 .
=
-
- _— S
70,000 |
60,000 |- |
(=3
=]
© 50,000 | |
&
40,000 |
30,000 | |
20,000 | |
1
10,000 |
0 =
Rates and Statutory fees User fees Contributions - Grants - G;:;‘rfjr-r::rist.al Netgainon Other Income
charges and fines monetary operating non-recurrent) disposal of PIPE
‘ BYTD actual 74,349 4,536 4,150 1,981 13,541 1,981 218 5,009
‘ BYTD budget 74,236 4,583 4,285 1,642 12,913 1,914 188 4,325

Income for the period ended 31 December 2019 is favourable against budget. This is primarily due to
the following:

Other income ($684,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to better than anticipated interest
return on investments, Civic Facilities rental income, insurance recoveries and asset protection
reinstatement income (Corporate Services $485,000 and Engineering Services $206,000).

Grants — operating ($628,000 favourable) — Favourable variance mainly due to additional funding
received for Family Day Care ($520,000), which will be offset by higher service delivery costs.

Contributions — monetary ($339,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to unbudgeted income
received from developers in lieu of future maintenance responsibilities at Logis and Somerfield Offset
Reserves (Engineering Services $314,000). This income will be transferred to reserves to fund future
maintenance responsibilities.

Rates and waste charges ($113,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to supplementary
rates and maintenance levy (transferred to reserves) (Corporate Accounting $113,000).

These favourable variances are partly offset by an unfavourable variance in:
User fees ($135,000 unfavourable) — Mainly due to lower than expected income from food registration

renewals and on-street parking ticket machines/meters, building permits and asset protection permit fees
(City Planning, Design and Amenity $117,000 and Engineering Services $65,000).
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B2. Operating Expenditure

The chart below shows the categories of operating expenditure against their respective budget (excludes
depreciation, asset write offs and prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised which represent
non-cash accounting entries).

Expenditure from operating activities
for 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019

40,000
35,000
30,000
[=3
[=3
54 25,000
@
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
0 g o
Employee Materials and Bad and Borrowing Other expenses
costs services doubtful debts costs pe
mYTD actual 36,956 29,619 11 1,590 2,367
mYTD budget 39,402 32,936 7 1,590 2,713

The actual expenditure at 31 December 2019 against the year to date budget is favourable by $5.08
million. The major variances are in materials and services and employee costs.

Materials and services ($3.32 million favourable) — The major items contributing to this variance are:

e Contract services ($1.51 million) — timing of works and invoicing (Engineering Services $1.78
million).

e Consultants, professional services ($683,000) — timing of commencement of projects (Community
Services $482,000 and Corporate Services $220,000).

o Utilities ($615,000) — mainly due to delay in commencement of street lighting replacement program
and the timing of invoices for street lighting and traffic signals (Engineering Services $531,000).

e Administration costs ($284,000) — timing of expenditure (Community Services $162,000 and
Corporate Service $86,000).

e Materials, maintenance and services (242,000) — timing of works, most of which are reactive
(Engineering Services $147,000).
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Employee costs ($2.45 million favourable) — This favourable variance is mainly because of staff
recruitment occurring later than planned (Community Services $1.57 million, City Planning, Design and
Amenity $511,000, Engineering Services $235,000 and Corporate Services $96,000).

Other expenses ($346,000 favourable) — The majority of this favourable variance is due to delay in
processing grant funding (Community Services $131,000) and delay in receipt of invoices (Corporate
Services $96,000, Non-Directorate $68,000 and Engineering Services $59,000).

These favourable variances are partly offset by:

Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) ($1.00 million unfavourable) —
This unfavourable variance is due to works in progress (prior year capital expenditure) that is not able to
be capitalised to the asset register because it is not capital in nature, does not meet the capitalisation
threshold or relates to non-Council owned assets (Corporate Accounting $1.00 million). This is a non-
cash entry that does not impact on Council’s cash position.

Page 8

24342



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.1 Q2 Quarterly Performance Report (Cont.)

‘ (GREATER

g/ DANDENONG
City of Opportunity Financial Report for the period 1 July 2019 — 31 December 2019

C. Balance Sheet

Council's net assets are valued at $2.22 billion at the end of December 2019.

C1. Current assets (cash and other assets that can be readily converted to cash)

Cash and cash equivalents ($163.34 million) — This represents the amount held by Council in cash or
term deposits. Please note that this amount includes $125.31 million of funds “restricted” for various
purposes. These are detailed in the notes to the cash flows that follow in section D and a graphical
presentation in Appendix 2.

Funds are invested in accordance with Council’s Investment Policy. The policy requires Council to invest
with prudence, consideration of acceptable risks and relevant legislation.

The details of Council’'s investments are contained in Appendix 2. In selecting investment products,
Council has paid due consideration to risk by investing in products that have a minimum Standard and
Poor’s (S&P) rating of “A”.

Financial Assets ($2.00 million) — represents the investments placed in Green Tailored Deposits with
maturity term greater than three months.

Trade and other receivables ($83.01 million) — This balance includes:

e Rate debtors of $67.84 million at the end of December. Rate revenue (excluding supplementary
rates) is accrued evenly over the year, although cash is received in quarterly instalments, nine direct
debit payments or a lump sum, depending on how the ratepayer chooses to pay. Rate revenue in
the Income Statement is a monthly accrual of the rates determined for the year in July.

o Infringement debtors of $8.92 million (net of provision for doubtful debts).

e  General debtors $6.25 million (net of provision for doubtful debts).

Other assets ($781,000) — This balance includes:

e Accrued income $503,000 — income earned but cash not yet received at 31 December 2019.

e  Other deposits $255,000 — represents $75,000 deposit for Metropolitan Resource Recovery organic
waste processing contract and $180,000 deposit paid for acquisition of property at 12-14 Stuart
Street, Dandenong.

e Prepayments $23,000 - expenses prepaid at 31 December 2019.

C2. Non-current assets

Non-current assets ($2.16 billion) — Includes $2.15 billion of Council roads, drains, buildings, plant and
other fixed assets. These values are reflected after recognising the depreciation allowed against each
asset.

Investment property ($12.83 million) is separately classified from ‘Property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment’ in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Any adjustment to the fair value of
these assets is recorded in the Comprehensive Income Statement and these assets are not depreciated.

Other non-current debtors include:

e Trade and other receivables - $252,000 for Council’s share of funds held in trust by Whitehorse City
Council relating to the former Narre Warren landfill site and $73,000 refundable deposit paid to
Community Chef for the supply of meals to Council's Meals on Wheels operation.

e Other financial assets - $230,000 shares relating to Regional Kitchen Pty Ltd.
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C3. Current liabilities (debts due to be repaid within 12 months)

Trade and other payables ($7.75 million) - Comprises trade creditors arising from operations and
capital works.

Trust funds and deposits ($36.43 million) — Trust funds and deposits includes other refundable monies

in respect of:

. Development Contribution Plans (DCP) ($28.50 million).

. Other deposits ($2.58 million).

. Road deposits ($2.54 million).

. Fire services property levy funds collected but not yet paid on to the State Revenue Office ($1.59
million). These amounts are due to be remitted to the State Revenue Office in accordance with
legislative timeframes.

. Open space contributions ($743,000).

. Landscape deposits ($486,000).

Provisions ($17.56 million) — This balance represents the provision for employee entitlements and
landfill restoration works.
. Employee entitlements:
o Long service leave entitlements - $10.23 million.
o Annual leave entitlements - $6.26 million.
o Rostered days off (RDO) - $473,000.
. Landfill provision - $592,000 - provision for the restoration and aftercare management of the former
Spring Valley landfill site (closed). The former closed landfill is owned by the Council and is used
as recreational open space. Council’s share is 19.88% of the total future estimated costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ($1.91 million) — Represents the remaining repayment of long
term borrowings during 2019-20.

C4. Non-current liabilities (debts due to be repaid in future years)

Provisions ($1.62 million) — Represents the provisions estimated to be paid beyond the 2019-20
financial year and comprises long service leave entitlements for employees ($1.30 million) and landfill
provision for restoration of Spring Valley landfill site ($319,000) (Council’'s share is 19.88% of the total
future estimated costs).

Trust funds and deposits ($869,000) — Represents deposits that are payable beyond the 2019-20
financial year and comprises landscape deposits of $765,000 and contractor deposits of $104,000.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ($49.89 million) — Comprises the amount of outstanding
borrowings to be repaid beyond the next 12 months.

C5. Net assets and equity

Net assets - Represents the difference between total assets and total liabilities. It is the Council’s net
worth to the City’s ratepayers.
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Reserves — Includes both statutory reserves (S) and discretionary reserves (D). The statutory reserves
apply where funds are gained from the application of legislative requirements to contribute — and where
expenditure of the funds is not entirely discretionary (i.e. the funds need to be used for certain expenditure
only). The reserves listed below are explained in the notes to the cash flows that follow.

The discretionary reserves are:

Major projects reserve

Insurance fund reserve

Council funded — Development Contribution Plans reserve
Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation reserve

Springvale Activity Precinct — Parking and Development reserve
Dandenong Activity Precinct — Parking and Development reserve
Native re-vegetation reserves

Keysborough South Maintenance Levy reserve

General reserve (Aged Care)

Grants in Advance reserve

The statutory reserves are:

e Open space — planning, development and improvements
e  Open space — land acquisitions

e Keysborough South Community Infrastructure Levies

D. Cash Flow Statement

Cash and investment holdings total $163.34 million as at 31 December 2019 which has increased by
$707,000 since 30 June 2019. Total cash and investment holdings are made up of operating cash
($38.03 million) and restricted cash ($125.31 million).

Please refer to the next page for a detailed listing of Restricted Cash which is set aside for specific
purposes.

Cash flows from operating activities — net inflow of $41.74 million. The major inflows are rates $84.51
million, trust funds and deposits taken $19.88 million, grants $19.37 million, user fees $4.11 million and
statutory fees and fines $3.36 million. The major outflows are employee costs $37.96 million, materials
and services $43.26 million and trust funds and deposits repaid $17.42 million. Trust funds and deposits
taken and repaid mainly relate to developer contribution funds and fire services property levies. The
remittance of the fire services property levy (FSPL) and FSPL levy interest amounts are made to the
State Revenue Office (SRO) in four payments in accordance with Section 41(1) of the FSPL Act. An
instalment is due and payable to the Commissioner of State Revenue 28 days after the due date of rates
instalments. Council collects FSPL on behalf of the State Government.

Cash flows from investing activities — are a net outflow of $32.68 million and include:

e $31.05 million for capital works expenditure. The detailed capital works schedule is included in this
report as Appendix 1. Please note the difference between the two capital expenditure amounts is
due to the movement in capital trade creditors at the start and end of the reporting period. Appendix
1 is on an accrual basis.

e $2.00 million of funds invested on Green Tailored Deposits with maturity greater than three months.

e $376,000 proceeds on asset sales mainly relating to the fleet replacement program.

Cash flows from financing activities — is an outflow of $8.36 million. Council incurred $1.63 million in
finance costs on its borrowings and repaid $6.73 million of existing loans ($4.90 million relates to
repayment of the Local Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) in November 2019).
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Restricted cash - Restricted cash represents funds that are set aside for specific purposes, as detailed

in the following tables.

31 Dec 2019
Type Notes
e $000
Reserve funds
Council funded Development 16,435 | Reserved for specific expenditure in
Contribution Plans (DCP) reserve accordance with the published DCP.
Open space — planning, 10,575 | Reserved for enhancing the City’s open
development and improvements space by planning, development and
improvements.
Open space — acquisitions 4,304 | To fund acquisitions of new open space land.
Major projects reserve 29,095 | Holds funds realised from the sale of
Council’s property assets or surplus Council
funds that will be utilised for investing in other
properties or funding future major projects.
Keysborough South Maintenance 2,581 | Reserved for specific maintenance
Levy expenditure relating to this area.
Keysborough South Community 1,540 | This reserve fund relates to Community
Infrastructure Levies Infrastructure Levies received in relation to
the Keysborough South Development
Contributions Plan.
Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation 906 | This reserve is for the rehabilitation of the
Spring Valley landfill site.
Re-vegetation reserves 443 | These funds are to meet native re-vegetation
requirements on Council’s reserves.
Insurance fund reserve 958 | This fund has been created to meet large and
unexpected policy excesses on multiple
insurance claims.
Springvale Activity Precinct 236 | This reserve is to fund development in the
Parking and Development reserve Springvale Activity Centre.
Dandenong Activity Precinct 748 | This reserve is to fund development in the
Parking and Development reserve Dandenong Activity Centre.
General reserve (Aged Care) 703 | Funds set aside for the aged care reforms.
Grants in Advance reserve 1,220 | Funds set aside for capital grants received in
advance of the financial year to which the
project works will occur.
Total reserve funds 69,744
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Type

Employee provisions
Long service leave

31 Dec 2019
$°000

11,532

Notes

Funds set aside to meet long service leave
commitments.

Annual leave and other

6,733

Funds set aside to meet annual leave and
rostered days off (RDO) commitments.

Employee provisions 18,265
Trust funds and deposits
Development Contribution Plans 28,495 | Pending completion of works.

Fire services property levy
collected and due

1,585

Payable to State Revenue Office — legislative
requirement.

Open space contributions 743 | Pending completion of works.

Landscape deposits 1,250 | Pending completion of works.

Road deposits 2,541 | Pending completion of works.

Other trust funds and deposits 2,688 | Refundable upon finalisation of programs.
Total trust funds and deposits 37,302

Total restricted cash 125,311
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Statement of Capital Works

Total capital expenditure at 31 December 2019 was $24.03 million. A further $19.27 million was
committed at the end of December. The above CIP Expenditure Report (commencing on page 16)
contains the expenditure status of each of the approved capital projects.

The timing of cash outflows and project completion can differ for capital projects. Commentary on the
status of each project with major year to date variances is provided below (i.e. variances greater than
$300,000). Please note that the variances detailed below are the total of all asset classes by capital
project whereas the Capital Expenditure report details the variances separately by asset class and capital
project.

Property

e 3043 Springvale Community Precinct ($3.13 million favourable) — The Springvale
Community Hub remains under construction, with completion of the northern glulams (laminated
timbers) installed, and ongoing installation of the underfloor air distribution system. Internal fit out
has commenced, with painting, tiling, and installation of panels. The main structure for the urban
screen is now installed. Benching in the landscape has been completed, with the main mound now
formed, and most of the paving complete.

Infrastructure

e 3631 Dandenong Park Master Plan ($342,000 favourable) — Concept design has been
completed. The tender documentation for the Northern precinct is underway including the tan track,
Foster Street interface and other general park and landscape improvements. This is expected to go
to tender in January.

e 3933 Sports Lighting Plan Implementation ($324,000 favourable) — Pre-installation of the
conduits and electrical pits has been completed. The light poles are in fabrication.
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ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE coMMIT BUDGET
$ $ $ $ $
[PROPERTY |
Buildings
3015. Robert Booth Reserve Pavillion - - - 1,110 - -
3043. Springvale Community Precinct 10,456,600 13,564,492 3,107,892 6,667,875 27,092,646 22,105,652
3177. Dandenong Civic Ctr-HVAC Gas Boiler 13,989 - (13,989) - - -
3219. Thomas Carroll Pavilion 83,056 114,000 30,944 - 2,543,572 -
3255. Yarraman Oaks Primary NEYLF 4,649 - (4,649) 3,734 - -
3548. Keysborough South Community Hub Dev 6,740 7,800 1,060 4,132 1,000,000 1,000,000
3740. Drum Theatre Improvements - - - - 75,000 -
3792. Dandenong Mkt Back of House-Coolrm 304,248 485,765 181,517 1,272,114 1,558,798 1,200,000
3802. Building Energy Efficiency Program 32,191 147,020 114,830 56,923 281,347 235,218
3803. Building Capital Program Minor Work 3,655 58,261 54,606 20,570 160,000 160,000
3804. CCTV/Security Capital Program 74,864 90,844 15,980 40,819 106,000 106,000
3805. Municipal Early Years Infrast. Plan 736 22,609 21,873 7,100 65,000 65,000
3806. Drum Theatre - Motorise Light Bars 846 70,000 69,154 - 176,000 -
3807. Drum Theatre - Auditorium Chairs 262,729 349,424 86,695 29,192 349,424 150,000
3811. Walker St Multi-deck Car Pk Roof 111,885 100,000 (11,885) 2,000 150,000 -
3813. Shalimar Kindergarten MCH 10,775 20,000 9,225 28,195 30,000 -
3814. D'nong Nth Senior Citizen Ctr Latha 1,610 43,478 41,868 17,480 500,000 500,000
3817. Civic Archive Extension of Building 10,805 30,100 19,295 1,818 30,100 =
3818. Rowley Allan Res Football Pavilion 19,111 19,200 89 122,203 38,390 -
3873. Building Renewal Prg.- DDA - 6,957 6,957 1,616 20,000 20,000
3874. Building Renewal Prg.- HVAC 35,442 63,478 28,036 1,549 130,000 130,000
3876. Building Renewal Prg.- Bathroom 219,789 146,783 (73,008) 107,461 422,000 422,000
3877. Building Renewal Prg.- Flooring 15,437 65,391 49,955 3,182 188,000 188,000
3878. Building Renewal Prg.- Lift Refurb. 160,230 215,652 55,422 471,075 620,000 620,000
3879. Building Renewal Prg.- Minor Works 179,766 173,757 (6,009) 82,722 460,176 460,176
3880. Building Renewal Prg.- Roof 20,185 40,000 19,815 80,854 115,000 115,000
3883. Building Renewal Prg.- Kitchen & Eq 117,029 115,652 (1,377) 96,400 313,000 313,000
3902. Ross Reserve Pavilion - - - - 300,000 -
3903. D'nong Mkt - 10 Yr Plan Imp 11,180 24,348 13,168 - 70,000 70,000
3904. Building Renewal Prg. - Theatre 20,082 111,913 91,830 7,584 312,000 312,000
3905. Building Renewal Prg. - Window 29,441 61,913 32,472 123,540 178,000 178,000
3906. Greater D'nong Gallery of Art 9,450 45,565 36,115 - 5,000,000 5,000,000
3907. Warner Reserve Toilet (North) 3,834 34,783 30,949 131,750 200,000 200,000
3908. Oasis/NPAC Design Dev't 22,540 32,330 9,790 63,125 300,000 300,000
Leasehold Improvements
3819. Police Paddocks Res. Concept Plan 22,560 20,000 (2,560) - 100,000 -
3941. Police Paddocks Res. Grandstand 27,000 28,696 1,696 - 400,000 100,000
Land
2116. 77 Herbert Street Dandenong 865,482 865,694 212 - 865,694 -
2117. 89 Douglas Street Noble Park 658,615 646,925 (11,690) - 646,925 -
3548. Keysborough South Community Hub Dev 22,182 22,000 (182) - 129,077 -
3988. DCP - 845 Taylors Road (LRO6b) - - - - 194,670 -
3989. DCP - 875 Taylors Road (LRO6b) - - - - 400,867 -
| Total property 13,838,731 17,844,829 4,006,098 9,446,121 45,521,686 33,950,045
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ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR

ACTUAL BUDGET  VARIANCE COMMIT BUDGET
$ $ $ $ $

[PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ]
Plant, machinery and equipment

1445. Fleet Purchases 136,579 423,957 287,378 1,148,169 2,302,000 2,262,000
3517. Community Transport Bus - - - - 210,000 -
3909. Drum Theatre Manlifter - 2,087 2,087 - 12,000 12,000
Library books

3104. Library Resources 502,577 509,723 7,146 385,761 973,828 973,828
[of s and tel

3516. Officer Safety Radio Network Upgrad - - - - 73,500 -
3910. Security Software (Priority 1&2) - 52,174 52,174 - 200,000 200,000
3911. Dandenong Stadium Wi-Fi - 2,609 2,609 - 10,000 10,000
3912. Noble Park Civic Optic Wi-Fi - 57,391 57,391 - 220,000 220,000
3913. People Counters Installation - 12,000 12,000 - 46,000 46,000
3914. Asset Management System 1,054 - (1,054) - 701,818 820,735
3915. MCH (ADSL to Radio) - 7,304 7,304 - 28,000 28,000
3916. Multi-Media/Broadcast Prg 59,931 77,250 17,319 119,478 196,458 196,458
3917. Procurenet (IT) System - 10,435 10,435 - 40,000 40,000
3918. Drum Theatre Ticketing System - 7,826 7,826 - 137,161 30,000
3919. Digital Infrastructure (Website) 76,950 98,783 21,833 75,250 256,000 256,000
Fixtures, fittings and furniture

3314. Public hall equipment 46,678 54,609 7,931 4,934 100,000 100,000

3825. Living Treasures Tribute - 35,130 35,130 28,640 50,130 -
[ Total plant and i 823,768 1,351,277 527,508 1,762,232 5,556,895 5,195,021 |
[INFRASTRUCTURE |
Parks, open space and streetscapes

1747. Barry Powell Reserve Master Plan 951 34,783 33,831 - 100,000 100,000
1748. Spring Valley Reserve Master Plan - 8,696 8,696 - 50,000 50,000
1796. Wal Turner Reserve Master Plan 5,409 138,913 133,504 2,500 1,005,000 500,000
3043. Springvale Community Precinct - 20,000 20,000 - 100,000 -
3065. Public Place Recycling Bin Instal. 40,696 40,696 117,000 117,000

3141. Thomas St Precinct Enhance(Afghan) 320,129 359,805 39,676 74,365 359,805 -
3192. Douglas st. s/scape improv.proj. - - - - 886,212 -
3248. DCP Keysb. Sth Industrial Buffer - 87,758 87,758 - 295,758 -
3258. Robert Booth Reserve Baseball Light 193,672 177,162 (16,510) 10,252 177,162 -

3406. Fotheringham Reserve - - - 3,500 -
3454. Dogs off leash program - - - - 41,000 -
3490. Springvale Road Boulevard 63,385 201,000 137,615 115,151 4,177,196 1,000,000
3498. Walker St D'nong-Streetscape 15,377 50,000 34,623 91,550 100,000 -
3631. Dandenong Park Master Plan 377,226 719,691 342,465 165,033 2,017,457 1,500,000
3835. Park Signage Renewal Program - 62,609 62,609 75,310 180,000 180,000
3848. Hemmings SC Streetscape 17,717 105,913 88,196 10,145 342,440 300,000
3849. Frederick Watcher Res. Master Plan 37,028 267,826 230,799 70,558 1,089,094 1,000,000
3852. Warner Res. Master Plan Impl. 11,000 79,373 68,373 52,750 79,373 =
3853. Parkfield Res. Master Plan Impl. 90,951 321,261 230,310 45,444 572,369 200,000
3854. Burden Park Res. Master Plan Imp. 19,503 136,522 117,019 31,284 924,789 450,000
3867. Keysborough Bowls Club Floodlight 2,340 - (2,340) - - -
3892. LXRA CCTV Works - - - - 60,000 -
3896. Fotheringham Resv. Addition Interpr 980 - (980) - - -
3900. Ross Reserve Plaza/Play/Oval/Path 8,430 189,257 180,827 517,667 1,050,000 930,000
3929. Act Crt Strat Plan Imp - D'nong 12,500 95,435 82,935 36,820 500,000 500,000
3930. Act Crt Strat Plan Imp - NPark - 62,609 62,609 - 360,000 360,000
3931. Guardrail Upgrade Program 16,365 69,565 53,200 - 200,000 200,000
3932. Open Space Infra Renewal Prg 147,299 109,109 (38,190) 30,110 292,500 292,500
3933. Sports Lighting Plan Imp. 63,738 376,144 312,405 1,658,123 2,150,000 2,150,000
3934. Parking Sensor Implementation - 60,000 60,000 - 345,000 345,000
3936. Glendale Reserve Landscaping - 26,087 26,087 - 150,000 150,000
3940. Ross Reserve Comm Ctr Car Park - 86,957 86,957 - 500,000 500,000

Page 17

24351



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.1 Q2 Quarterly Performance Report (Cont.)

“ (GREATER

g/ DANDENONG
City of Opportunity Financial Report for the period 1 July 2019 — 31 December 2019

CIP Expenditure Report

ANNUAL
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ACTUAL BUDGET  VARIANCE COMMIT BUDGET
$ $ $ $

Recreational, leisure and community facilities

3029. Playground Improvements - 125,217 125,217 - 360,000 360,000
3399. Springvale Reserve Cricket Net Repl 159,909 160,000 91 13,781 230,000 230,000
3420. Lois Twohig Res.Tennis Club BkaCrt 7,887 8,231 344 1,199 8,231 -
3421. Springvale Nth Tennis Club BkaCrt 2,369 2,719 350 - 2,719 -
3430. Springvale South Tennis Bka Crt 8,652 10,000 1,348 11,635 20,000 -
3433. Burden Park Tennis Bka Crt 9,749 10,000 251 10,533 20,000 -
3518. Harmony Square Entrance Protection - - - - 30,000 -
3651. Springvale Activity Centre-Laneways 13,255 10,000 (3,255) 1,980 195,889 -
3794. Tatterson Park Masterplan 3,808 74,783 70,975 349,458 810,000 810,000
3837. Greaves Res.Tennis Court Resurf. 113,957 114,297 340 28,763 230,297 -
3841. All Abilities Playground Concept 32,747 69,652 36,905 32,075 69,652 -
3843. Police Paddocks S'ball Dug Out Shel - - - - 20,000 -
3844. Tatterson Park Stage 1A Impl.P'grd 120,810 150,955 30,145 30,144 150,955 -
3846. George Andrews Res.TRY Build Contai 151,119 212,905 61,786 135,043 312,905 -
3856. Warner Res. Tennis Club Replace Fen 17,377 26,087 8,710 10,572 100,000 100,000
3900. Ross Reserve Plaza/Play/Oval/Path 1,200 3,913 2,713 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
3924. Alex Nelson Reserve Fencing 25,000 20,652 (4,348) - 25,000 25,000
3925. Active Fencing Program 98,971 89,565 (9,406) 30,933 200,000 200,000
3926. Sports Facilities Plan Imp. 193,346 248,000 54,654 87,863 1,185,000 1,058,000
3927. Chandler Rd Reserve Exercise Eq. 33,699 33,696 3) 26,801 50,000 50,000
3928. Rowley Allan Reserve Netball Crts - - - - 50,000 50,000
Roads
1627. Springvale Road Traffic Signals - - - - 750,000 -
1629. 275 Lonsdale St Dnong-Pedestrain La - 35,000 35,000 - 90,000 ©
3231. Local Road Upgrade & Reconstruction 150,693 174,652 23,959 103,669 383,306 -
3373. Municipal wide, Kerb and Channel 163,057 147,065 (15,991) 249,394 500,000 500,000
3418. Municipal Wide,LATM post audit 210,532 352,957 142,425 34,735 960,448 750,000
3753. Local Road Surf./Rehabit. Prg. 1,044,809 1,058,435 13,625 958,949 3,325,000 4,425,000
3828. Activity Centre Proj. Mason St 9,255 12,602 3,347 22,701 521,420 300,000
3831. Bakers Rd, D'nong Nth Alter.Cross - - - - 26,200 =
3920. Homeleigh Rd Reconstruction 719,006 714,444 (4,562) 126,051 794,838 844,838
3921. Glasscocks Rd Rehab/Sealing - - - - 30,000 30,000
3922. Disabled Parking Infra Prg - - - - 40,000 40,000
3923. Cheltenham Rd/Chandler Rd - - - 11,850 250,000 250,000
3938. Kerb & Channel Resurfacing Program 940,284 950,000 9,716 524,238 1,400,000 300,000
3942. Black Spot Works Program 63,603 72,800 9,198 33,561 303,996 -
3990. DCP - Chapel Rd Upg & Traffic Lght 771,998 775,555 3,558 359,705 1,220,597 1,220,597
3991. DCP-Chapel Rd Btw Villiers &Donnici 133,966 151,592 17,626 29,431 151,592 -
3992. DCP - Perry Road South Upgrade 118,292 104,600 (13,692) 95,903 244,399 -
Bridges
3185. Municipal Wide - Bridges - 5,217 5,217 - 20,000 20,000
3832. Bridge Rectification Works Survey 68,915 69,050 135 6,682 69,050 -
3993. DCP - Lyndhurst B1 Bridge - - - - 397,535 -
Footpath and cycleways
3174. Active Transport Infra.Priority Pat 293,534 284,486 (9,048) 17,433 535,456 350,000
3355. Municipal Wide-Footpath Renewal 1,322,049 1,320,087 (1,962) 591,454 1,400,000 1,400,000
Off street car parks
3662. Metro 3175 24,794 - (24,794) - - =
3794. Tatterson Park Masterplan 576 2,921 2,346 - 1,943,677 1,836,094
3901. Ross Reserve Access Road 18,803 19,155 352 86,074 205,155 =
3937. Car Park Renewal Program - 64,348 64,348 9,065 185,000 185,000
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$ $ $ $
Drainage
3019. Major Drainage Renewal Prg. 96,694 345,103 248,408 390,322 587,059 200,000
3129. Drainage program 648,265 861,654 213,388 674,296 1,763,828 1,435,000
3558. Pit Cover Replacement Program 34,914 34,783 (131) 33,204 100,000 100,000
3939. Drainage Reactive Renewal Program 138,442 86,957 (51,485) 40,583 250,000 250,000
Total infrastructure 9,370,334 12,901,302 3,530,968 8,057,143 42,744,859 30,144,029 |
[GRAND TOTAL 24,032,833 32,097,408 8,064,574 19,265,496 93,823,440 69,289,004]
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Cash and Investments

Investment Institutions

Bendigo Bank AMP
2% 3%

Westpac
14%

Portfolio Products

80% 80%
(]

70%

60%
50%
40%
30%

20%

10%

0%

Cash on hand/at Call account Term deposit Green deposit
bank

Note: Green deposit: 10% (or $16.6 million) was invested at 31 December 2019. These investments
are certified against Climate Bonds Initiative — Climate Bonds Standard, the same certification as green
bonds.
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Cash and Investments

Investment Credit Rating
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A1/A-
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i Funds invested
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100%

80%

60%

10%

Restricted and unrestricted cash balances
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(20,000)

u Unrestricted funds u Restricted - reserves (without offsetting liability)

H Restricted - employee provisions @ Restricted - trusts funds and deposits
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Benchmark Indicator - Cash at Call

3.00%
2.50%
2.00%
1.50%
1.00%
0.50%
0.00% .
Sept Dec Mar Jun
4 RBA Average Cash Rate -0.10% 0.90% 0.65%
i Actual Return - cash at call 0.90% 0.65%
Benchmark Indicator - Term/Green Deposits
2.00%
A
1.00% = |
0.00%
Sept Dec Mar Jun
1 UBSA Warburg 1.74% 1.50%
# Actual Return - Term Deposits 1.65% 1.47%
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Portfolio Length
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Total Operating Results

CGD BY DIRECTORATE

ANNUAL ANNUAL

YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income

Chief Executive Office - - - - -
Greater Dandenong Business 218 178 40 358 128
Corporate Services 2,568 2,072 496 4,161 4,253
Engineering Services 11,574 11,257 317 24,764 24,744
City Planning Design and Amenity 7,537 7,557 (20) 14,360 14,363
Community Services 11,915 11,234 681 22,002 20,867
Non-Directorate @ 72,971 72,861 110 150,928 157,049
Capital Works Program 2,002 1,914 88 5,955 3,622
Total income 108,785 107,073 1,712 222,528 225,026

Expenses
Chief Executive Office 330 342 12 708 668
Greater Dandenong Business 1,888 2,053 165 4,559 3,588
Corporate Services 11,384 11,818 434 22,480 22,290
Engineering Services 25,100 27,789 2,689 64,069 63,786
City Planning Design and Amenity 7,223 7,845 622 17,765 17,228
Community Services 22,684 24,791 2,107 50,941 45,673
Non-Directorate @ 18,167 17,177 (990) 35,290 34,873
Capital Works Program - - - - -
Total expenses 86,776 91,815 5,039 195,812 188,106
Net surplus (deficit) 22,009 15,258 6,751 26,716 36,920

@ Non Directorate includes non-attributable items such as rates income, developer's contributions, interest income, non-
monetary assets, finance costs and depreciation.

Note. Total income and total expenditure may differ to the operating result on the previous page due to the treatment of proceeds
from asset sales and associated written down value.
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CEO DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

YTD

BUDGET

YTD
VARIANCE

ANNUAL
MID YEAR
BUDGET

Income
Other income

$'000

$'000

$'000

Total income

Expenses

Employee costs 258 271 13 568 568
Materials and services 70 68 2) 94 94
Other expenses 2 3 1 46 6
Total expenses 330 342 12 708 668
Net surplus (deficit) (330) (342) 12 (708) (668)

BUSINESS UNITS

YTD

ACTUAL
$'000

YTD
BUDGET
$'000

YTD
VARIANCE
$'000

ANNUAL ANNUAL
MID YEAR ORIGINAL
BUDGET BUDGET
$'000 $'000

Income
CEO

Total income

Expenses
CEO 330 342 12 708 668
Total expenses 330 342 12 708 668
Net surplus (deficit) (330) (342) 12 (708) (668)
Notes:
No comments required for this directorate.
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GREATER DANDENONG BUSINESS GROUP

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL
YTD YTD MID YEAR
BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000
Income
User fees - 3 (3) 6 6
Grants - operating 160 120 40 240 10
Other income 58 55 3 112 112
Total income 218 178 40 358 128
Expenses
Employee costs 1,160 1,186 26 2,574 2,178
Materials and services 1 678 803 125 1,805 1,265
Other expenses 50 64 14 180 145
Total expenses 1,888 2,053 165 4,559 3,588
Net surplus (deficit) (1,670) (1,875) 205 (4,201) (3,460)

BUSINESS UNITS

ANNUAL
YTD YTD MID YEAR
BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Greater Dandenong Business Executive - - - - -
Business Networks 187 145 42 290 60
Activity Centres Revitalisation - 3 (3) 6 6
Major Projects 28 27 1 56 56
Economic Development 3 3 - 6 6
Total income 218 178 40 358 128
Expenses
Greater Dandenong Business Executive 195 166 (29) 345 345
Business Networks 626 641 15 1,210 740
Activity Centres Revitalisation 457 581 124 1,403 963
Maijor Projects 75 62 (13) 175 114
Economic Development 535 603 68 1,426 1,426
Total expenses 1,888 2,053 165 4,559 3,588
Net surplus (deficit) (1,670) (1,875) 205 (4,201) (3,460)
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City of Opportunity

Notes:

Expenditure

Note 1 Materials and services ($125,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in
receipt of invoices (Activity Centres Revitalisation $62,000 and Economic Development $29,000) and
program put on hold as requested by Multicultural Affairs and Social Cohesion (Indian Cultural Precinct
$75,000).

This favourable variance is offset by higher than anticipated consultancy costs caused by a variation in
the scope of works relating to Dandenong A-League/W-League stadium (Greater Dandenong Business
Executive $30,000).
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CORPOR

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Statutory fees and fines 54 55 1) 109 109
User fees 16 6 10 12 12
Grants - operating 42 40 2 40 41
Other income 2 2,456 1,971 485 4,000 4,091
Total income 2,568 2,072 496 4,161 4,253
Expenses
Employee costs 3 6,401 6,497 96 13,570 13,552
Materials and services 4 4,196 4,439 243 7,162 6,988
Other expenses 5 787 882 95 1,748 1,750
Total expenses 11,384 11,818 434 22,480 22,290
Net surplus (deficit) (8,816) (9,746) 930 (18,319) (18,037)

BUSINESS UNITS

ANNUAL ANNUAL

YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income

Corporate Services Executive - - - - -
Communications and Customer Service 469 352 117 707 727
Governance 1,599 1,550 49 3,101 3,173
Information Technology 6 - 6 - -
Financial Services 87 124 (37) 301 301
People and Procurement Services 407 46 361 52 52
Total income 2,568 2,072 496 4,161 4,253

Expenses
Corporate Services Executive 247 293 46 597 597
Communications and Customer Service 2,608 2,794 186 5,861 5,855
Governance 1,423 1,651 128 3,173 3,173
Information Technology 2,830 2,933 103 4,974 4,973
Financial Services 1,322 1,372 50 2,807 2,807
People and Procurement Services 2,954 2,875 (79) 5,068 4,885
Total expenses 11,384 11,818 434 22,480 22,290
Net surplus (deficit) (8,816) (9,746) 930 (18,319) (18,037)
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Notes:
Income
Note 2 Other income ($485,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to an insurance

recovery in relation to fire damage at 280 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong* (Risk Management $345,000),
higher than anticipated property management recoveries (Property Management $50,000) and rental
income to date (Civic Facilities $40,000, Senior Citizen Facilities $31,000, Jan Wilson Community Centre
$23,000, The Castle $11,000 and Paddy O’Donoghue Centre $11,000).

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by lower than anticipated recovery of costs to follow up
outstanding rates debtors (Property Revenue $36,000).

* - The insurance recovery will be mostly offset by the $100,000 insurance excess and $100,000 for
demolition of the fire damaged building. The net balance remaining will be transferred to the Self
Insurance Reserve.

Expenditure

Note 3 Employee costs ($96,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is primarily due to
vacant positions and a reduction in the use of casuals (Call and Service Centres $53,000 and Southern
Screen $17,000), timing of delivery of programs (Occupational, Health and Safety $40,000), reduced
hours for staff (Governance $15,000) and lower than anticipated training to date (Members of Council
$18,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated temporary staff costs (Organisational
Development Executive $67,000 and Records Management $15,000).

Note 4 Materials and services ($243,000 favourable) — The main items contributing to the

favourable variance include:

e Consultants, professional services ($220,000) — delay in receipt of invoices and timing of projects
(Organisational Development Executive $72,000, Risk Management $41,000, Property Revenue
$24,000, Emergency Management $13,000, Governance $12,000, Financial Services $11,000,
Communications and Customer Services Executive $10,000, Southern Screen $9,000, Property
Management $7,000 and Call and Service Centres $7,000).

e Administration costs ($86,000) — lower than anticipated costs for Council publications, postage,
community education, subscriptions, printing and stationery (Records Management $48,000,
Communications and Customer Service Executive $16,000 and Risk Management $14,000).

o Utilities ($68,000) — delay in receipt of invoices for telephone, rates, water and electricity (Technical
Services $18,000, Property Management Administration $10,000, Paddy O’Donoghue $7,000,
Senior Citizens Facilities $6,000, Members of Council $5,000, Jan Wilson Community Centre
$5,000, Dandenong Market $4,000, The Castle $4,000 and Emergency Management $4,000).

e Materials, maintenance and services ($38,000) — delay in receipt of invoices (Civic Facilities
$14,000, Governance $7,000, Print Shop $6,000, Call and Services Centres $5,000, Property
Management Administration $4,000 and The Castle $3,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated insurance claim expenditure (Risk
Management $161,000) and software maintenance to date (Risk Management $15,000 and Contracts
$11,000).

Note 5 Other expenses ($95,000 favourable) — The main items contributing to the favourable
variance include delay in receipt of invoices for internal audit fees (Corporate Services Executive
$30,000, contribution to a shared resource (Emergency Management $29,000), operating lease/rentals
(Technical Services $12,000).
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City of Opportunity

ENGINEERING SERVICES DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL ANNUAL

YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges 10,047 10,047 - 20,049 20,049
Statutory fees and fines 6 89 254 (165) 509 509
User fees 7 262 327 (65) 655 655
Grants - operating 100 140 (40) 140 139
Contributions - monetary 8 315 1 314 1 1
Asset sales 9 376 308 68 617 617
Other income 10 385 180 205 2,793 2,774
Total income 11,574 11,257 317 24,764 24,744
Expenses
Employee costs 1 8,097 8,332 235 17,505 17,789
Materials and services 12 16,759 19,190 2,431 46,006 45,561
Bad and doubtful debts 2 5 3 10 10
Carrying amount of assets sold 159 120 (39) 300 300
Other expenses 13 83 142 59 248 126
Total expenses 25,100 27,789 2,689 64,069 63,786
Net surplus (deficit) (13,526) (16,532) 3,006 (39,305) (39,042)

BUSINESS UNITS

ANNUAL ANNUAL

YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Engineering Services Executive - - - - -
Infrastructure Services 10,923 10,562 361 23,373 23,353
City Projects and Asset Improvement 14 9 5 18 18
Infrastructure Planning 637 686 (49) 1,373 1,373
Total income 11,574 11,257 317 24,764 24,744
Expenses
Engineering Services Executive 66 81 15 127 418
Infrastructure Services 19,595 22,149 2,554 51,462 51,225
City Projects and Asset Improvement 4,448 4,515 67 10,270 9,933
Infrastructure Planning 991 1,044 53 2,210 2,210
Total expenses 25,100 27,789 2,689 64,069 63,786
Net surplus (deficit) (13,526) (16,532) 3,006 (39,305) (39,042)
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Notes:
Income
Note 6 Statutory fees and fines ($165,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to lower

than anticipated income from sub-divisions, drainage plan approvals and plan checking fees to date (Civil
Development and Design $165,000). This will be monitored and any permanent variance will be reflected
in the full year forecast.

Note 7 User fees ($65,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to lower than anticipated
fee income for asset protection permits and drainage plan approval (Asset Protection $38,000 and Civil
Development and Design $29,000).

Note 8 Contributions — monetary ($314,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to
unbudgeted income from developers in lieu of future maintenance of the Logis native vegetation reserve
($162,000 for six years) and Somerfield native vegetation reserve ($153,000 for five years) (Parks
Services). This income will be transferred to reserves to fund future maintenance requirements.

Note 9 Asset sales ($68,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to higher than anticipated
proceeds from fleet and plant sales to date (Fleet Management $68,000).

Note 10 Other income ($205,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to higher than
anticipated recovery income for asset protection reinstatements (Asset Protection $167,000), income
received for casual hire fees of sporting ovals and athletic tracks (Parks Services $37,000) and Sergasco
royalties received (Waste Management $18,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by a delay in invoicing partner councils for recoveries relating to
works at Spring Valley Landfill (Waste Management $23,000).

Expenditure

Note 11 Employee costs ($235,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in
recruitment (Parks Services $156,000, Asset Management $69,000, Civil Development and Design
$62,000, Roads and Drains $37,000 and Infrastructure Services and Planning Executive $32,000) and
savings from secondment of a staff member (Transport $28,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated temporary agency staff costs (City
Projects and Asset Improvement Executive $93,000 and Cleansing $71,000). This will be monitored
and any permanent variance will be reflected in the full year forecast.

Note 12 Materials and services ($2.43 million favourable) - The favourable variance is due to
the timing of works and delay in receipt of invoices from contractors (Waste Management $691,000,
Parks Services $400,000, Cleansing $383,000, Building Maintenance $308,000, Roads and Drains
$148,000 and Fleet Management $92,000) and a delay in the light-emitting diode (LED) street lighting
replacement program (Asset Management $591,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by earlier than anticipated and unbudgeted professional services
costs (Building Disposal Program $63,000 and City Projects and Asset Improvement Executive $60,000)
and higher asset protection reinstatement costs which are offset by higher recovery income received
(Asset Protection $43,000).

Note 13  Other expenses ($59,000 favourable) — Favourable variance is mainly due to delay in
commencement of works (Spring Valley Landfill $77,000).
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City of Opportunity

CITY PLANNING, DESIGN & AMENITY

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges - - - - -
Statutory fees and fines 14 4,381 4,274 107 8,545 8,715
User fees 15 2,649 2,766 (117) 5,240 5,130
Grants - operating 482 463 19 494 437
Other income 25 54 (29) 81 81
Total income 7,537 7,557 (20) 14,360 14,363
Expenses
Employee costs 16 5,693 6,204 511 13,026 12,978
Materials and services 17 1,440 1,579 139 3,364 2,874
Bad and doubtful debts 5 - (5) 1,286 1,286
Other expenses 85 62 (23) 89 90
Total expenses 7,223 7,845 622 17,765 17,228
Net surplus (deficit) 314 (288) 602 (3,405) (2,865)

BUSINESS UNITS

ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000
Income
City Planning, Design and Amenity Exec. - - - - -
Building Services 1,289 1,465 (176) 2,183 2,043
Planning and Design 882 958 (76) 1,867 2,157
Regulatory Services 5,366 5,134 232 10,310 10,163
Total income 7,537 7,557 (20) 14,360 14,363
Expenses
City Planning, Design and Amenity Exec. 222 226 4 472 472
Building Services 1,448 1,477 29 3,181 3,052
Planning and Design 2,160 2,667 507 5,809 5,480
Regulatory Services 3,393 3,475 82 8,303 8,224
Total expenses 7,223 7,845 622 17,765 17,228
Net surplus (deficit) 314 (288) 602 (3,405) (2,865)

Page 34

24368



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.1 Q2 Quarterly Performance Report (Cont.)

‘ GREATER

/ Gl O Financial Report for the period 1 July 2019 — 31 December 2019
Notes:
Income
Note 14 Statutory fees and fines ($107,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to

better than anticipated income from parking fines, recovery of collection costs (Parking Management
$316,000) and animal fines (Animal Management $34,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by lower than anticipated planning applications (Statutory
Planning $79,000), local law fines (General Law Enforcement $66,000), health and food infringements
(Health $53,000) and planning compliance fines (Planning Compliance $43,000).

Note 15 User fees ($117,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance is due to lower than
anticipated parking income for on-street ticket machines/meters (Parking Management $56,000), food
registration renewal income which is expected to correct in coming months (Health $38,000) and building
permit applications (Building $38,000).

Expenditure

Note 16 Employee costs ($511,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in
recruitment and extended leave taken (Statutory Planning $247,000, Strategic Design and Sustainability
Planning $118,000, Planning Compliance $76,000, Animal Management $47,000, Regulatory Services
Administration $28,000 and Public Safety and Security $35,000).

This favourable variance is offset by higher than anticipated use of temporary staff (Health $24,000) and
higher School Crossing supervisor salary costs (School Crossing $50,000). This is a seasonal trend and
will return to balance by year end.

Note 17 Materials and services ($139,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in
commencement of projects (Strategic Design and Sustainability Planning $100,000 and Master Plan
Concept Plan Development $40,000) and receipt of invoices (Parking Management $25,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by a higher than anticipated expenditure for professional services
(Regulatory Services Administration $18,000, Building $17,000 and Public Safety and Security $13,000).
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COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRE

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL
YTD YTD MID YEAR
BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000
Income
User fees 1,223 1,183 40 2,633 2,633
Grants - operating 18 9,905 9,298 607 17,980 16,789
Contributions - monetary 2 - 2 - -
Other income 785 753 32 1,389 1,445
Total income 11,915 11,234 681 22,002 20,867
Expenses
Employee costs 19 15,338 16,906 1,568 35,585 32,557
Materials and services 20 6,213 6,623 410 12,807 10,554
Bad and doubtful debts 4 2 (2) 3 8]
Other expenses 21 1,129 1,260 131 2,546 2,559
Total expenses 22,684 24,791 2,107 50,941 45,673
Net surplus (deficit) (10,769) (13,557) 2,788 (28,939) (24,806)

BUSINESS UNITS

ANNUAL ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Community Services Executive - - - - -
Community Wellbeing 5,778 5,192 586 9,997 8,661
Community Care 4,255 4,165 90 9,110 9,410
Community Arts, Culture and Libraries 1,618 1,540 78 2,274 2,178
Community Development, Sports and
Recreation 264 337 (73) 621 618
Total income 11,915 11,234 681 22,002 20,867
Expenses
Community Services Executive 212 208 4) 436 486
Community Wellbeing 7,569 9,041 1,472 18,717 14,380
Community Care 6,336 6,599 263 13,546 13,253
Community Arts, Culture and Libraries 4,625 4,722 97 9,899 9,600
Community Development, Sports and
Recreation 3,942 4,221 279 8,343 7,954
Total expenses 22,684 24,791 2,107 50,941 45,673
Net surplus (deficit) (10,769) (13,557) 2,788 (28,939) (24,806)
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Notes:
Income
Note 18 Grants — operating ($607,000 favourable) - Favourable variance due to:

Additional or grant funding received earlier than anticipated:

Family Day Care $520,000 (will be offset by service delivery costs)
Library and Information Service $86,000

Home and Community Care $66,000

Market Street Occasional Care Centre Operational $19,000
Enhanced MCH Program $17,000

Child First $10,000

This favourable variance is partially offset by:

Delay in receipt of grants for:
e Playgroup Initiative $61,000
e Planned Activity Group $38,000

Expenses

Note 19 Employee costs ($1.57 million favourable) - Favourable variance due to delay in
recruitment (Child First $428,000, Maternal and Child Health $240,000, Enhanced MCH Program
$218,000, Library and Information Services $166,000, Playgroups Initiative $86,000, Food Services
$82,000, Childrens Support Services $82,000, Pre-School Field Officer $79,000, Home and Community
Care $62,000, Right@Home $41,000, HACC - Home Maintenance $37,000, New Directions — Mothers
and Babies $31,000, Planned Activity Group $27,000, Youth Engagement $26,000, Community
Development $26,000, Festivals and Events $24,000, Market Street Occasional Child Care Centre
$21,000, Family Day Care $16,000 and HACC Co-ordinator $15,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated temporary staff costs (Drum Theatre
$115,000), higher overtime costs (Sports Planning $17,000) and allowances (Access and Quality
Systems $23,000).

Note 20 Material and services ($410,000 favourable) — Favourable variance is due to a delay in
receipt of invoices and commencement of projects (Community Development $105,000, Drug Strategy
$88,000, Community Hub Early Years $85,000, New Directions - Mothers and Babies $80,000, Festivals
and Events $73,000, Market Street Occasional Operational $68,000, Family Support and Counselling
Service $63,000, Child First $63,000, Market Street Occasional Child Care Centre $54,000, Food
Services $42,000, Enhanced MCH Program $38,000, Leisure Centres $33,000 and Drum Theatre
$25,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher payments to educators (Family Day Care $392,000).
This relates to additional service delivery requirements and is offset by higher grant income in this
program.

Note 21 Other expenses ($131,000 favourable) — The majority of this favourable variance is due
to delay in payment of approved Material Aid grant funding and strategic grant for Homelessness/Anti-
Social Behaviour and receipt of invoice for Friends of Refugees contribution (Community Funding
$130,000).
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City of Opportunity

NON-DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL
YTD YTD MID YEAR
BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
Notes $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 22 64,302 64,189 113 125,893 125,893
Statutory fees and fines 13 - 13 - -
Grants - operating 2,852 2,852 - 5,704 12,039
Contributions - monetary 1,644 1,642 2 2,000 2,000
Contributions - non-monetary 2,861 2,865 4) 15,000 15,000
Other income 1,299 1,313 (14) 2,331 2,117
Total income 72,971 72,861 110 150,928 157,049
Expenses
Employee costs 9 6 3) 520 796
Materials and services 263 236 (27) 514 514
Prior year capital expenditure unable to
be capitalised (non-cash) 23 1,003 - (1,003) - -
Depreciation and amortisation 15,045 15,045 - 30,816 29,816
Borrowing costs 1,590 1,590 - 3,058 3,414
Asset write offs 26 - (26) - -
Other expenses 24 231 300 69 382 333
Total expenses 18,167 171477 (990) 35,290 34,873
Net surplus (deficit) 54,804 55,684 (880) 115,638 122,176

BUSINESS UNITS

ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Governance - - - - -
Corporate Accounting 71,327 71,219 108 148,928 155,049
Planning and Design 1,644 1,642 2 2,000 2,000
Total income 72,971 72,861 110 150,928 157,049
Expenses
Governance 5 15 10 30 30
Corporate Accounting 18,152 17,152 (1,000) 35,250 34,833
Planning and Design 10 10 - 10 10
Total expenses 18,167 17,177 (990) 35,290 34,873
Net surplus (deficit) 54,804 55,684 (880) 115,638 122,176

Non Directorate includes non-attributable items such as rates income, fire services levy payable on Council properties,
developer’s contributions, interest income, gifted assets, carrying amount of assets disposed/written off and finance costs.
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Notes:
Income
Note 22 Rates and charges ($113,000 favourable) — Favourable variance mainly due to higher

than anticipated rates — general and supplementary (Corporate Accounting $59,000) and maintenance
levy for Keysborough Maintenance levies (transferred to reserves) (Corporate Accounting $47,000).

Expenditure

Note 23 Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) ($1.00 million
unfavourable) — This unfavourable variance is due to works in progress (prior year capital expenditure)
that is not able to be capitalised to the asset register because it is not capital in nature, does not meet
the capitalisation threshold or relates to non-Council owned assets (Corporate Accounting $1.00 million).
This is a non-cash entry that does not impact on Council’s cash position.

Note 24 Other expenses ($69,000 favourable) — Favourable variance mainly due to delay in
receipt of Electoral Representation Review invoices (Corporate Accounting $48,000).

Page 39

24373



City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020

4.2.1 Q2 Quarterly Performance Report (Cont.)

‘ GREATER

DANDENONQG
City of Opportunity

Financial Report for the period 1 July 2019 — 31 December 2019

CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM

OPERATING RESULT

ANNUAL ANNUAL
YTD YTD YTD MID YEAR ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE BUDGET
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Grants - capital 25 1,981 1,914 67 3,843 2,794
Contributions - monetary 21 - 21 2,112 828
Other income - - - - -
Total income 2,002 1,914 88 5,955 3,622
Expenses
Employee costs - - - - -
Materials and services - - - - -
Other expenses - - - - -
Total expenses - - - - -
Net surplus (deficit) 2,002 1,914 88 5,955 3,622

Notes:
Income

Note 25

Grants — capital ($67,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to higher than

anticipated receipt of Roads to Recovery grant ($412,000), which will be reflected in the full year forecast.

This favourable variance is partly offset by delay in receipt of grants for Ross Reserve ($188,000),
Thomas Carroll Pavilion ($125,000) and Yarraman Oaks Primary Early Years Learning Facility ($33,000).
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Appendix 4

Operating
Initiatives
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Operating Initiatives

Operating initiative project YTD 2019-20 (Project update - 31 December 2019
Actuals Variance | Original

$ (Unfav) Fav | Budget
$

Community Services
Feasibility Study - New Library in 0 0 0 50,000 Selection of consultant to assist with feasibility
Noble Park / Keysborough study is currently in progress. The scope of
the project has been expanded to a Council
wide perspective, rather than just Noble Park /

Keysborough.

Feasibility Study - Dandenong 0 0 0 50,000 Consultant was engaged November 2019 and

Community Hub it is anticipated that the Need Analysis will be
completed in May 2020.

0 0 0 100,000
Engineering Services

Public Lighting LED Upgrade 18,306 400,000 381,694 400,000 Upgrade options assessed in conjunction with

Program United Energy. Quotes for upgrades in
progress.

Building Disposal Program 1,400 0 (1,400) 60,000 Reviewing quotes to demolish building.

(Dandenong West Kindergarten)

Building Disposal Program 1,400 0 (1,400) 60,000 Building demolition complete. Remediation

(Sandown Park Kindergarten) work underway.

Building Disposal Program 900 0 (900) 50,000 Reviewing quotes to disconnect services.

(Springvale Reserve Scoreboard Seeking quotes to demolish building.

Garage)

Aboriginal Scar Tree - 0 0 0 15,000 Consultant has been appointed to undertake a

Stabilisation cultural heritage management plan for the
"scar" tree. The process is currently
underway and expected to be completed by
the end of May 2020.

Feasibility Study - Yarraman 0 0 0 50,000 Project brief is complete. Awaiting

Railway Station shared path confirmation of consultants' panel before
engaging contractor. Itis anticipated this will
occur within the next few months.

Sandown Enhanced Integrated 12,750 30,000 17,250 30,000 Progressing well. Stage 1 study completed.

Water Management Plan Stage 2 in progress with consultation being

held with Melbourne Water, South East Water
and Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning.
34,756 430,000 395,244 665,000
City Planning, Design and Amenity

Reconciliation of existing Master 0 0 0 20,000 Fee proposal is being prepared by consultant.
Plans - Greaves Reserve The project is expected to commence in
October.
0 0 0 20,000
Corporate Services
Dandenong Night Market 0 0 0 87,000 The Night Market is not yet due to start and
will be trialled in January 2020 (once a week
over four weeks).
0 0 0 87,000
TOTAL 34,756 430,000 3952244 872,000

Notes re Operating Initiative reporting:

The reporting on operating initiatives excludes the following:

- salary related initiatives

- operating initiatives that add to an existing budget (eg - 'Greening Our City' Tree Strategy)
- ongoing initiatives

- carry overs of prior year operating initiatives
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4.3.1 Draft Minutes of Sustainability Reference Committee Meeting- 6 November 2019

File Id:
Responsible Officer: Director City Planning, Design and Amenity
Attachments: Draft Minutes of Sustainability Advisory
Committee Meeting on 6 November 2019
Report Summary

At the Council meeting held 23 April 2018, Council resolved in part to invite Advisory Committees
and Reference Groups to submit meeting minutes for Council endorsement. This resolution was in
relation to allowing interested Councillors (and those that attend these Committees and Reference
Groups) to speak to the meeting about items discussed at these meetings.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the draft Minutes of the Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting
provided in Attachment no.1 to this report be noted and endorsed by Council.
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Background

Greater Dandenong Council is represented on a wide range of Committees, Reference Groups and
Advisory Groups which frequently reflect the interests of individual Councillors in serving the broader
community in their role. A full listing of these appointments is confirmed each November at Council’s
Statutory Meeting and is available via Council’s website.

The resolution of Council made on 23 April 2018 provides for Minutes of meetings held by Advisory
Committees and Reference Groups to be submitted to Council for noting and endorsing.

As such, the draft Minutes are provided as attachment 1 to this report.

Proposal

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’
People

e  Pride — Best place best people
e  Cultural Diversity — Model multicultural community
e Lifecycle and Social Support — The generations supported

Opportunity

e  Education, Learning and Information — Knowledge
e  Leadership by the Council — The leading Council

Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

People

e  Acreative city that respects and embraces diversity

Opportunity

e An open and effective Council

24378



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.3.1 Draft Minutes of Sustainability Reference Committee Meeting- 6 November 2019 (Cont.)

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Consultation

Advisory Committees and Reference Groups have been advised of the need to submit minutes of
meetings to Council for noting and endorsement.

Recommendation

That Council notes and endorses the draft Minutes of meeting for the Sustainability Reference
Committee as provided in Attachment No. 1 to this report.

MINUTE 1334

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That Council notes and endorses the draft Minutes of meeting for the Sustainability Reference
Committee as provided in Attachment No. 1 to this report.

CARRIED
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OTHER

DRAFT MINUTES OF SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEETING

ATTACHMENT 1

SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON
6 NOVEMBER 2019

PAGES 3 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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Advisory Committee or

Reference Group Name:

Date of Meeting:
Time of Meeting:

Meeting Location:

Attendees:

5:30-7:00pm

Centre

Sustainability Advisory Committee Meeting

Wednesday 6 November 2019

225 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong

Meeting Room Formal Meeting Room - Level 2 Dandenong Civic

Jody Bosman (JB), Cr. Matthew Kirwan (MK), Jenny Frieden (JF), Judith Sise (JS), Graeme Pearman
(GP), Ward Petherbridge (WP) and Edward Cotter (EC)

Apologies:

Aishwarya Pokkuluri (AP) and Jacques Espers (JE),

Minutes:
Item No. Item Action Action By
1. Welcome | Welcome by the Chairperson
2. Previous | Previous minutes agreed on and adopted
Minutes
3. Terms of | Update on Terms of Reference. ALL
Reference For noting:
- Council passed resolution to sign on ToR on
14 October 2019.
- Agreed to expand Committee from 6
community representatives to 8
4. Eol for Update on Expression of Interest for new Launch Eol for new TL
Committee Committee Members community Sustainability
Discussion on the name from “Reference representatives Planning
Committee” to “Advisory Committee” Change name of
committee.
5. Formal For noting: Letter of Director City
Resignation | - Three Committee Members to formally submit acknowledgement of Planning,
resignation service to be sent to Design and
- Resigning members thanked for their contribution | f€signing members Amenity
and service
6. Climate Update on Climate Change Strategy
Strategy For noting:
- Target year for net zero emissions via PPAs and
other measures
- Draft Strategy in progress, with completion date
by Dec 2019
Climate Emergency Declaration f’r?vide definition of 3 mw "
For noting - outcomes from a declaration: Climate Emergency to Susta!nabl ity
- ) next meeting. Planning
- advocacy and mobilisation on subject
- issue treated as top priority and embedded . .
Discuss rationale for a

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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across organisation
- resourcing required to implement municipal
response

- Strong advocacy action to state/federal

government for required action.

- Community informed of the risks they are

exposed to as result of impacts from a changing
climate.

- Community support to mobilise wider action (e.g.

Family Violence walk)

- How to avoid helplessness across parts of the

community.

declaration of a Climate
Emergency and Consider
relationship with Climate
Change Strategy.

7. Plastics
Policy

Update on the Single Use Plastics Policy
For noting
- Circulated adopted version of Plastics Policy

- Implementation Plan to be circulated after formal
adoption of the policy.

8.
Environment
Centre

Update on Community Environment Centre

For noting

- Capital works bid in process — joint initiative with
Parks, Waste and Sustainability

9. Working
Groups

Committee Working Groups

For noting

- Potential working groups include transport,
sustainable living, infrastructure. Consider
groups when reviewing new member applications

- Psychological expertise is required for
community mobilisation. Liaise with relevant
organisations for recommended experts to
consult with.

- Need for government leadership to highlight
benefits, process and need for community
leadership too.

- Sustainable Living - Household actions need to
start small (e.g. biodiversity, waste,

Provide suggested
actions on measures at
the next meeting.

ALL

10. Future
Meetings

Discussion topics on Meeting Agenda for 2020:

- Climate Change Strategy and Actions

- Repurposing Strategies

- Nature Stewardships

- Member perceptions of term “sustainability”
ESD in the planning scheme

ALL

11.Other
Business

None

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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File 1d:

Responsible Officer: Director Community Services

Report Summary

This report provides an overview of the feedback received during the public consultation regarding
naming of the new Springvale Community Precinct and provides recommendations regarding precinct
and building names.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council name the entire precinct the ‘Springvale Community Hub’, and
that the building housing the library, community meeting rooms and customer service not be officially
named.

To achieve this, it is recommended that no large naming signage be placed on the exterior of the
building.

This recommendation is based on the public feedback received regarding this matter, which will be
detailed in this report.
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Background

The Springvale Community Precinct is due for completion mid-2020. The precinct will be an important
community space for Springvale, and as such requires a name to support the creation of place identity
within the community.

The Springvale Community Precinct site encompasses a large open space area in Springvale with
playground, water play, gardens and two buildings; the new Springvale Library, Customer Service
Centre, Community Spaces and the recently redeveloped City Hall and Supper Room.

On 14 October 2019, Council endorsed the Springvale Community Precinct — Naming Considerations
report with the following recommendations:

(1) Invites community feedback on the proposed precinct and/or building names:

e  Springvale Community Place
e  Springvale Place

e  Springvale Community Hub
e  Springvale Civic Centre

e  Springvale Library.

(2) Invites suggestions from the community on the possible name for the Springvale community
precinct and/or the buildings.

The public consultation process commenced on Monday 11 November 2019, closing on Monday
16 December 2019.

Consultation tools included:

e  Social Media networks and posts.
e 950 letters to residents living within 500 meters of the precinct.
° ‘Have your say’ online consultation portal on Council Website.

e  Consultation stands at Springvale Library and Dandenong Customer Service / Dandenong
Library.

e  Consultation stand at Dandenong Carols in Harmony Square.

e  Opportunity distributed to over 2000 on Library e-newsletter list.

° Flyers distributed through over 15 local community groups in Springvale.
e  Opportunity distributed through Greater Dandenong Council News.

Overall Feedback:

There was a total of 212 surveys received, with 146 in hard copy format and 66 electronically.
Responses can be summarised as follows:

Name the Precinct:
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Yes 178 89%

No 23 1%
Name the building:

Yes 101 51%

No 96 49%
Preference to name the building and precinct individually:

Yes 96 52%
No 102 48%

Not all survey’s respondents answered every question identified above.

In summary, the community feedback strongly recommends that the Precinct should be named, with
89% for and 11% against. In comparison the feedback received to name the building was 51% for
and 49% against. When asked for a preference to name the building and precinct individually, this
was also very marginally different with 48% for and 52% against.

Feedback for the Precinct Name options provided:

Springvale Community Hub 77
Springvale Community Place 38
Springvale Place 17
Springvale Civic Centre 14
Springvale Library 2

Of the 212 survey respondents only 148 answered this joint question, with feedback identified on the
precinct naming. ‘Springvale Community Hub’ for the entire precinct name received 52% of the
preference from those that answered this question.

Public Commentary on the use of the ‘Springvale Community Hub’ for the precinct included:

“Springvale Community Hub is our family's pick for this new addition in our area. It's in Springvale
and it's for the community”.

“Springvale Community Hub says it all for the precinct”.

“Springvale Community Hub — this one is good because everyone is included”.
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“Springvale Community Hub — everything in the precinct is inclusive’.
“Springvale Community Hub — | believe that it’s easier for people to say”.

Feedback for the Building Name options provided:

Springvale Library 29
Springvale Community Hub 15
Springvale Civic Centre 4
Springvale Community Place 3
Springvale Place 1

Of the 212 respondents only 52 answered this joint question with feedback identified for the building,
with the Springvale Library identified as the preferred option with 56% of the feedback.

Public Commentary on the use of the Springvale Library for the building included:

“Call the new building Springvale Library, it will be the most prominent feature of the building that
most people will use”’.

“Springvale Library for the building, could be something different for the precinct / green areas”.
Other Suggestions:

There were over 27 other naming suggestions, with the following identified more than once by the
community:

e Use of Indigenous Name (x 27)

o  Seek advice on suggestions (x 15)

o  Similar to Bunijil Place (x 2)

o  Something Gumbuya — meeting place (x 2)
o Aruma Hub — happy place (x 4)

o Kaya Place — means hello (x 1)

o  Adina Place — means pleasant, good (x 1)
o  Wominjeka Place — welcome (x 1)

o  Kulin (x1).

e  Springvale Community Centre (x 7)

e  Springvale Community Precinct (x 3)

e  Springvale Library and Community Hub (x 2)
e  Springvale Cultural Centre (x 2)
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e  Springvale Library & Civic Centre (x 2)
e  Springvale Recreation Centre / Place (x 2)
e  Springvale Community Park (x 2).

The following possible names were suggested only once each:

e  Opportunity Square

e  Springvale Gathering Place

e  Springvale Hub

e  Springvale Forum

e lllora Centre

e  Welcome Place

e Cooinda Centre

e  Spring Centre

e  Hon. Robert Hawke Springvale Community Civic Building
e  Bunurong Springvale Community Place

e  Springvale Grand Central

e  Springvale Relaxation Centre

e  Springvale Community Centre/Village

e  Lucky Cat Square

e  Springvale Library and Community Place

e Imagination Place

e  Mitchell Gardens

e  Star of Knowledge, Inclusion Community Hub
e  Springvale Community Space

e  Together Space.

Recommendation (based on survey):

Name the precinct Springvale Community Hub. The feedback from the public community consultation
identified strongly that 89% of the respondents recommended a precinct name, with 52% of these
preferring the use of the Springvale Community Hub.

Only 51% of the public voted for a building name, with 49% against. Of these only 52 people actually
provided feedback on the preferred choice of Springvale Library at 56% for the building name.

Thus, it is proposed based on this feedback and to ensure ease of language and identity:

e  Name the entire precinct Springvale Community Hub — to be reflected on all external signage,
marketing material, website and social media.

e Label the library (along with other key functions) on all external wayfinding signage.
e All library material to identify Springvale Library, located at Springvale Community Hub.
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e No large signage to be placed on the exterior of the building to indicate a building name.
Other Projects to be delivered
Based on the feedback from the community, Council Officers will also investigate:

e  Consulting with local Aboriginal Land Councils to determine a possible Indigenous name for a
significant room/space within the new building (i.e. Exhibition/Community Hall).
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Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-21 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’
People

e  Pride — Best place best people
° Cultural Diversity — Model multicultural community
e  Outdoor Activity and Sports — Recreation for everyone

Place

e  Sense of Place — One city many neighbourhoods
e  Safety in Streets and Places — Feeling and being safe
e  Appearance of Places — Places and buildings

Opportunity
e  Education, Learning and Information — Knowledge
Council Plan 2017-21

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

People

e  Avibrant, connected and safe community
e  Acreative city that respects and embraces diversity

Place

e A healthy, liveable and sustainable city
e A ity planned for the future

The strategies and plans that contribute to these outcomes are as follows:

e  Create and Connect — Arts and Cultural Heritage Strategy and Action Plan 2016-2018
e Library Strategy 2018 — 2023.

Related Council Policies

e Naming of Places and Naming and Numbering of Roads
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e  Wellbeing Plan 2017 - 2021

e  Activity Centre’s Placemaking Framework 2016

e  Asylum Seeker and Refugee Communities Action Plan 2014 - 2017
e  Multi-purpose Use of Community Facilities Policy 2018

e  Community Facilities Management Policy

e  Community Hub Framework 2006

e  Youth Strategy Action Plan 2016-2019.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Consultation

Three significant public consultation projects were undertaken which lead to the development of the
Springvale Community Precinct — Naming Considerations report endorsed on 14 October 2019, these
included:

e  Greater Dandenong Community Plan 2030
e  Springvale Community Infrastructure Plan - Community Service Provider Consultation
e  Springvale Civic Masterplan Community Consultation.

The information received during these consultations, together with the precinct naming consultation
feedback, has assisted in informing the proposed precinct naming.

Conclusion

The Springvale Community Precinct is due for completion mid-2020. The precinct will be an important
community space for Springvale, and as such requires a name to support the creation of place identity
within the community.

Following a review of consultation and feedback from a range of forums on this matter, the following
actions are recommended.
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Recommendation

That:

1. the new Springvale Community Precinct be referred to officially as the Springvale
Community Hub - to be reflected on all external signage, marketing material, website
and social media;

2. the Library to be clearly labelled (along with other key functions) on all external
wayfinding signage;

3. all library material identifies Springvale Library, located at Springvale Community
Hub; and

4. no major signage be placed on the exterior of the building to indicate a building
name.

MINUTE 1335

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Youhorn Chea

That:

the new Springvale Community Precinct be referred to officially as the Springvale
Community Hub - to be reflected on all external signage, marketing material, website
and social media;

the Library to be clearly labelled (along with other key functions) on all external
wayfinding sighage;

all library material identifies Springvale Library, located at Springvale Community
Hub; and

no major signage be placed on the exterior of the building to indicate a building
name.

CARRIED
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4.3.3 Report on Matters Discussed at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings

- 20 January 2020
File 1d: fA25545
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Report Summary

As part of Council’s ongoing efforts to improve transparency in Council processes, matters discussed
at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings (other than those matters designated to be
of a confidential nature) are reported on at ordinary Council meetings.

The matters listed in this report were presented to Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings
in January 2020.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the information contained within it be received and noted.
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Matters Presented for Discussion

Item

Councillor Briefing
Session/Pre-Council
Meeting

Springvale Community Precinct — Naming Considerations

Councillor feedback was sought regarding the proposed name for
the Springvale Community Precinct following recent community
consultation.

20 January 2020

Election Period (Caretaker) Policy

Councillors were presented with an updated Election Period
(Caretaker) Policy since the policy was reviewed against the criteria
of the LGA (Local Government Act) in November/December 2019.
The Policy will be presented to Council for re-adoption (with
amendments) at the Council Meeting of 28 January 2020.

20 January 2020

Springvale North East Quadrant & Lindsay Williams Crossing
Congestion

Councillors were presented with a proposed approach to ongoing
traffic issues at this location since the completion of the grade
separation project in 2013. Feedback was sought regarding the
proposed community engagement exercise.

20 January 2020

Coordinated CGD Response to Victoria’s Bushfires

Councillors were presented with a range of ideas and options
regarding Greater Dandenong City Council’s response to the
on-going bushfire crisis.

20 January 2020

Draft Melbourne Industrial and Commercial Land Use Plan
(MICLUP)

Councillors were updated on the Victorian Government commitment
to ensuring policies and strategies are in place to improve Victoria’s
economic performance and productivity. The plan intent is to ensure
enough well-priced and commercial land is available in the right
locations to strengthen industry and support expected population
growth.

20 January 2020
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6 General Discussion 20 January 2020
Councillors and Council officers briefly discussed the following
topics:

a) ALGA Call for Motions for 2020 National General Assembly.
b) Planning Scheme Amendment C213 resident concerns.
c¢) Solar Farm Planning Application Update.
d) Update on Town Planning Application No. 70 Ordish Road,
Dandenong South.
e) Strategic property acquisitions (CONFIDENTIAL). Cr Tim Dark
disclosed a conflict of interest in this item and left the meeting
during discussion.
f) Team 11 Update (CONFIDENTIAL).
g) Agenda items for the Council Meeting of 28 January 2020.
Apologies
e Nil

Recommendation

That:
1. the information contained in this report be received and noted; and
2. the information discussed at the above listed Councillor Briefing Sessions that was
declared confidential in Item 4(e)&(f) by the Chief Executive Officer under Sections
77 and 89 of the Local Government Act 1989 remain confidential until further
advisement unless that information was the subject of a subsequent Council report.
MINUTE 1336

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Angela Long

That:

the information contained in this report be received and noted; and
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2, the information discussed at the above listed Councillor Briefing Sessions that was
declared confidential in Item 4(e)&(f) by the Chief Executive Officer under Sections
77 and 89 of the Local Government Act 1989 remain confidential until further
advisement unless that information was the subject of a subsequent Council report.

CARRIED
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4.3.4 List of Registered Correspondence to Mayor and Councillors

File 1d: qA283304
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: Correspondence Received 20 January-31
January 2020
Report Summary

Subsequent to resolutions made by Council on 11 November 2013 and 25 February 2014 in relation
to a listing of incoming correspondence addressed to the Mayor and Councillors, Attachment 1
provides a list of this correspondence for the period 20 January-31 January 2020.

Recommendation

That the listed items provided in Attachment 1 for the period 20 January-31 January 2020 be
received and noted.

MINUTE 1337

Moved by: Cr Angela Long
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That the listed items provided in Attachment 1 for the period 20 January-31 January 2020 be
received and noted.

CARRIED
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OTHER

LIST OF REGISTERED CORRESPONDENCE TO
MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS

ATTACHMENT 1

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED
20 JANUARY - 31 JANUARY 2020

PAGES 3 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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5 NOTICES OF MOTION
5.1  Notice of Motion No. 76 - Friendship Cities

File Id:

Responsible Officer: Director Business, Engineering & Major Projects
Author: Cr Sean O’Reilly

Proposed Meeting Date: 10 February 2020
Preamble

Greater Dandenong City Council has had a sister city relationship with Xuzhou, China since 1996.
This has provided some benefits, mostly civic, and some limited local business engagement.

In July 2016, Council replaced the Sister Cities Policy with an International Relations Policy. The
International Relations Policy was scheduled for review by July 2017, however this has not occurred.
Xuzhou is still described as a “Sister City” of City of Greater Dandenong by Council, and the regularity
of delegation visits both to and from Xuzhou has not changed since the adoption of the International
Relations Policy.

“Sister City” relationships have in many Local Government Authorities (LGAs) been seen as
anachronistic and replaced with more modern relationship agreements, often termed “Friendship
Cities”. “Friendship Cities” agreements generally are:

1. less obligatory on the parties to the agreement regarding regular visits;
2. more purpose-driven; and
3. generally have clearly defined and measurable outcomes.

Although relatively low expenditure, the public is increasingly dubious of the value of “Sister City”
relationships.
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Motion

That Council receive a report on the following:

A. Existing ‘Sister City’ relationship to include -

1.

benefits (both measurable and presumed) to Greater Dandenong City
Council of its Sister City relationship since its establishment in 1996; and,

2, the average yearly cost to Greater Dandenong City Council of the Sister

City relationship.
B. Possible new forms of relationships including -

1. options/ benefits/ costs of replacing our “Sister City” relationship with the
more flexible “Friendship Cities” relationship model (of which if agreeable,
Xuzhou could be part); and

2. Greater Dandenong City Council leveraging other levels of government
business engagement, for example, joining the Victorian Government and
Melbourne City Council in its business promotion engagement.

MINUTE 1338

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Maria Sampey

That Council receive a report on the following:

A. Existing ‘Sister City’ relationship to include -
1. benefits (both measurable and presumed) to Greater Dandenong City
Council of its Sister City relationship since its establishment in 1996; and,
2, the average yearly cost to Greater Dandenong City Council of the Sister
City relationship.
B. Possible new forms of relationships including -
1. options/ benefits/ costs of replacing our “Sister City” relationship with the

more flexible “Friendship Cities” relationship model (of which if agreeable,
Xuzhou could be part); and
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2, Greater Dandenong City Council leveraging other levels of government
business engagement, for example, joining the Victorian Government and
Melbourne City Council in its business promotion engagement.

CARRIED

For the Motion: Cr Peter Brown, Cr Matthew Kirwan, Cr Angela Long, Cr Zaynoun Melhem, Cr Jim
Memeti, Cr Sean O'Reilly, Cr Maria Sampey

Against the Motion: Cr Youhorn Chea, Cr Tim Dark.
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6 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS/DELEGATES AND COUNCILLORS'
QUESTIONS

Question
Cr Tim Dark

Today | received some correspondence from Mr Neil Butler and | have spoken to him this afternoon
as well, particularly around issues of the bus interchange occurring in Langhorne Street in Central
Dandenong. | know over the past few years this has been raised quite a few times with John Bennie,
Chief Executive Officer and with the former Director of Planning as well and there have been several
meetings. From the meetings is there any feedback regarding potentially allowing more vehicle flow
traffic through the Langhorne Street Bus Exchange? The issue that seems to be coming up time and
time again and today | witnessed it myself, is that all the buses come from around the area particularly
Doveton, Hallam, Endeavour Hills and north of our borders to Dandenong North around Menzies
Avenue. They all come together to one central location which is the bus interchange. While | was
meeting with Mr Butler at the interchange, the Charcoal Chicken shop nearby also raised concerns
over people who have been passing by spitting on their windows and all sorts of unsociable activities
happening in the area. | want to find out if we have had any progress on the concerns reported and
what we need to do to hopefully resolve these issues.

Response
John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer

I might also ask Mr Kearsley to fill in any gaps that | do not address but given that Mr Butler has been
speaking to and liaising with me over a period of time, | think it is only fair that | respond in the first
instance. | had given him an undertaking and | stand by the undertaking that we will seek a meeting
with the Department of Transport. The Department of Transport is responsible for the bus interchange.
That was introduced if | remember correctly, in about 2012 when the revitalisation project was
implemented. Many will remember that the significant bus layover interchange was moved from where
it was causing significant disruption in Thomas Street through to the back of the Drum Theatre, where
a centralised hub and the geographic heart of the activity centre was created. The aim of the exercise
was that people would access or alight from buses right in the heart of the activity centre rather than
in a removed location such as Thomas Street. That was introduced at the time with the consensus
and agreement of shops in the area. Some would have the view as Mr Butler does in fairness, that
it has never been successful and that in fact, the bus interchange is an attractor for certain antisocial
behaviour and those sorts of things. The first commitment we have given is that we would meet with
the Department of Public Transport, to see whether there are any other options or opportunities given
that a number of millions of State dollars, not Council dollars, have been invested in that. The officers
are of the view that there are in fact, alternatives for a wider distribution of bus stops but of course,
that would take significant alternate investment that again, we would argue that this Council should
not need to make. If we are to move forward it should be done on a collaborative basis of the State
Government recognising that perhaps better options exist and that they should be party to funding
some of those options. Regrettably, the Department of Transport have not been agreeable to a
meeting at this point in time and it has been many months that we have been asking but they have
not been agreeable. Short of me camping on their doorstep, | am not quite sure that there is much |
can do at the moment but there are outstanding undertakings. We do intend to pursue them. We
do have other ideas. It would take time. It would take a lot of money and we remain as | said to a

24403



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

6 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS/DELEGATES AND COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS (Cont.)

public question earlier, committed to doing the best we can for this activity centre and for the people
of Dandenong, including the activities that regrettably seem to be emerging out of that particular use.
As | said, Mr Kearsley will probably have some more technical responses rather than what | have
advised.

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

All I can add at this point to what Mr Bennie has said is that we are incredibly disappointed with the
lack of action or lack of response that we have received from the Department of Transport with regards
to this matter. | think if there is any excuse, it is the fact that they have been going through a restructure
over the last couple of months and | do not think we have found someone who can sit in the chair
that is going to give us the time of day. However, based on ongoing issues we have continued to
seek that meeting with the relevant officer and we asked last week and we will ask again this week.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

I would like an update on the Noble Park Community Centre and how we are progressing with the
report and when we are expecting options to come before Council.

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

We have an upcoming briefing meeting next week where we will be discussing that with Councillors.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

With regards to the Noble Park Tennis Club, | received an email along with Councillor Brown and
Councillor Tan as Ward Councillors and | believe it was directly sent to Mr Davine also. It was regarding
some concerns about the layout of the Master Plan at Parkfield Reserve, particularly centred around
the court location in relation to a car park and the line of sight and that sort of information. | know
that previously there had been a meeting with Councillor Brown and the tennis club. | want to find
out whether we followed up with them if it is possible to relocate one of the courts and if it is possible,
has there been any more information on that front?

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

| will take that question on notice.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

A question was proposed to me from one of our young leaders via Facebook because they had
attended an event at the Peterson Youth Centre which is in the City of Bayside along Highett Road.
They have developed a youth hub where Headspace officers work along with Council youth workers.
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They have pool tables and a setup where the youth members are able to go and hang out and have
a conversation safely. | want to find out whether we have ever progressed or looked at a similar
setup particularly given what we have in Greater Dandenong for our youth to be able to gather. Also,
for a having a Headspace office within a community hub or a youth hub. Have we ever thought about
that?

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

That is a great question that | will take on notice.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

My next question is in two parts and it is to do with the Development Victoria area. With regards to
the old pop-up park opposite the railway station, if you have gone past it recently, it is still there in
terms of the structural integrity of it. The fences, grounds, barbecue area and the bins are still there.
It has an Orion wrap around it advertising a development which | do not think is getting off the ground.
I know just from walking by it has become quite an eyesore particularly given the amount of foot traffic
between the GSO building, the Australian Taxation Office building and Council. While | am aware
that we have built a new pop-up park at the corner of Cadle Street, | want to find out whether it is
possible to get access and whether we can get some sort of licence agreement given it is still in a
pretty good state? | would imagine public liability might be an issue but whether there is an opportunity
for us to make sure it is still a vibrant hub for people to walk by instead of overgrown with weeds.

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

The land we believe is owned by Orion, not by Development Victoria anymore. We have contacted
both Development Victoria and Orion with regards to matters of cleaning the site up because | would
agree, it looks untidy at the best of times. We hope they will be doing that in the next week or so.
With regards to its ongoing use, unfortunately, whilst it may look suitable, we closed it down earlier
than anticipated because of the issues with the turf cover. Itis a risk to people who would play on
it. | can guarantee that if we wanted to use it further, both Orion and Development Victoria would
seek us to pay for that. | think the whole purpose of building the new one was to have an alternative.
It is something | can certainly take up with them to see whether or not there would be a willingness.
My preference would be that the fencing is removed and it basically forms part of more of an open
park until such time as the land is developed. | can certainly take your comments on board.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

Do we have an approximate cost of how much it may cost to repair the turf issues? | agree with
regards to the black mesh fencing. | think if that chain cyclone fencing was removed and it was more
of an open area it would make it much nicer for people walking by.
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Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

| cannot remember off the top of my head with regards to the dollar value for it but it essentially would
be a full replacement and at that time it was close to when the other site was going to be constructed
so we decided not to proceed with that. It is certainly not budgeted for in the City Improvement
Program and the preference would be due to its cost that we would not entertain that but we could
entertain the opportunity to make it much more open. | can source the dollars and also then provide
Council with an update on the nature of the cleansing of it but also some of the next steps that we
could enter into with Orion.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

| read in the Dandenong Journal today with regards to a Victorian Civic Administrative Tribunal (VCAT)
approval of some townhouses in Greater Dandenong. It was argued and appealed by the applicant
that Council had failed to determine within the 60-day statutory timeframe. Further down the bottom
of this article, it stated that Council was ordered to reimburse the applicant $2,160 and that the VCAT
member also found that there was no reasonable justification for this delay. | just want to find out,
given that we have so much economic activity in the City of Greater Dandenong:

(1) With applications we are receiving, how many are we seeing that go over the statutory timeframes,
and

(2) Over say so much of the financial year so far, how much have we been ordered to repay back to
applicants who have had to appeal to VCAT?

Response
Jody Bosman. Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

| can advise that as we stand at the moment 83 percent of all of our applications are finalised within
the 60 statutory day timeframe. That puts us in probably the top five percent of metropolitan Councils
in the disposal of or the finalisation of those applications. In fact, this is the first time | hear that there
was a judgement for this Council or any Council recently to refund or to pay back to the applicant
and | am happy to get the details from the Council and follow up on that further and report back to
Councillors. As | say, | am very proud of the record of my statutory planning staff who | will take the
opportunity to say, outperform all of our neighbouring Councils in how many applications we dispose
of within the statutory 60 days.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

I note that Council are now required by law to register pools and ensure they are then registered in
the City of Greater Dandenong. | have a question regarding the potential cost of that once it goes
past the period where people can voluntarily report their pools and Council then by law enforce what
the rules are with regards to the pool legislation. Many residents have raised concerns and are
confused about the specifics of the legislation.
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Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

There is an article on this topic in Council’s ‘City News’ publication this month. There is a state-wide
legislation that requires the registration of all pools. We currently have established a register and
are accepting the applications for the registration of those pools. We have somewhere in the vicinity
of maybe just shy of 1,000 pools within the City of Greater Dandenong and we believe that there is
probably another 30 percent that are unregistered with us. We will be following those up. There is
a period by which you have to register the pool and then there is a period by which you have to be
compliant with the building regulations so we will first ensure that there is a register and then we will
follow up on the compliance. The costs to the pool owner, | will come back to you with those costs.
As far as | know and in discussion with somebody this evening, those costs were probably in the
upper $300 to get your pool assessed and deemed to be compliant but what | can do for the benefit
of all Councillors is provide a bit of a summary of what the legislation is requiring the timeframe of
those requirements and what the indicative costs are.

Comment
Cr Peter Brown

| certainly concur with Councillor Dark in his raising of the matter of the bus interchange behind the
Drum Theatre. For the benefit of Councillors who worked on Council at the time, that decision was
made as part of the declared area of Dandenong by a committee that was established by the Victorian
Government. It was out of the hands of Council and it was against Council's expressed wishes that
the interchange be put there. Council at the time had great concerns for the impact of an interchange
of that nature in that area. That has proven to be and it has been proven to be counterproductive to
the interests of the area and yet, probably 1,000 metres away from there is a significantly large
interchange at the Dandenong Railway Station. There is a lot of vacant land there that Places Victoria
currently own and | think the integration of that particular interchange from behind the Drum Theatre
there will have to be in the mix. | certainly concur with Cr Dark raising it.

Question

Cr Peter Brown

| was in Blaby Court, Noble Park this afternoon and outside a house in Blaby Court, a very large limb
of a bottlebrush tree has collapsed onto the roadway and will need to be removed to ensure safety.
It is not across the road but it has collapsed and hanging from the tree, right onto where you park a
car so if someone could attend to that, please.

This question was noted for further action.

Question

Cr Peter Brown

In regards to the Melbourne Racing Club Master Plan for the future use of Sandown Racecourse,
what steps are being taken in the development of the Master Plan to conserve the natural vegetation
between the access to the racecourse off Corrigan Road near Alamein Street and the strip of vegetation
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which is virtually a linear park going up to the Highways at Princes Highway, Springvale? What steps
are being undertaken with the development of the Master Plan to respect and conserve that strip of
highly significant vegetation?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

We are in discussion with the Melbourne Racing Club (MRC) owners of the property on a number of
issues such as around drainage and issues around transport connections. A number of matters still
need to be resolved between us before we are in a position to get to the point where we have a draft
Master Plan or anything that we can take out to the community. One of the documents that we are
still waiting for that we can give a full assessment to is an arborist report. In dealing with that arborist
report, all of the vegetation that is on site will need to be a subject of that study and a subject of our
review in terms of what it is that they might propose to do with that vegetation. At this stage, | am
not in a position to advise Cr Brown what it is that is proposed for that vegetation or any other
vegetation on site. Once we have had the opportunity to review and have our arborist review a report,
| would be in a better position to come back to Council in a briefing around those and some of the
other matters that we are currently dealing with in discussions with the MRC.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

With regards to the contract that Council have with a company for weeding, has that contract expired?
At Turner Reserve, since about October last year or earlier, there is a part where it has screenings
there and there are weeds there. They are getting sprayed but they are not getting pulled out so
what has happened with regards to employing these contractors?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

No, the contract has not expired. We still use the contractor to hand weed playgrounds. | have been
informed that the contract will be going out for tender again soon and that matter can come before
Council once that process has been completed but that contract is still in place.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

It has been four months since weeding of that area so how do they rotate the weeding? How is it
implemented? When are they going to weed Turner Reserve?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

I am unaware of the details of the process with regards to how and when but | can certainly find that
information out and inform all Councillors.
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Question
Cr Maria Sampey

| have received a letter from a resident who advised me that when Council sprayed the boundary of
the primary school at Turner Reserve, apparently under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals
Control of Use Regulation 2017, it is an offence not to notify the principal of the school in writing 12
hours before using Glysophate so that the principal will have written evidence. Council staff have
therefore committed an offence. Did we notify the principal that Glysophate was going to be sprayed
on their school fence or did Council just go and do it?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

| am unaware of that legislative requirement and | can take that question on notice and provide Council
with the necessary information. | can also check as to what notice we may have given any principals
with regards to intention or actual spraying on boundaries.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

| received a letter from a resident who lives in Keysborough who has a concern with regards to
animals, specifically regarding walking a dog at the roundabout at Frederick Wachter Reserve where
Council has been spraying. It is also evident at Charnfield Reserve, adjacent to Brooke Close,
Noble Park. On several occasions the grass has been thoughtlessly sprayed as if someone was
having a joke. The resident sent me photos which | am happy to email to the relevant officer. You
can clearly see where they have gone around and even inside the oval and sprayed, killing the grass.
The resident is concerned because we spray around the trees stumps and when walking their dogs
even on leashes, the dogs tend to go to the grassy area around the trees and eat the grass there.
For a number of months, the resident’s dog was vomiting and she could not work out what could have
caused until she spoke to other residents in the area who were having similar problems. The resident
has suggested that if Council is going to be spraying near a reserve, not near children's playgrounds
but where the dogs walk, that they should mark the grass with blue colour so that residents know
that the area has been sprayed and warn dog owners to keep their dogs away from the grass in the
marked areas. |s that a possibility? The resident also wanted to know if there is a calendar on
Council’s website which shows when spraying is planned to occur and advertise the calendar in the
local newspapers and Greater Dandenong news so that people know they can look up the information
on the website. | am happy to send this email to Mr Kearsley so he can see what the resident’s
concerns are.

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

| would be happy to receive any photos and emails from Councillor Sampey on that.
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Question
Cr Maria Sampey

With regards to the problems at Elonera Road, Noble Park, the business owners handed me a letter
this morning saying that the night works were supposed to commence in early November 2019 but
they did not start until 6 January 2020. There have been a lot of problems as Mr Kearsley is aware
but the concern is that there is now a lit-up sign that says 'Night works commencing on 9 February'.
My concern is why are night works commencing now? We should have been doing night works from
the beginning because these businesses have lost a lot of money with customers not being able to
access their businesses. They have asked me to raise the question because it has affected their
trading and takings.

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

With regards to a number of questions, | can advise that the works started later because there was
consideration of the impact on the school which is located within 100 metres of the proposed works
and the impact on the road and the school would have been far greater. It was decided to wait until
the school holidays started which is why the works commenced later.

With regards to the proposed signage, unfortunately, that sign was incorrect this morning. It highlighted
works to commence in the last couple of days. That was incorrect and the contractors changed their
plans, | think mainly due to weather issues. They cannot asphalt and do any works in the rain and
it was raining last night.

With regards to the offer of night works, | was down there this morning meeting a number of the
traders face to face and heard many of their issues and stories and it helped me to get a better picture
of balancing what the contractor was up against and what the traders were up against and hearing
both sides of the story. What we offered at that point was for night works to be considered for all
future work in that precinct at that road including when they get to the point of doing works in the
service lane outside McDonalds, which requires them to close the service lane. We are obliged to
do those works with regards to VicRoads approved traffic management plans. They are not our traffic
management plans but they are approved by VicRoads.

With regards to why the works were not done at night prior to, there was consideration in budgetary
terms about how that could affect the residential properties further down the road. They are currently
using a site directly abutting residential properties to the north up further in Elonera Road. There
was consideration that had they used night works at that particular time, we would have an actual
significant impact on those neighbouring residential properties at that point so the matter was not
considered appropriate. However, | do respect and understand the issues that the traders raised
with me today and one of the matters that we are looking at is to reduce that impact and to have night
works done so that there is no further loss of trade for those traders.
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Comment
Cr Maria Sampey

Okay. Well, as Mr Kearsley knows, the residential properties are a long, long way away around the
bend. These are really small businesses in a small shopping strip who are trying to survive. They
have lost a lot of money and we need to help them. | now understand that Mr Kearsley has had
meetings with them and | hope that a lot of the problems are going to be cleared up.

Cr Youhorn Chea left the Chamber at 8.13pm.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

My next question is with regards to Turner Reserve. Can we organise some sort of meeting maybe
with the school and Councillors? | am receiving emails from the cricket club to say they have not
seen a Master Plan for a while and | just feel that we need to sort out issues because Turner Reserve
is a small reserve and the cricket club wants a minimum of three nets. Where are we going to put
three nets on a small reserve and build a pavilion? It will be too crowded so | was just wondering
whether we can have a meeting with the cricket club members to clear up these concerns once and
for all. We need to know what we are going to do, whether to build a pavilion and move on instead
of leaving everything in mid-air.

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning. Design and Amenity

Yes, | think Councillors will all be aware that in the last fortnight, | sent around a very detailed email
with a lot of supporting documentation. Part of that supporting documentation were emails and
correspondences from stakeholders, amongst them the cricketing community who had expressed
the desire to have the cricket nets re-introduced into the Turner Reserve Master Plan. | am happy
to meet with Cr Sampey and any other Councillors to go through that detailed email to discuss the
issues around the cricket community's expressed desire to have a full-sized cricket oval, together
with their practice nets at Turner Reserve. | am happy to set up that meeting and given my own
personal circumstances in terms of not being at work for the next couple of days, it can be early next
week.

Cr Youhorn Chea returned to the Chamber at 8.16pm.
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Question
Cr Maria Sampey

Can cricket club members also attend so if we think that having three nets is ridiculous, they can hear
it from us personally?

This question was noted for further action.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

In light of the past few weeks events across the country and especially for a family in Sydney who
faced quite a significant tragedy with four children passing away from the one family due to no fault
of their own, | think it is time that we take a moment to reflect and have that family's thoughts and
prayers with us and with this whole municipality. | know many people from my community were
affected by that as many of them know that family particularly well. They are a young family who
were very close and have a big business up in Sydney. You think tragedies like this are far away but
they are just not.

A couple of days after that tragedy we had a young lady from Nazareth College who got hit by a truck
on Police Road, Mulgrave. This is within the Silverleaf Ward, Cr Sampey and myself being the Ward
Councillors so it really hits close to home, once again due to no fault of the young lady. | understand
that the Council employee there pulled the other two students aside and potentially saved their life.

The two students and | really want to touch base with that employee and say thank you.

We all have to remember that tragedies do happen on our roads. | remember when | first started at
this municipality, there was quite a bit of uproar about traffic management systems that were placed
around schools within my municipality and people asking why they are needed? It is not the victims’
fault that people are speeding so we need to put more Police out there but as soon as this happened
at Nazareth College on Police Road, residents started blowing up my phone and calling me and
saying why we are not doing more to stop people speeding? How can we make people be more
alert? What can we do? | know Police Road is a VicRoads road and | understand that the Council
does have a lot of care and attention especially around our schools but has Council followed up with
Nazareth College? Have we seen if there is anything that we can do? | understand it is not the first
time that someone has been injured at that crossing. What is Council doing to follow up with that?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning. Design and Amenity

It is indeed a tragic circumstance. Our officers have been in regular contact with the principal of
Nazareth College, Victoria Police as well as with VicRoads. We will continue to investigate the
interests of the pupil, of the school as well as our own officer who has been traumatised by this. |
have continued to offer our own officer the support that he needs in dealing with this. As far as where
to from here with VicRoads, again, this is a conversation that my officers and officers in Mr Kearsley's
area, the traffic engineers, will be taking forward. We always use these tragic incidences to try and
see if there is anything that we can learn from them and do to make sure that they never happen
again so be sure that there is much afoot to make sure that we stay in touch and try and prevent
something similar happening in the future.
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Comment
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

| know the City of Greater Dandenong has always been a strong advocate for road safety. We have
always been a really strong advocate for safety around schools and | know Cr Sampey along with
my dad and other Councillors way back when, really advocated for that 40-kilometre school zone.
The City of Greater Dandenong was one of the first municipalities within the country to introduce that.
| just want people to be careful, not only around school times but always on the roads. We cannot
have this affecting our community like this because it is tragic and it is not only the families of the
students but our employees as well that have to suffer the consequences and the burden of this. |
will never be apologetic for advocating for safer roads and for trying to reduce speeds on our roads,
especially where young families are and young families are coming to this city at a rapid rate. | will
keep on continuing to advocate for that.

On a lighter note, there is a fantastic piece of art that has come to Tirhatuan Park in recent times. |
believe it uses recycled materials from native gum trees that have been lopped in the past. We have
had an indigenous artist come and paint over those trees and now it is quite a significant piece of art
within the municipality. | would really like to thank our officers. | have been advocating for a lot of
work to be done in Tirhatuan Park as | love that area. Itis in Cr Sampey’s and my Ward. | suggest
that many residents go through to Tirhatuan Park on Police Road near where the water is and see
this amazing piece of art. We are very lucky to have it within our municipality.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

| also asked a couple of months ago in regards to picnic tables and seats around Tirhatuan Park and
particularly around this same area where the artwork is. | do recall that the relevant officer did come
back to me with a report that we will be implementing some more seating and tables. What is the
update with the picnic tables and seating areas around Tirhatuan Park?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

| appreciate Cr Melhem’s comments on the artwork done through the conservation and Community
Services teams.

| will take the question on notice with regards to the timing of the provision of seats at Tirhatuan Park.

Comment
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

It really is beautiful artwork so | would recommend even the local newspaper to get out there and do
some advertisements so people can walk with their families and have a look at it. Itis an educational
piece, it is a cultural piece and something of real significant value to our municipality.
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Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

To the relevant officer, | know that during the last budget we also got the small dog park approved
in Tirhatuan Park which adjoins the larger dog park. | know that was going to go out to community
consultation. | just want to see if there was a timing around that.

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning., Design and Amenity

Yes, the dog off-leash strategy has identified an increase in the area of the dog off-leash park and
that within that dog off-leash park a smaller park or a park for smaller dogs has been identified as
well. What | will do is come back to Cr Melhem with some indication of the timing for the construction
of that smaller enclosure for the smaller dogs.

Comment
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

One of my Ward residents who is also a family member of mine actually, Rania Melhem, got in contact
with me and wanted me to inform everyone that she is one of the ambassadors for the Multiple
Sclerosis Society within Victoria. She is a huge advocate and one of the faces of that campaign.
She is running a fundraiser at everyone's favourite place on Saturday morning so if anyone wants to
support, the sausage sizzle is at Bunnings Warehouse, Springvale on Princes Highway. It is for a
fantastic cause and | will be manning the barbecue, making sure the food is cooked properly so tell
as many people as you can to get there.

Cr Zaynoun Melhem left the Chamber at 8.28pm.

Comment
Cr Angela Long

These are some of the events that | have attended since my last formal meeting.

On 30 January 2020, | attended the bushfire fundraising breakfast at the depot. That evening |
attended the South East Melbourne Viethamese Association Councils (SEMVAC) meeting at Springvale
where we had a tour of the site.

On 1 February 2020, | attended the official opening ceremony of the 2020 Tet Festival at Sandown.
That evening, | attended the basketball game between the Southside Flyers and Sydney University.
Southside Flyers won: 78-61.

On 3 February 2020, | attended the RAP working group meeting. That afternoon, | launched the
Take a Swing for Charity Golf Day at Victoria Golf Club, Cheltenham.
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On 8 February 2020, | attended the VCA-VIC Lunar New Year Co Vang Flag Raising Ceremony here
at Harmony Square.

Comment
Cr Matthew Kirwan

| will table my report tonight and go straight to questions.

Report Tabled
Cr Matthew Kirwan

The following are some of my activities over the last fortnight.

On Thursday 30 January 2020, | attended along with the Mayor Cr Memeti, the Staff Bushfire Relief
Fundraising Morning Tea at the Dandenong Civic Centre. That afternoon again along with the Mayor
Cr Memeti, | attended the launch of the new African Champions Day Club. The club will meet at the
Dandenong RSL and credit needs to go to the Dandenong RSL for supporting this initiative. In the
evening along with other Councillors, | attended the Springvale Major Projects Advisory Group meeting
to discuss aspects of the Springvale Community Precinct.

On Saturday 1 February 2020, | attended the Summer Reading Club Finale at the Dandenong Library.
Itis a great program organised by our Library services with many 100s of Greater Dandenong children
involved each year.

On Monday 3 February 2020, | attended along with Cr Long a meeting of the Reconciliation Working
Group. Later that afternoon | attended the meeting of interested Councillors with the committee of
the Noble Park Community Centre to be briefed by the committee on their plans and progress.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Can the relevant officer please give a general progress update and timeframes for the Dandenong
Aquatic Centre development in particular, what planning or analysis work has been done so far on
the sustainability of the planned aquatic centre? Is it planned to be zero net emissions and if not,
why not? Are we planning to develop it without gas and is it to be powered totally by renewable
energy and if not, why not? If this has not been worked out, what are the timeframes for the
decision-making process around the sustainability of the aquatic centre and other aspects?

Response
Paul Kearsley, Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

There are many matters there that | can cover. We have just commenced the process of engaging
with the State Department of Recreation on a proposed business case. We hope to have more
information on that in the coming months. We have a Capital Improvement Project (CIP) budget bid
in place for Council's consideration for the next phase which is the design and development component
so we will see that in the coming months with regards to budget discussions. If that is approved, then
that will form the basis of the next phase of plan preparation, design and development. It is during
that phase that matters related to Environmental Sustainable Design (ESD) will be investigated, will
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be discussed with Council in terms of what options we should be putting forward such as the matters
that Cr Kirwan has raised about gas and other things at that particular time. | would be thinking that
that discussion would take place either at the end of 2020 or going into early 2021. Certainly, we are
underway based on Council's resolution to choose the current oasis site for the next redevelopment
of an aquatic centre.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

| just want to touch on a public question that was mentioned earlier. Can we have a discussion at a
Councillor Briefing Session or at the strategic planning day about the criticism of our defence at
VCAT? This was the second time in 12 months where we have been criticised in public for our defence
at VCAT and | think we really need to have a discussion internally of where these are coming from
because it has happened twice now in 12 months?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

We can certainly have that discussion. | would like to just point out, Councillor Kirwan, that it was an
alleged criticism of our defence. The recollection of my officers at that meeting was that there was
no such criticism from the member of VCAT so let us take that that was an alleged criticism of the
lawyers that were representing us. | am happy to have, as part of a discussion with Councillors, our
performance at VCAT and include anything like let us call it reparations or criticisms that might have
come out of those processes but at this stage, that is purely an unsubstantiated allegation.

Comment
Cr Matthew Kirwan

I will just note on that note that it was not just in the media but was in the summary of the decision
that the VCAT Commissioner criticised us for not dealing with the aspect of the development.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Can the relevant officer please give an update of the development of the Greater Dandenong social
housing approach? What are the timeframes for various milestones in going forward in developing
that approach and what community engagement has there been to date and what will there be?

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

| will take that question on notice.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

A Dandenong resident contacted me recently and said how she avoided Palm Plaza, the pedestrian
walkway that is in front of Dandenong Plaza that connects up to where the RSL commemorates
Anzac Day. For her, it is an ugly and uninviting place with broken pavement fixed up with artificial
brick like surface and containing artificial grass rather than any real greenery. The public art was in
disrepair and so she asked me if a project planned to improve the appearance of Palm Plaza is being
considered that will make people want to stay there? | have recalled many discussions over the
years. If a place looks in disrepair, people often also feel more unsafe so | just wanted to add that
to that question that was brought up by the resident.

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

There are no plans at this point in time within the CIP budget process to undertake significant works
to Palm Plaza. | would say that if, in the event of a significant development occurring within the or
adjacent to the shopping centre, that is something that may bring on Council's consideration of those
improvements. | will say though that the use of artificial turf and artworks there have been put there
for that reason many years ago. It was understood that there would be a long time away and that
those works are in some ways place making installations to make people feel comfortable. | will take
Cr Kirwan’s commentary with regards to perhaps in some disrepair to send out a number of teams
perhaps to have a look at that and maybe they need a bit of cleaning and a little bit of sprucing up
but there is nothing to indicate to Council with regards to any significant spend on CIP for that particular
area.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Do officers not think there is an issue with the condition of Palm Plaza, both in the condition of the
public path and the general feel of the area? | know it was referred to in a question that Councillor
O'Reilly asked via email today, we often do place scores of various areas. Has there been a place
score done of that area and what issues did it identify or what strengths did it identify? Is there a
view that there is no major issue to be looked at?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

Certainly, it could be better. There is no doubt about it. Many places could be better. Whether or

not it constitutes enough for it to be completely redesigned with significant money spent on it, that is
something that really is a matter for Council to consider. It has and would have a place score and |
can make that available to Councillors in the coming week. It probably highlights some issues with

regards to the nature of the paving and those sorts of things. However, when you look at the nature
of the shade and the tree cover | believe it is quite a well utilised space. It may not serve everyone's
needs but | think it has quite a lot of people moving in and out and about the space. That does not

24417



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

6 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS/DELEGATES AND COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS (Cont.)

mean it does not need to be improved. What | was saying was that there is no project currently listed
within CIP that would indicate through any discussion with Council and others that it needs money
spent on.

Comment
Cr Matthew Kirwan

The resident was not saying that there was no significant amount of people who move through the
space. The issue was who stayed there and who wanted to stay there because there is a lot of
seating there. It was obviously designed in the original purpose for people to want to stay there and
her comment was that people did not want to stay there. | am not really looking at major budget
expenditure. | have received many compliments for what we have done at Settlers Square with the
actual planting that we have done. | forgot the right term for it but let us say bush flowers for want of
a better term. | have had lots of compliments about something that was very simple but has brought
that square to life so the resident and myself were talking more about things we could do to improve
it rather than tearing out the whole pavement.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

When will the draft Climate Change Strategy be out for exhibition?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

The Climate Change Strategy was put out for public consultation in late February 2019 for a two-week
period. The consultation will be promoted through Council's website, social media, customer service
centres and direct email to all previous submitters, community groups and other interested parties.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

When will Council reconsider the matter of an Urban Forest Strategy?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

The Urban Forest Strategy and that is just following the presentation on 3 February 2020 to a Councillor
Briefing Session, is now intended to be tabled at the Council meeting on 24 February 2020.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

When are Councillors going to meet to discuss the public feedback on the Springvale Community
Precinct Strategic Plan?

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

The draft Springvale Community Precinct Strategic Plan is currently being reviewed following public
consultation period. It is intended that the strategic plan will return to Council on 23 March 2020 but
prior to that, interested Councillors will be given an opportunity to review feedback and the updated
plan as well.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan
Is a meeting being organised for Councillors to discuss the feedback and officers’ views on it?

Response
Tilla Buden, Acting Director Community Services

Yes, we can organise that.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

There has been a lot of interest in the last week on the topic of the Environmental Protection Authority
(EPA) finding asbestos on Spring Valley Reserve. What level of contamination has been found?
Where do we believe it has come from and what has been done to rectify it?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

Part of the discussions with the EPA with regards to finding small amounts of asbestos on that site
have led to what | would call an action plan in order to clean up parts of that site and | am referring
to parts of the Spring Valley Reserve behind some of the temples where there have been some
mounding of soil. The mounding of soil came from Tatterson Park and Parkfield. | must make it clear
that at that point, Council had two notices indicating that the fill was clean from both of those sites.
However, putting that to one side, in engaging an environmental hygienist which the EPA asked us
to do and we were quite happy to that. That hygienist has gone over the site, removed a small quantity
of asbestos and has declared the site clean and safe. We believe that small quantity may have come
from an area where there was some unauthorised dumping, in addition to the landfill that we were
using as well. Topdressing of the fill occurred on Thursday of last week and the top dressing of the
fill to the east of the car park is in progress. This is some information | am reading from last Friday
and it was aimed to be completed early this week so it may well be finished today. The EPA has
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advised it is satisfied with the way this issue was managed and the outcome has been achieved so
we do have the all clear from the EPA and Council did go through a process in accordance with
legislation and procedures with regards to the hygienist but also cleaning up the site.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

One of the elements of concern is that the soil may have come from Parkfield Reserve and in particular,
that soil may have been on the Parkfield Reserve site for a significant amount of time, exposed to
being blown around. Have we looked into that or heard of that concern?

Response
Paul Kearsley, Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

No, we have not. We are quite satisfied that the clean fill certificate we received related to the soil
that was removed from Parkfield. We do not have a sense of needing to return to Parkfield to do any
further testing.

Comment
Cr Matthew Kirwan

| will table the rest of my questions.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

One of the most important actions in the Year 2 Part B component of the People Seeking Asylum
and Refugee Action Plan is the creation of a Multicultural Leader’s Network. To me it is vital as there
is a lack of a systematic and ongoing body of leaders who we can consult on to make our activities
as a Council more responsive to our cultural diversity. From a process perspective it would make
the development and/or revision of our strategies, plans and policies more effective. When is that
planned to be up and running?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

A resident in the new estates of Keysborough has been petitioning South Eastern Water to name the
wetlands abutting Keylana Drive, Keysborough with an indigenous name. South Eastern Water are
not interested even though it has the support of Bunerong Land Council and local residents. Can we
look at providing support to that resident?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

In discussions last year, the launch and publicity campaign for Solar Savers had been discussed with
the Eastern Greenhouse Alliance for timing with our Sustainability Festival. Has this been confirmed
now and what will the launch and publicity campaign entail?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

In the Sustainability Strategy 2016-2020, One Planet certification or similar was an objective. Where
are we that?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan
What are the timelines for the Clarendon Reserve off-leash trial funded in the mid-year budget?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

We are two months into the implementation of the Plastics Use Policy which means that the transition
period for Council ends on 9 June and the transition period for the Community ends on 9 December
2020.

(a) How are we tracking with the implementations for both the internal and external areas?
(b) What area of Council is co-ordinating the implementation overall?

(c) In particular, have all the community groups operating activities and events on Council land been
informed of the new policy and if not, what is the timeframe for that?

(d) What is the process for ensuring not just notifying that community groups and other organisations
applying for the various categories of the new Community Funding Program now out for application,
are aware of their obligations under the new policy, in particular, are they aware it is not just for events
but activities and programs?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

What progress has been made with the feasibility study into a library for the Noble Park/Keysborough
area? What are the milestones and timeframes for the completion of that feasibility study?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

What progress has been made with the Eastlink — Dandenong Railway Station shared path feasibility
study?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

| had a resident suggest that the noise of the screen in Harmony Square may deter some people
staying in the square. Has it been considered whether the volume needs to be that loud on a standard
day if no events are taking place?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

A resident recently asked me what co-working spaces does Council provide in Greater Dandenong.
What ones do we provide and what capabilities do they have and does the Springvale Community
Hub, Keysborough South Community Hub and Dandenong Community Hub projects incorporate
co-working spaces and if not, why not?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Regarding the availability of the gravel carpark on the corner of Stuart Street and Clow Street in
Dandenong to the public, | am still getting questions about that being vacant a lot of the week. What
is the latest update?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

A resident asked if there could be a giant Australian flag at the roundabout in Noble Park where
Lightwood Road, Heatherton Road and Railway Parade meet like the one in Boronia?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Going back to Item 4.2.1 - Q2 Quarterly Performance Report | have the following questions:

(a) I noticed on page 131 that the Homelessness Working Group was going to meet at the start of
2020 to determine their forward direction. What have been the activities of the group so far and have
they determined their forward direction yet and if not, what is the expected timing of that?

(b) Also on page 131 | noticed that as per the Greater Dandenong Animal Management Plan a
discussion paper on a cat curfew had been completed. When is a cat curfew planned to be introduced
in Greater Dandenong?

(c) On page 147 it was noted that 330 Culturally and Linquistically Diverse (CALD) residents have
taken part in a waste education program so far. Can the relevant officer please tell me what sessions
and to what groups were run?

(d) On page 162 what is the SEM Cities project?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

In the Contract report considered earlier tonight, | noticed that the new tender weightings for social
and sustainable procurement have not yet kicked in? When can we expect the first Council report
for a new contract that incorporates those new weightings?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

When will the community forum for the Reconciliation Action Plan 2018-20 be held for those members
in the broader community interested in reconciliation including those who gave ideas to the original
Reconciliation Action Plan?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

In this demographic, paper flyers, post cards etc are still very important tools. In this building we have
Council information in the Foyer, our consultation stand in the Foyer, our tourist information stand in
the Library and the community group/organisation stand in the Library. As some people come to this
building just for customer service and some just for the Library, arguably having all four at both
locations would be beneficial but there is a lack of space. Where will the equivalent stands be in the
new Springvale building?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

What is the planned timeframe for the revised Sustainable Buildings Policy to come to a Council
meeting for adoption?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

| last asked at the Council meeting on Monday 26 August 2019 for a progress update on the Toilet
Strategy. | have been raising on behalf of residents for the last few years the lack of toilets for residents
in the new estates of Keysborough and have been told that where future toilets are built depends on
the finalisation of a toilet strategy. Eventually after budget bids for external development of the Toilet
Strategy failed for a couple of budget cycles, | was told that it would be developed in-house during
the 18/19 financial year which did not occur. At the meeting on 26 August 2019, | was told that the
strategy had commenced and Council officers would be in a position to brief and seek feedback from
Councillors early in the New Year when the draft document is available for discussion. Is it now
available for discussion and if so, when will that discussion take place?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Over the weekend | visited Currajong Reserve in Dandenong North to see how the street library was
going. This street library is installed and supported by our library service and was being well used.

(a) When we can have information put on our website regarding how residents can request their
own street library?

(b) In terms of construction both with this one and the one in Multicultural Place, Springvale the
flaw in the construction to me is that the door seems to be often blowing in the wind exposing the
books to the elements. This is particularly important as the books are not set back in the box (and
thus very vunerable to wind and rain) and the latches are not good quality (unlike the rest of the box).
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In the case of the one in Currajong Place it was difficult to close it shut due to the amount of books.
Having a door that had a spring mechanism that would automatically close it shut would be good. Is
it possible to consider that?

This question was tabled and taken on notice.

Question
Cr Sean O’Reilly

| received a query or request from a resident via Facebook. There was a bus stop at the Corrigan
Road end of Athol Road that was removed and it has not been replaced. Apparently, the Victorian
Government for some reason just removed it so there is now no bus shelter. Being a Council that is
supportive of public transport and the use of it, what | would ask is that we send through a letter to
the appropriate government authority requesting that the sheltered bus stop be reinstated or otherwise
explain why not. | would ask for some assistance with that.

Comment
Cr Jim Memeti, Mayor

Happy to do that but does Mr Kearsley want to comment on that?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

Only to say Council would be happy to investigate that further and if necessary, then write a letter to
the relevant authority seeking it to be reinstated.

Comment
Cr Sean O’Reilly

Apart from that, | attended many events but | will not go through them all.

| have the Municipal Association of Victoria board meeting on Friday 14 February 2020. Just a note
to the Director of Corporate Services, it appears that all the new Local Government Act changes are
going ahead to schedule and it is my feeling that there will be a substantial cost to councils, including
this Council for the implementation changes which are quite reasonable so | would just forewarn our
Director of Corporate Services of those potential costs.

Comment
Cr Youhorn Chea

On Saturday 1 February 2020, | attended the official opening of the 2020 TET festival at Sandown
Racecourse. This year, due to rain in the morning, not many people attended for almost the whole
day but on the second day on Sunday, we had many people attending because we had good weather.
At night time, | attended the Chinese New Year, the Year of the Rat and also the Australia Day
celebrations hosted by the Cambodian Chinese Friendship Association of Victoria.
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On Sunday 2 February 2020, | attended the Chinese New Year dinner, hosted by the Teo Chew
Chinese Association of Victoria. In the evening, they had fundraising and they collected nearly
$55,000 from one night only so it was a great night which | attended with Cr O'Reilly and Cr Sophie
Tan.

Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

| have already requested two to three times for traffic lights at the intersection of Springvale Road
and Heather Grove in Springvale. Since it is close to the Springvale Library and close to Killester
College as well, | believe the lights need to be installed prior to the completion of the Springvale
Library. | observe in the morning that many students cross Springvale Road at that location and there
is no sign to reduce speed at all so it is really dangerous. Could we please ask VicRoads to install
signage and traffic lights?

Response
Paul Kearsley, Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

If Cr Chea is referring to the traffic lights on Springvale and Hillcrest Grove, those lights are
programmed and planned for construction as part of the Springvale Community Hub and Council's
paying for those. | can provide an update as to the likely timeframe of when they will take place. |
believe they have been tendered out and that is something that | can confirm to all Councillors in an
email in the next 48 hours.

Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

My question is can we do it before the Library opens?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

That is something | will have to check in terms of timing to see whether or not it can be achieved.

Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

When will Council demolish the former Springvale meeting room?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

That matter is yet to be identified with regards to timing but we would be aiming for the closure of the
customer service centre probably around early March 2020 after the last rates notices and collection
on 28 February 2020. We would be looking at making the necessary arrangements in early March
2020 and | think that would also include some customer service staff at the Paddy O'Donoghue Centre
as well.
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Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

When will the Springvale Library be moved to the new building?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

| will take that question on notice with regards to the timing but we are expecting the facility to be
ready to open around late April - early May and that would involve the Library being decanted and
moved to the new facility in that time. In terms of specific timing, | will have to negotiate and discuss
that with my learned partner here and we will come back to Council and advise that in the next couple
of weeks.

Cr Zaynoun Melhem returned to the Chamber at 8.51pm.

Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

As you know, the Springvale Boulevard project was approved by Council but progress has stalled.
| wanted to make sure that VicRoads has given approval. Can | have an update on the Springvale
Boulevard Project?

Response
Paul Kearsley, Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

| can provide an update that we are expecting the tender of both Stages 1 and 2, Springvale Boulevard
to go into the papers this Saturday. | will be checking that probably Friday to ensure that we have
placed the advertisement. With regards to full VicRoads approval, we are proceeding with the
approvals that we have to date and any further approvals that we need which are very minor in nature,
we will do that in the coming months before Council signs off on the tender process. Once that is
completed, we can then come to Council with a timeframe for the actual commencement of works
with regards to the first stages, which will probably be the removal of the centre median and the trees,
with further work to take place in 2021.

Comment
Cr Jim Memeti, Mayor

Just some of the activities that | attended over the last couple of weeks.

We had the City of Greater Dandenong Staff Bushfire Relief Fundraiser which had a fantastic response
from our staff, not only financially but they also donated their time as volunteers in the firefighters or
SES and other things they do to help with what has happened with the bushfires.
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| also attended the launch of the new African Champions Day Club which was hosted by the
Dandenong RSL Board and the African Champions’ Association. It was good to see the RSL with so
many people in our community like the Vietnamese, the Africans and many other multicultural groups
that visit and also use the RSLs and it is fantastic.

We also had a Springvale Major Projects Advisory Group (SMPAG) meeting last week.

We also visited the new Springvale Community Hub which was absolutely amazing. If you think the
library in Dandenong is special, the new library is like five times bigger. Itis over 4,000 square metres.
| think our Dandenong Library is about 800 square metres and it is just coming along. It is so
unbelievable and | think the community will be in for a big shock. | certainly cannot wait as do my
colleague Councillors as well. Itis a really big project that this Council is involved with. It is part of
the Stage 2 project. We renovated the Springvale City Hall which costed Council over $8 million.
Everyone who uses that City Hall says wow, there is nothing like this in the south-eastern suburbs
so we are very proud of that refurbishment. All | tell them is you will be blown away with this new
Springvale Community Hub and it is over 4,000 square metres. That is like over an acre of land. It
is huge. Council has committed $51 million for that project so it is certainly one of the biggest projects
that we have embarked on after this building which was about $65 million. Council is certainly putting
a lot of money into infrastructure for the community and | think the Springvale end is certainly happening
with the Springvale Boulevard going to tender this weekend. That is | think about $5-6 million. Our
community in Springvale certainly has a lot to look forward to in the next couple of months for these
openings. It was great to go through the new Springvale Community Hub.

| also attended the Summer Reading Club finale which was fantastic. These are primary school
children who got involved in reading books and | think we had over 300 children which was fantastic.
Cr Kirwan was with me as well. | think Senior Suave stole the attention. | tried to be funny like him
but it was not working so | left it up to him. This is a fantastic initiative from this Council that we get
school children involved in reading books at an early age and they all get a prize. There were other
prizes as well and they really enjoyed themselves, so it was great to see. Even Councillor Kirwan's
two little daughters I think they are about two years old, they got involved so it was great. It does not
matter how old they are they can start at a really young age so it is great that this Council has these
initiatives.

| also attended the TET Festival hosted by the Viethamese Community in Australia, Victorian Chapter
which is always a good event. As Councillor Chea said, unfortunately, the weather was not too great
on Saturday but the crowd certainly came in on Sunday. The Viethamese community have done such
good work within Victoria because this event is a statewide event and | heard that they raised hundreds
and hundreds of thousands of dollars for the bushfire appeal and they continue to do good work within
our community.

| am also the chairperson for the Indian Cultural Precinct Taskforce which is the premier Indian area
that the State Government announced only a couple of years ago. It is good to see how the $500,000
grant we received has been used by the Taskforce. If Councillors look around Foster Street, all the
shops have been getting facelifts. | think most of them are done and there are not many left but they
will all be completed soon. It really looks fantastic so | am really looking forward to working with the
Indian Cultural Taskforce over the next 12 months.
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| was also invited to an event called ‘This Is IT Initiative’. | am not sure if you know what it is but it is
about three local businessmen. | think their names are Todd, Simon and Tyrone and | think you all
know who they are. They got involved with the South East Local Learning and Employment Network
(SELLEN) and also Council to seek laptops from the corporate community. They have 120 of these
laptops which they have upgraded and they look brand new, work well and were presented to about
14 schools within the community of the south-east so the students were really happy. These kids do
not have laptops at home. The initiative is not going to help these children but their siblings as well
so as a Council, we are really committed and | understand that over the next 18 months we will
probably be donating over 100 laptops. Hopefully, the corporate world especially here in the south-east
will come on board and we can get as many as possible because | think we need about 4,000 of
them so keep an eye out for that. It is a great initiative and it is great to be part of that.

Also, the Viethamese community have been keeping me busy over the last fortnight. | was also at
the raising of the Co Vang flag right here in Harmony Square. | think most of them probably had
never been to Harmony Square and they were really surprised how great it is. They were telling me
that they are looking at maybe holding a festival or an event here in the future. | welcome that because
that is what it is there for. It is there for the community.

Question
Cr Jim Memeti, Mayor

| received an email from a resident about Council's policy or what we do when there is an abandoned
car on Council’s website. | know the Director for Corporate Services sent me something and | sent
it through to the resident but they said they wanted a bit more information. Can we look at that and
see if we can make it easier for residents to go on our website and do what they have got to do about
abandoned cars?

Response
Mick Jaensch, Director Corporate Services

We did have a look at the contents on the City of Whittlesea's website which is far more comprehensive
than what was on ours so we are looking to update our website to match the Whittlesea content.

Comment
Cr Jim Memeti, Mayor

| think that resident sent me the information from the Whittlesea Council’s website as well. | think that
is what she was looking for. It maybe something that we need to update on our website because it
is certainly becoming a problem with abandoned cars and residents can quickly check our website
and see what they can do.

John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer tabled a listing of responses to questions taken on
notice/requiring further action at the previous Council meeting. A copy of the responses is
provided as an attachment.
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2020
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

7 URGENT BUSINESS
Nil.

The meeting closed at 9.01PM.

Confirmed: / /
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